

 AGENDA FOR THE 


 
 


CITY OF PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION  
REGULAR MEETING  


 
Monday, October 26, 2020 


7:00 P.M.  
 Via Zoom Videoconference 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 


DUE TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA’S DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY – THIS 
MEETING IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO AUTHORIZATION FROM GOVERNOR 
NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDERS – CITY COUNCIL AND COMMISSION 
MEETINGS ARE NO LONGER OPEN TO IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE.  
 
WAYS TO WATCH THE MEETING 


• LIVE ON CHANNEL 26. The Community TV Channel 26 schedule is published on the 
City’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us. The meeting can be viewed again as a retelecast 
on Channel 26. 


• VIDEO-STREAMED LIVE ON THE CITY’S WEBSITE, www.ci.pinole.ca.us. and remain 
archived on the site for five (5) years. 


• If none of these options are available to you, or you need assistance with public 
comment, please contact Planning Manager David Hanham at (510) 724-8912 or 
dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us. 


 
COMMENTS 
Please submit public comments to Planning Staff before or during the meeting via email 
dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us. Comments received before the close of the item will be read into the 
record and limited to 3 minutes. Please include your full name, city of residence and agenda 
item you are commenting on. 
 
 
  



http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

mailto:dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us

mailto:dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us





PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
October 26, 2020  PAGE 2 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need special assistance to 
participate in a City meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an appropriate 
alternative format, please contact the Development Services Department at (510) 724-8912.  Notification 
of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in 
assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. 
 
Assistant listening devices are available at this meeting.  Ask staff if you desire to use this device. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION:  
 
Persons wishing to speak on an item listed on the Agenda may do so when the Chair asks for comments 
in favor of or in opposition to the item under consideration. After all of those persons wishing to speak 
have done so, the hearing will be closed and the matter will be discussed amongst the Commission prior 
to rendering a decision.  
 
NOTE FOR VIDEOCONFERENCE MEETINGS: Public comments may be submitted to Planning Staff 
before or during the meeting via email dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us. Comments received before the close of 
the item will be read into the record and limited to 3 minutes. Please include your full name, city of 
residence and agenda item you are commenting on. 
 
Any person may appeal an action of the Planning Commission or of the Planning Manager by filing an 
appeal with the City Clerk, in writing, within ten (10) days of such action.  Following a Public Hearing, the 
City Council may act to confirm, modify or reverse the action of the Planning Commission and the 
Planning Commission may act to confirm, modify, or reverse the action of the Planning Manager. The 
cost to appeal a decision is $500 and a minimum $2,500 deposit fee.  
 
Note: If you challenge a decision of the Commission regarding a project in court, you may be limited to 
raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing or in writing delivered to the 
City of Pinole at, or prior to, the public hearing.  
 
 


A. CALL TO ORDER  
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 
 
C. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD: 
 


The public may address the Planning Commission on items that are within its jurisdiction 
and not otherwise listed on the agenda.  Planning Commissioners may discuss the 
matter brought to their attention, but by State law (Ralph M. Brown Act), action must be 
deferred to a future meeting.  Time allowed: five (5) minutes each. 


 
D. CONSENT CALENDAR: 


 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial. These items will be enacted by one motion and without discussion. If, 
however, any interested party or Commissioner(s) wishes to discuss a consent item, it 
will be removed from the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after the last item 
under New Business. 


 
1. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from September 28, 2020 


 
 
 
 



mailto:dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us





PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
October 26, 2020  PAGE 3 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 


At the beginning of an item, the Chair will read the description of that item as stated on 
the Agenda. The City Staff will then give a brief presentation of the proposed project. 
The Commission may then ask Staff questions about the item.  


 
For those items listed as Public Hearings, the Chair will open the public hearing and ask 
the applicant if they wish to make a presentation. Those persons in favor of the project 
will then be given an opportunity to speak followed by those who are opposed to the 
project. The applicant will then be given an opportunity for rebuttal.  


 
The Public Hearing will then be closed and the Commission may discuss the item 
amongst themselves and ask questions of Staff. The Commission will then vote to 
approve, deny, approve in a modified form, or continue the matter to a later date for a 
decision. The Chair will announce the Commission's decision and advise the audience of 
the appeal procedure. 


 
Note: No Public Hearings will begin after 11:00 p.m. Items still remaining on the 
agenda after 11:00 p.m. will be held over to the next meeting. 


 
1.  Design Review DR17-10, Tentative Parcel Map TSM17-01, Development 


Agreement DA17-01:  Four new single family residences, four-lot subdivision, 
and development agreement for public improvements 
 
Request:  Consideration of a design review, tentative parcel map, and development 


agreement request to develop the vacant lot at the end of Hazel Street. 
The project proposes the subdivision of the lot into four new parcels, 
development of a single family residence on each new parcel, and 
execution of a development agreement to make public improvements, 
including the extension of Hazel Street [Continued from the Planning 
Commission meeting on August 24, 2020] 


 
 Applicant:  Baljit Dhaliwal 


1068 Turquoise Drive 
Hercules, CA 94547 
 


Location:  Hazel Street (APN: 402-013-060 and -061) 
 
Planner:  David Hanham 
 


2.  Design Review DR 19-14, Conditional Use Permit CUP 19-09: Artisanal Garden: 
Outdoor Artisan and Vendor Space 
 


Request:  Consideration of a design review and conditional use permit 
request to make site improvements for an outdoor seating space 
with fencing, a small structure, and a trash enclosure redesign and 
to provide for hosting of artisan displays, events, music, and food 
vendors, at 2337 San Pablo Avenue in the CMU district [Continued 
from the Planning Commission meeting on February 24, 2020] 


 
Applicant:  Raquel Contreras 







PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
October 26, 2020  PAGE 4 
 


   714 Walker Avenue 
   Oakland, CA 94610 


 
Location:  2337 San Pablo Avenue (APN: 401-162-002) 
 
Planner:  Justin Shiu 
 
 


F. OLD BUSINESS:  
 


None 
 
 
G. NEW BUSINESS:  
 


1. General Plan/Specific Plan Information Session: Growth Management  
 


 
H. CITY PLANNER'S/COMMISSIONER'S REPORT: 
 


1. Verbal Updates of Projects 
 
 
I. COMMUNICATIONS: 
 


 
J. NEXT MEETING:  
 


Planning Commission Regular Meeting, November 30, 2020 at 7:00PM  
 
 


K. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
POSTED: October 22, 2020 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
David Hanham 
Planning Manager 







  


 


              September 28, 2020    1 


DRAFT 1 


 2 


MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 3 


PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION 4 


 5 


September 28, 2020 6 


 7 


DUE TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA’S DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY – THIS 8 


MEETING WAS HELD PURSUANT TO AUTHORIZATION FROM GOVERNOR 9 


NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDERS – CITY COUNCIL AND COMMISSION MEETINGS 10 


WERE NO LONGER OPEN TO IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE.  THE MEETING WAS 11 


HELD VIA ZOOM TELECONFERENCE. 12 


 13 


 14 


A.        CALL TO ORDER:    7:07 P.M. 15 


 16 


B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 17 


 18 


Commissioners Present: Flashman, Moriarty, Murphy, Ojeda, Wong, Chair 19 


Kurrent     20 


      21 


Commissioner Absent:   None  22 


 23 


Staff Present:   David Hanham, Planning Manager 24 


    Alex Mog, Assistant City Attorney   25 


  26 


C. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD 27 


 28 


Chair Kurrent reported that an application for the Hazel Street Subdivision had 29 


been pulled from the agenda, although comments from the public related to the 30 


project would be permitted under the Citizens to be Heard portion of the agenda.    31 


 32 


The following speaker submitted written comments via email that were read into 33 


the record and would be filed with the agenda packet for this meeting: Don 34 


McKinney.   35 


 36 


D. CONSENT CALENDAR 37 


 38 


1. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from August 24, 2020  39 


 40 


MOTION to adopt the Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from August 24, 2020, 41 


as submitted.    42 


  43 


 MOTION:   Flashman  SECONDED:  Moriarty     APPROVED: 5-0-1  44 


            ABSTAIN:  Ojeda    45 







  


 


              September 28, 2020    2 


 Chair Kurrent confirmed with Planning Manager Hanham that the approval of 1 


Planning Commission minutes could be agendized as a separate item on future 2 


agendas rather than under the Consent Calendar, to allow discussion. 3 


                                        4 


E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:   5 


 6 


1. Conditional Use Permit CUP 20-05:  Grocery Outlet Alcohol Sales   7 


 8 


Request:   Consideration of a conditional use permit modification request 9 


to include the sale of distilled spirits for off-site consumption, in 10 


addition to the existing sales of beer and wine for off-site 11 


consumption, at Grocery Outlet – 1460 Fitzgerald Drive  12 


 13 


Applicant:   Grocery Outlet, Inc. c/o Compass Commercial  14 


  3005 Douglas Boulevard, Suite 200  15 


  Roseville, CA 95661  16 


   17 


Location: 1460 Fitzgerald Drive (APN: 426-010-023)  18 


 19 


Planner:   David Hanham  20 


 21 


Planning Manager Hanham presented the staff report dated September 28, 2020, 22 


and recommended the Planning Commission adopt Resolution 20-17 approving a 23 


use permit request (CUP 20-05) which permitted beer, wine, and spirits located at 24 


1460 Fitzgerald Drive, subject to conditions of approval as contained in Exhibit A to 25 


the resolution.   26 


 27 


Mr. Hanham also requested that references to Resolution 20-18, as shown in the 28 


staff report and in a revised resolution for the item that had been distributed to the 29 


Planning Commission, be corrected to read Resolution 20-17.   30 


 31 


Responding to the Commission, Mr. Hanham clarified the following:   32 


 33 


• The first bulleted condition under the heading On-Sale Conditions, as shown 34 


on Page 7 of the September 28, 2020 staff report, should be corrected to read:  35 


No sale of alcohol is allowed for on-site consumption.  36 


 37 


• Clarified the conditions of approval as shown on Pages 6 and 7 of the staff 38 


report which were currently in the City of Pinole Municipal Code (PMC) and 39 


those not included in the PMC at this time, which conditions would be applied 40 


to the application in addition to the conditions shown in Exhibit A.  Conditions 41 


not currently included in the PMC could be eliminated or modified by the 42 


Planning Commission.   43 


 44 


• No comments had been received from the public during the September 1, 45 







  


 


              September 28, 2020    3 


2020 City Council meeting at the time the City Council had considered and 1 


approved a determination of Public Convenience or Necessity for the subject 2 


application.      3 


  4 


 PUBLIC HEARING OPENED  5 


 6 


KATY SCHARDT, Consultant, representing Grocery Outlet, Inc., c/o Compass 7 


Commercial, the consultant working on behalf of Grocery Outlet, introduced two other 8 


members representing Grocery Outlet who were also present via Zoom.  When 9 


asked, she stated that adding spirits to Grocery Outlet stores had not brought a host 10 


of issues.  Grocery Outlet stores were well managed and operated, with operators 11 


taking different approaches than managers of a Safeway or CVS, as examples, since 12 


the operators had a stake in the store.   13 


 14 


JEFF SHAFFER, Director of Sales and Merchandising, Grocery Outlet, provided 15 


further details on the differences in the owner/operator models for Grocery Outlet 16 


stores as compared to other grocery store chains.   17 


 18 


As to the hours of operation and in response to Condition 11, Ms. Schardt explained 19 


that the store would like to be open from 8:00 A.M. to 9:00 P.M., seven days a week.  20 


She requested that Condition 11 be so modified.   21 


 22 


Mr. Shaffer confirmed that Grocery Outlet’s operating hours were 8:00 A.M. to 9:00 23 


P.M., seven days a week, although some operators may modify their hours of 24 


operation in response to daylight savings time or the summer period.  At the most, 25 


the hours of operation had been extended from 7:00 A.M. to 10:00 P.M.   26 


 27 


Ms. Schardt also spoke to the second bulleted condition as shown on the bottom of 28 


Page 6, which read: There shall be no sales of beer or ales with an alcohol content 29 


greater than six percent by volume, which was not a condition currently in the PMC.  30 


She noted some of the conditions preceded the sale of craft beer, which was a big 31 


seller for Grocery Outlet and which could range from four to eight percent alcohol 32 


content.  She suggested the condition, as written, may preclude many retailers 33 


who would like to sell their products in Grocery Outlet stores, and she asked that 34 


the condition be revised to read:  There shall be no sales of beer or ales with an 35 


alcohol content greater than ten percent by volume. 36 


 37 


In addition, the second bulleted condition shown on Page 7 and which read:  The 38 


sale of beer or malt beverages in quantities of quarts, twenty-two (22) ounces, 39 


thirty-two (32) ounces, forty (40) ounces and/or similar size quantities is prohibited, 40 


was also not in the PMC.  That condition, as written, would prohibit the sale of craft 41 


beer in individual bottles.  Small breweries sold craft beer in the range of 22 to 24 42 


ounces.  She recommended the condition be revised to read:  The sale of beer or 43 


malt beverages in quantities of quarts, thirty-two (32) ounces, forty (40) ounces 44 


and/or similar size quantities is prohibited.     45 


 46 







  


 


              September 28, 2020    4 


Mr. Hanham advised no comments had been received via e-mail from the public 1 


neither for nor against this item. 2 


 3 


 PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED  4 


 5 


The Planning Commission discussed CUP 20-05 and offered the following 6 


comments and/or direction to staff:  7 


 8 


• Requested more research prior to removing the restrictions around alcohol 9 


content as the applicant had requested in that beer had historically been 10 


around four percent alcohol and wine up to eight percent alcohol content, 11 


which may have impacts on consumers.  Found the conditions, as outlined in 12 


the staff report and in Exhibit A, had been imposed for good reason taking 13 


public safety into account.  (Ojeda).   14 


 15 


Mr. Hanham commented that in most cases beer and wine had been regulated by 16 


the State of California.  He acknowledged that craft beer was a new commodity. 17 


 18 


Assistant City Attorney Alex Mog understood the limits had been put into place to 19 


prevent creep into levels of alcohol normally seen in locations selling beer and wine, 20 


which was why the conditions had been imposed although that did not mean an 21 


applicant could not apply for a default liquor license.   22 


 23 


• Suggested the Planning Commission could default to the State standards 24 


rather than specify the percentage of alcohol content by volume. (Kurrent) 25 


 26 


Mr. Hanham and Mr. Mog both confirmed the Planning Commission may consider 27 


the approach of deferring to the State standards pursuant to the regulations of a Type 28 


21 liquor license. 29 


 30 


• Recognized the concerns raised by Commissioner Ojeda and acknowledged 31 


the movement towards craft beer and consumer desire for its availability.   32 


Asked whether craft beer identified the alcohol content on its containers, 33 


questioned the number of CUPs that had been approved in Pinole which also 34 


included restrictions on the types of beer that could be sold to ensure the City 35 


was fair to all businesses, and expressed concern with the precedent that 36 


could be set for future applications. If the application was approved for 37 


Grocery Outlet with the modifications to conditions, as proposed by the 38 


applicant, would like all the businesses that had been previously declined or 39 


that had more restrictions on their use permits to be so notified; expressed 40 


concern modifying the hours of operation and allowing the sale of alcohol after 41 


9:00 P.M.; questioned whether that would be a change to the community 42 


standard and if so would warrant greater discussion; and suggested that craft 43 


beer could be separated from standard beer products and labeled as craft 44 


beer with a higher alcohol content.  (Flashman) 45 







  


 


              September 28, 2020    5 


Mr. Hanham was uncertain of the number of CUPs that had been approved in Pinole 1 


with similar restrictions.   2 


 3 


Mr. Mog explained that there were a number of conditions that changed over time, 4 


and a business always had the ability to come back to the Planning Commission and 5 


request modifications to conditions.     6 


 7 


On the question of whether to revise the second bulleted condition as shown on the 8 


bottom of Page 6, as proposed by the applicant, Commissioners discussed how to 9 


keep the community safe while also allowing the sale of craft beers.  There was a 10 


recommendation to refer back to the State standard which referred to six percent 11 


for regular beer and up to ten percent for craft beer.  The applicant was in 12 


agreement with references to the State standard.   13 


 14 


Mr. Hanham again clarified the conditions of approval contained in Exhibit A to the 15 


resolution that were standard conditions of approval adopted by the City over time, 16 


such as the hours of operation, and explained that the last two bulleted conditions 17 


on Page 6 were not in the PMC but were standard conditions that had been 18 


adopted for applications over the past 10 to 12 years.  The second bulleted 19 


condition on Page 7 was not in the PMC.     20 


 21 


Mr. Mog also clarified that if the Planning Commission decided to refer to State 22 


standards, there would be no need to specify a percentage, which would not be in 23 


the resolution but in the license for the sale of alcohol.   24 


 25 


• Expressed concern following the State regulations as related to the discussion 26 


of whether to modify the second bullet at the bottom of Page 6 since the 27 


State could change the alcoholic content in the future, and if approved, other 28 


businesses in Pinole may want to sell craft beer with a higher alcohol 29 


content.  Preferred that it be spelled out that the alcoholic content of regular 30 


beer not be greater than six percent and craft beer not more than ten 31 


percent.  Concerns with public health and the potential impacts of changing 32 


the community standards were also noted.  (Murphy and Wong)  33 


 34 


• Opposed requiring the applicant to separate craft beer from other beer and 35 


wine products and hold the business to a higher standard not imposed on 36 


other businesses.  (Moriarty)  37 


 38 


Mr. Shaffer clarified there was no segregation between craft and standard beer 39 


products in Grocery Outlet stores.  The products had been merchandised together.   40 


 41 


Chairperson Kurrent requested a straw poll vote to also be reflected with a Roll 42 


Call Vote from each Commissioner on the following: 43 


 44 


 45 







  


 


              September 28, 2020    6 


Revise the second bullet as shown on the bottom of Page 6, to read:  1 


Alcohol content of sales of beer and ales shall be governed by State ABC 2 


regulations but shall be no greater than ten percent.  (Roll Call Vote:  5-1.  3 


Noes:  Ojeda)  4 


 5 


Revise the second bullet condition as shown on Page 7, to read:  The sale 6 


of beer or malt beverages in quantities greater than twenty-five (25) ounces 7 


shall be prohibited.  (Roll Call Vote: 5-1.  Noes:  Ojeda)    8 


 9 


Revise Condition 11 of Exhibit A, to read:  Operating hours will be 7:00 A.M. 10 


to 10:00 P.M., Monday through Sunday.  (Roll Call Vote:  6-0)    11 


 12 


Responding to the Commission’s concerns and the lack of unanimity on the 13 


conditions under discussion, Mr. Mog suggested the City Council could be asked 14 


to discuss this matter further, such as to provide specificity on how craft beer would 15 


be handled given that the health implications were unknown, the marketing of craft 16 


beers was uncertain, and the Planning Commission did not have the wherewithal 17 


to make a recommendation and questioned whether the City Council wanted to 18 


grandfather-in previously approved businesses or identify the number of 19 


businesses approved that may or may not have similar restrictions, and consider 20 


updating existing CUPs automatically or individually.    21 


 22 


MOTION to adopt Resolution 20-17, a Resolution of the Planning Commission of 23 


the City of Pinole, County of Contra Costa, State of California, Approving a 24 


Conditional Use Permit Modification to Allow the Sale of Distilled Spirits for Off-25 


Site Consumption, in Addition to the Existing Sales of Beer and Wine for Off-Site 26 


Consumption at 1460 Fitzgerald Drive, Pinole, CA 94564, APN: 426-010-023, 27 


subject to the Conditions of Approval contained in Exhibit A, and subject to the 28 


following revisions:   29 


 30 


• Revise the second bullet as shown on the bottom of Page 6, to read:   31 


 32 


Alcohol content of sales of beer and ales shall be governed by State ABC 33 


regulations but shall be no greater than ten percent.   34 


 35 


• Revise the second bullet condition as shown on Page 7, to read: 36 


 37 


The sale of beer or malt beverages in quantities greater than twenty-five 38 


(25) ounces shall be prohibited; and  39 


 40 


• Revise Condition 11 of Exhibit A, to read:   41 


 42 


Operating hours will be 7:00 A.M. to 10:00 P.M., Monday through Sunday.   43 


 44 


 45 







  


 


              September 28, 2020    7 


 MOTION:  Moriarty SECONDED:   Wong     APPROVED:  5-1 1 


                          NOES:  Ojeda   2 


 3 


 Chair Kurrent identified the 10-day appeal process of a decision of the Planning 4 


Commission in writing to the City Clerk.  5 


 6 


F. OLD BUSINESS:  None  7 


           8 


G. NEW BUSINESS:  9 


 10 


1. General Plan/Specific Plan Information Session:  Community 11 


Character  12 


   13 


Mr. Hanham provided an extensive overview of the Community Character Element 14 


of the General Plan, read into the record the Community Character policies and 15 


strategies, and provided clarification in response to Planning Commission 16 


comments. 17 


 18 


Commissioner Moriarty looked forward to revisiting the General Plan, specifically 19 


the Old Town Design Review Guidelines.   20 


 21 


Commissioner Flashman sought more information on how the Community 22 


Character Element played into the Beautification Committee, which were tied 23 


together in some ways.  She agreed that Old Town was special to Pinole.  She 24 


was curious how a Park Master Plan would play into the City’s parks, outdoor 25 


spaces, creeks, and shorelines and how it would interplay between the Community 26 


Character Element and outdoor spaces, and was also curious about the paint color 27 


requirements, particularly for Old Town Pinole while recognizing it was a subjective 28 


element of the General Plan.   29 


 30 


Commissioner Wong was excited about future discussions of the Community 31 


Character Element of the General Plan and the possibility of revising and modifying 32 


the plans.  33 


 34 


Commissioner Ojeda commended staff on the presentation.  He looked forward to 35 


participating in future discussions.    36 


 37 


Commissioner Murphy appreciated the staff presentations on each section of the 38 


General Plan and looked forward to receiving a copy of the Old Town Design 39 


Guidelines in the future.   40 


 41 


Chairperson Kurrent expressed concern with the appropriateness of some 42 


language in the first paragraph of the Community Character Element, and 43 


recommended deference to applicants on desired paint colors.   44 


 45 


 46 







  


 


              September 28, 2020    8 


Mr. Mog reported the City Council’s PMC Update Subcommittee was discussing a 1 


possible new Historic Preservation Ordinance, updating guidelines, and identifying 2 


potential historic properties as part of that process.  As a result, something may be 3 


brought to the Planning Commission in the coming months.   4 


 5 


H. CITY PLANNER’S / COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT   6 


 7 


1. Verbal Updates of Projects  8 


 9 


Mr. Hanham reported that building permits had increased 20 percent over 2019.  10 


Staff had been working with three multi-family developers/builders including Pinole 11 


Vista for between 174 and 200 units on the former Kmart site, with staff having 12 


conducted a pre-application review of the project; DeNova Homes was considering 13 


the Making Waves site for another approximate 160 units, and staff had provided 14 


comments on a very preliminary site plan; and Pinole Woods proposed an 15 


approximate 130 units.   16 


 17 


Mr. Hanham offered other updates and stated that Pinole Square was starting 18 


underground work with the landscaping plan to be revised; and Dr. Lee’s Office 19 


was under construction and the removal of oak trees on the property had required 20 


the payment of a mitigation fee to be used for the planting of trees in other portions 21 


of the community, with larger shrubs to be planted to offset the building.   22 


 23 


Responding to Planning Commission concerns with the removal of the oak trees 24 


on the Dr. Lee property and the lack of compliance with the approved landscape 25 


plan for the project, Mr. Hanham emphasized staff was working with Dr. Lee to 26 


address all concerns.   27 


 28 


Chair Kurrent reported he and Commissioner Flashman had a video conference 29 


as the Planning Commission Development Review Subcommittee with the 30 


applicants for the Hazel Street subdivision, but since the item had not been 31 


agendized a discussion was deferred until that time. 32 


 33 


Commissioner Moriarty reported the contractor for the Burlington Northern/Santa 34 


Fe (BNSF) Railroad Bridge on San Pablo Avenue had made a presentation to the 35 


West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC).  She provided 36 


an update of the Friends of Pinole Creek efforts in tandem with the Ad Hoc 37 


Beautification Committee, who would be meeting with an individual working with a 38 


scientist to address the trash problem in Pinole Creek.  That situation involved a 39 


year-long project based on community science with input from different leadership 40 


of different community groups in Pinole.  Additional information was available 41 


@thrivingearthexchange.org.   She also reported the California Coastal-Clean-Up 42 


for the month of September had been a great success.  In addition, she 43 


congratulated Commissioner Murphy on his appointment to the City Council.   44 


 45 


Commissioner Murphy urged everyone to complete their 2020 Census surveys.   46 







  


 


              September 28, 2020    9 


Mr. Hanham advised that applications were available on-line for the vacancies on 1 


the Planning Commission.   2 


 3 


Commissioner Flashman requested a future presentation from the Ad Hoc 4 


Beautification Committee and clarified with staff the Planning Commission 5 


vacancies and term renewals were intended to be filled at one time, although there 6 


had been some challenges due to COVID-19.  She also offered her thoughts to 7 


those suffering as a result of the Glass Fire in the North Bay, acknowledged that 8 


wildfires had become the new normal, and emphasized the importance of 9 


supporting Sonoma and Napa Counties during this time.  She requested that the 10 


meeting be adjourned in memory of Supreme Court Justice Ruth Bader Ginsburg.   11 


 12 


I. COMMUNICATIONS: None  13 


 14 


J. NEXT MEETING 15 


 16 


The next meeting of the Planning Commission to be a Regular Meeting to be held 17 


on Monday, October 26, 2020 at 7:00 P.M.   18 


 19 


K. ADJOURNMENT:  In Memory of Supreme Court Justice Ruth Bader Ginsburg 20 


at 9:55 P.M     21 


 22 


 Transcribed by:  23 


 24 


 25 


 Sherri D. Lewis  26 


 Transcriber  27 







Item E1 


 
  


 
TO:   PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  David Hanham, Planning Manager 
  
SUBJECT:  Consideration of a Design Review, Tentative Parcel Map, and Development 


Agreement to develop a vacant lot identified as (APN 402-013-060) at the end of 
Hazel Street. The project proposes to subdivide the existing lot into four (4) lots for 
the purpose of constructing four (4) single family residential units.  


 
DATE:  October 26, 2020 


 
Project Applicant: 
Baljit Dhaliwal 
1068 Turquoise Drive 
Hercules, CA 94547 
 


Project Owner: 
Baljit Dhaliwal 
1068 Turquoise Drive 
Hercules, CA 94547 
 


 


PROJECT:                  Hazel Street Subdivision and Design Review  
FILE:                                Design Review DR17-10, Tentative Parcel Map TSM17-01, Development 
                                    Agreement DA17-01:  Four new single-family residences, four-lot                  
                                    subdivision, and development agreement for public improvements 
 
LOCATION:                     1640 Hazel Street 
APN:                                402-013-060 & 61 
ZONING:                         Suburban Residential (R-1) 
GP LU DESIGNATION:  Low Density Residential (LDR)  
 


 
REQUEST 
Currently, Staff is requesting that the Planning Commission adopt Resolution 2020-18 
recommending approval to the City Council for Design Review DR 17-10, Tentative Parcel Map 
TSM 17-01, and Development agreement DA 17-01.  
 
At this time the Development Agreement is draft form and still being negotiated by the parties. The 
final Development Agreement will be agreed to prior to the City Council meeting. If there are 
significant changes to the Development Agreement based language and/or terms of the Agreement, 
it will have to come back to the Planning Commission prior to it going to back to City Council. 
 
BACKGROUND 
This project has had many iterations over the course of the last 10-12 years. At the Planning 
Commission meeting of July 9, 2007, the Planning Commission denied the project over concerns 
that dealt with configuration of lots, infrastructure timing and expressed concern about several 
issues regarding the configuration and layout of the proposed lots, infrastructure timing, tree 


Memorandum  







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                   PAGE 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 
protection and the creation of a pedestrian pathway.  
 
The applicant filed an appeal and the project appeared before the City Council on August 21, 2007. 
The members of the City Council remanded the project back to the Planning Commission with three 
criteria for the applicant to meet: 


1. Present a three-lot subdivision. 


2. Ensure that the private road is at least 28 feet wide. 


3. Provide a development standard document for the parcel. 


In July of 2017, the Applicants applied for a four (4) lot parcel map, design review of four (4) 
houses, and development agreement to accommodate infrastructure needs that are a part of 
this project.  


 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The property owner wishes to subdivide two lots consisting of approximately 33,830 square feet into 
four lots.  The proposed minor subdivision would occur at a property that is located on the south 
side of the western terminus of Hazel Street, Pinole, CA, 94564,( APNs 402-013-060 & 061).  The 
proposed four parcels would each have single-family residences developed on them, all requiring 
design review approval and building permits. The area of the proposed parcels is as follows: 
 


Parcel Area 


Parcel A 6001 sq. ft. 


Parcel B 6001 sq. ft. 


Parcel C 6001 sq. ft. 


Parcel D 6569 sq.  ft 


 
The remainder of the parcels will be converted into road right-of-way, and the Applicant will be 
responsible for construction roadway to connect the two existing section of Hazel Street. Also, 
as a part of this project, the City is contributing new storm drain infrastructure.   







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                   PAGE 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 


Location Map  
 


 
The subject property is currently undeveloped and is relatively flat along the northern portion of the 
project site.  The southern portion of the site has a significant existing upslope.  To address this 
issue, significant grading as well as the addition of a retaining wall is proposed along the bottom of 
this slope on parcels A and B. In addition, none of the proposed single-family structures would be 
constructed on this hillside area.   
 
The project would also include dedication of an “L” shaped parcel to the City for the extension of 
Hazel Street, as well as curb, gutter and the sidewalk along the south side of the street. These 
improvements will be constructed by the applicant.  This dedicated parcel is currently located on the 
eastern end of the existing northern parcel.  If the subdivision is approved, the dedicated parcel 
would be located along the northern end of the east property line of Parcel “C”.  
 
With the current proposal, both the existing Coast live Oak and the Walnut trees on the property are 
preserved. 
 
A sewer pump station currently exists near the northwest corner of the project site.  This pump 
station would remain.  However, if the subdivision is approved, the applicant would be required to 
make specific improvements related to this facility.  A more detailed discussion of the required 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                   PAGE 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 
roadway and sewer improvements is provided under the Department and Agency Comments 
Section of this report.   
 
Finally, the applicant has submitted Development Standards for the project. Please see Attachment 
5. In the standards, the applicant has identified setbacks, future design information, and the 
maximum footprint of future dwellings. These criteria presented meet or surpass the Single-Family 
Residential Standards (R-1). 
 
DEPARTMENT AND AGENCY COMMENTS 
 
Police Department 
The Pinole Police Department has offered standard comments pertaining to construction of the 
future dwellings. These comments include adequate security lighting, low landscaping near the front 
doors, the need for safely constructed doors at both the front entry and if the garage is attached, at 
the main door for the garage as well.  
 
Fire Department 
No comments have been received. 
 
Public Works 
Hazel Avenue will be completed so that that you will be able to drive from Sunnyview Drive all the 
way to Pinon Avenue. Hazel Avenue will meet local street standards. This work will be completed 
by the Developer.  
 
Pump Station 
The existing sewer pump station on the northwest corner of the project site currently receives 
electrical service from an overhead electrical line.  The proposed project would remove this 
overhead line and provide electric service to the pump station and the proposed single-family 
homes via underground electric transmission lines.  Prior to any construction, the applicant must 
provide a detailed plan to the Public Works Department of how the existing sewer pump station 
would be converted from being served by an overhead electrical line to an underground service.  
The plan must include details of how this change will be completed without an interruption of 
existing sewer service. 
 
Grading and Drainage 
As a part of this project, the Applicants will be paying applicable storm drain fees. There is currently 
an open-air storm drain ditch located on the uncompleted portion of Hazel Avenue. The Storm Drain 
line and vault will need to be undergrounded and realigned. As a part of the Development 
Agreement, the City will be planning and building the storm drain infrastructure for the regional 
storm drain system. This is an existing project on the City’s Capital Improvement Program.  
 
Development Agreement 
Prior to the City Council approval of the project, the Applicant and the City must agree to the terms 
of the agreement which outlines fees and improvements that will be completed with this project. The 
Development Agreement will vest the approvals for the Project for a period of 10 years. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 


In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the Project is Categorically 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                   PAGE 5 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 
Exempt from further environmental review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15315, as a minor 


subdivision of land  is in conformance with the General Plan and Zoning, no variances or 


exceptions are required, all services and access to the proposed parcels to local standards are 
available, the parcel was not involved in a division or a larger parcel within the previous two (2) 
years, and the parcel does not have an average slope greater than 20 percent. The Project is also 


Categorically Exempt is Categorically Exempt from further environmental review pursuant to CEQA 


Guidelines Section 15332, as a residential infill development project, and none of the exceptions 


specificed in CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2 are applicable to the Project.  
 
An analysis was completed by Rainey & Associates to determine the categorical exemptions. 
(Attachment H). 
  
REGULATORY DOCUMENTS 
 


California Government Code 
 
Section 66474 of the Subdivision Map Act 
 
A legislative body of a city or county shall deny approval of a tentative map, or a parcel map for 
which a tentative map was not required, if it makes any of the following findings:   
 


4. (a)That the proposed map is not consistent with applicable general and specific plans as 
specified in Section 65451. 


(b) That the design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is not consistent with 
applicable general and specific plans. 


(c That the site is not physically suitable for the type of development. 
(d) That the site is not physically suitable for the proposed density of development. 
(e) That the design of the subdivision or proposed improvements are likely to cause 


substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or 
their habitat. 


(f) That the design of the subdivision or type of improvements is likely to cause serious 
public health problems. 


(g) That the design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will conflict with 
easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property within 
the proposed subdivision. In this connection, the governing body may approve a map if 
it finds that alternate easements, for access or for use, will be provided, and that 
subsection shall apply only to easements of record or to easements established by 
judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction and no authority is hereby granted to a 
legislative body to determine that the public at large has acquired easements for access 
through or use of property within the proposed subdivision. 


 
After reviewing Findings A-G, Staff has determined that none of these finding can be made and that 
this map meets the existing standards of the City of Pinole. 
 
 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                   PAGE 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 
▪ Pinole General Plan 


 
Policies 
 
The proposed project meets the following goals from the General Plan: 
 
LU1.1 Variety of Land Uses 
 
Maintain land use designations for a variety of residential, commercial, light industrial, recreational, 
open space and public purposes which: 1) protect environmental resources; 2) provides a mix of 
housing types, density, and tenure; 3) ensure that a variety of commercial and industrial goods, 
services and employment opportunities area available; and 4) offer a range of recreational and 
public facilities to meet the needs of residents.  
 
LU1.2 General Plan Land Uses and the Zoning Ordinance 
 
Require all proposed projects to be consistent with the General Plan and other applicable 
development standards established by the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  
 
LU 3.1 Site Planning and Design 
 
Ensure high quality site planning, architecture, and landscaping for all new development, renovation 
or remodeling. 
 
LU3.4 Design Review of Residential Projects.  Require design review of residential projects to 
ensure compatibility with adjacent or nearby land uses, including architectural style, mass, bulk, 
color, materials, lot coverage and setbacks. 
 
LU4.1 Quality of Pinole’s Residential Neighborhoods. Assure all new development, renovation or 
remodeling preserves and strengthens Pinole’s residential neighborhoods by requiring projects to 
be harmoniously designed and integrated with the existing neighborhood. 
 


Zoning Ordinance 
 
Chapter 17.32 of the City of Pinole Zoning Code establishes policies and incentives, design 
standards, and alternative methods of meeting the City’s affordable housing needs. This chapter 
determines the minimum standards and identifies the administrative procedures related to 
affordable housing. 
 
The Project is proposing to construct four (4) single-family residential units. Section 17.32.020 (A) 
states that all residential development of 4 or more dwelling units located in the City at least 15% of 
the total units must be constructed as affordable housing units, rounded up to the nearest whole 
number. One (1) of the single family residences constructed as part of the project will be restricted 
as affordable to meet this provision of the code.  
 
Table 17.32.020-1 of the Pinole Zoning Code specifies the level of affordability based on whether 
the affordable unit is a rental or ownership unit. For units that will be owner-occupied, the unit must 
be sold to and affordable to moderate income households (defined as households with an income of 
120% of the Area Median Income). Section 17.32.050 of the Pinole Zoning Code defines the 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                   PAGE 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 
affordable housing development requirements. Those requirements include, design, size, 
availability, affordable housing agreement, and the duration of the affordability requirement. Staff is 
working with the Dhaliwal Family to fulfill these requirements. All of the proposed houses meet the 
design, size, availability requirements. An affordable housing agreement will be signed by the City 
and applicant, and recorded on the Property prior to the construction of the first house, to restrict 
occupancy of the affordable unit in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 17.32  for a term of 
55 years. 
 


Design Review 
 
Pursuant to Section 17.12.050 of the Pinole Zoning Ordinance requires that we make four (4) 
findings in approving or recommending approval to the City Council. I have listed the findings below: 
 
1. The proposed project is consistent with the objectives of the general plan and complies with 
applicable zoning regulations, planned development, master plan or specific plan provisions, 
improvement standards, and other applicable standards and regulations adopted by the city; 
 
As stated above, this project is consistent with the General Plan and all the applicable plans and 
zoning regulations. 
 
Staff deemed that this finding has been met. 
 
2. The proposed project will not create conflicts with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian 
transportation modes of circulation; 
 
This project will connect Hazel Avenue into one roadway, which includes the construction of curb, 
gutter, and sidewalk. By connecting these two pieces conflicts will be minimized. 
 
Staff deemed that this finding has been met. 
 
3.  The site layout (orientation and placement of buildings and parking areas), as well as the 
landscaping, lighting, and other development features, are compatible with and complement the 
existing surrounding environment and ultimate character of the area under the general plan and 
applicable specific plans; and 
 
The development of this project will be compatible and complement the existing surrounding single-
family residential area. 
 
Staff deemed that this finding has been met. 
 
4. Qualifying single-family residential, multi-family residential, and residential mixed-use 
projects shall comply with all relevant standards and guidelines in the city's currently adopted 
design guidelines for residential development. 
 
Staff reviewed the Residential Guidelines and found that the single-family residential units that are 
being proposed complies with all the relevant standards and guidelines base on what has been 
proposed. 
 
Staff deemed that this finding has been met. 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                   PAGE 8 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt Resolution 20-18 recommending approval 
to the City Council for a tentative parcel map (TSM 17-01), comprehensive design review (DR 17-
10) and a development agreement (DA 17-01) for a four-lot residential subdivisions located at the 
south side of the western terminus of Hazel Avenue (APN 402-013-060&61), . 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Resolution 20-18 w/Conditions of Approval  
B. Parcel Map MS-652-20 
C Lot 1 Plan Set 
D. Lot 2 Plan Set 
E. Lot 3 Plan Set 
F. Lot 4 Plan Set 
G. Draft Development Agreement 
H.  Environmental Memo Dated September 20, 2020 


3612324.1  







PLANNING COMMSION 


RESOLUTION 20-18 


 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDING 


APPROVAL TO THE CITYOF PINOLE CITY COUNCIL FOR A TENTATIVE PARCEL 


MAP, COMPREHENSIVE DESIGN REVIEW AND A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 


LOCATED AT SOUTH SIDE OF THE WESTERN TERMINUS OF HAZEL AVENUE 


(APN 402-013-060 & 061)  


 


WHEREAS: Baljit Dhaliwal has filed an application for a Tentative Parcel Map, Comprehensive Design 


Review, and a Development located on south side of the western terminus of Hazel Avenue; and  


 


WHEREAS: the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole has considered a Minor Subdivision 652-


20, the applicant is Baljit Dhaliwal, 1068 Turquoise Drive, Hercules, CA 94547; and  


 


WHEREAS: the Planning Commission considered the site layout, the orientation of and location of the 


four (4) homes and other pertinent development features in relation to the physical characteristics, 


zoning, and land use of the site and surrounding properties; and 


 


WHEREAS: the Planning Commission considered traffic, safety, and traffic congestion, including the 


effect of the proposed project on traffic conditions abutting streets, the layout of the site with respect to 


driveways and walkways; and 


 


WHEREAS: the Planning Commission considered the availability of city services and adequacy based 


upon City Standards; and  


 


WHEREAS: as part of the Project, the City and the Applicant have negotiated a draft Development 


Agreement in accordance with Government Code Section 65864 et. seq. and Pinole Municipal Code 


Section 17.12.160, which agreement is attached as Exhibit G and incorporated herein by reference; and 


 


WHEREAS:  Government Code Section 65867 and Pinole Municipal Code Section 17.12.160 C 


requires the Planning Commission to hold a public hearing on the proposed Development Agreement 


and make a recommendation to the City Council; and 


 


WHEREAS:  a staff report dated October 26, 2020 and incorporated herein by reference, described 


analyzed the Project, including the Development Agreement for the Planning Commission. Pursuant to 


Government Code Section 65867.5(b), the Development Agreement must be found consistent with the 


General Plan 


 







WHEREAS: in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City of Pinole 


Planning Commission has determined that a Categorical Exemption pursuant to Sections 15315, Minor 


Land Subdivision and 15332 In-fill Developments can be adopted as the proposal meets the criteria 


outlined in Sections 15315 & 15332; and 


 


WHEREAS: the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing related to the proposed 


Project, including the project design components, on August 24, 2020 and September 28, 2020, and 


October 26, 2020 at which time all interested parties has the opportunity to be heard; and  


 


WHEREAS: after the close of public hearing, the Planning Commission considered all public comments 


received both before and during the public hearing, the presentation by City Staff, the Staff Report, and 


all other pertinent documents regarding the proposed development; and 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, the Planning Commission hereby finds that: 


 


1. The tentative parcel map is consistent with the City of Pinole General Plan in that the subdivision 


of the lots does not change the uses on site and is consistent with General Plan Goals and Policies found 


in the Land Use and Community Character Elements. 


 


2. The project complies with applicable regulatory requirements for a minor subdivision. 


 


3. The tentative parcel map, as conditioned is consistent with the Zoning Code, in that the zoning 


designation for the parcels remains unchanged and the current allowable uses remains unchanged. 


 


4. The Design Review is consistent with the applicable polices of the General Plan and complies 


with standards as conditioned. 


 


5. The site layout including the orientation of the buildings and parking areas, as well as 


landscaping, lighting, and other development features are compatible with and complement the existing 


surrounding environment and ultimate character of the area under the General Plan. 


 


6. Based on the depth and variety of architectural components, including colors and materials, the 


proposed designs as conditioned will not be unsightly, obnoxious or undesirable in appearance, and will 


not hinder the harmonious development of the area, impair the desirability of the area for the uses 


permitted, nor limit the opportunity to attain optimum use and value of the land and improvements ,or 


otherwise adversely affect the general public. 


 


7. The proposed development as conditioned creates a well-composed urban design harmoniously 


related to the other existing development within the immediate area.  


 







8. Recommends that the City Council find that the proposed Development Agreement is consistent 


with the Pinole General Plan in that the agreement incorporates and does not alter the existing General 


Plan land use designations, policies, programs and objectives.  


 


PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole on this 26th day of 


October 2020, by the following vote: 


 


 


AYES: 


NOES: 


ABSTAIN: 


ABSENT: 


 


 


        ______________________________ 


        David Kurrent, Chair 2020-2021 


 


 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


__________________________________ 


David Hanham, Planning Manager 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        1 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


1.  The project shall be constructed in substantial compliance with the 
approved Design Review, Tentative Parcel Map, and Development 
Agreement request for the subdivision and four-lot residential 
development project at Hazel Street (APN 402-013-060 and -061), 
approved by the City Council as shown on the project plans date-
stamped received June 20, 2018, unless otherwise conditioned.  
 


The proposed project shall be built in a manner consistent with all 
applicable federal, State, and local regulations. 
 


On-Going Development 
Services 


Department 


 


2.  
 


The Applicant shall hold harmless the City, its Council Members, its 
Planning Commission, officers, agents, employees, and representatives 
from liability for any award, damages, costs and fees incurred by the City 
and/or awarded to any plaintiff in an action challenging the validity of this 
permit or any environmental or other documentation related to approval 
of this permit.  Applicant further agrees to provide a defense for the City 
in any such action. 
     


On-Going Development 
Services 


Department 


 


3.  All building permit drawings and subsequent construction shall 
substantially conform to the approved planning application drawings and 
application materials.  Any modifications must be reviewed by the 
Planning Manager who shall determine whether the modification requires 
additional approval of the Planning Commission. 
  


On-Going Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        2 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


 Prior to Issuance of Building Permits    


4.  CONDITIONS ON PLANS - These project conditions of approval shall 
appear on the project building plans. 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


5.  FINAL PARCEL MAP - The applicant shall have a Final Parcel Map, 
prepared by a person authorized to practice land surveying in California, 
delineating all parcels created or deleted and all changes in lot lines (as 
per Section 16.12.190 of the Municipal Code). The Final Parcel Map shall 
be submitted for review and approval by the City Engineer. The Final 
Parcel Map shall be recorded with the County after City Engineer 
approval. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits; and 


Prior to Building 
Permit Final 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


6.  CULTURAL RESOURCES - Prior to the issuance of any construction 
permit, construction plans shall include a requirement (via notation) 
indicating that if historic and/or cultural resources or human remains are 
encountered during construction or other site work, all such work shall be 
halted immediately within the area of discovery and the contractor shall 
immediately notify the City of the discovery. In such case, the applicant 
shall retain, at their own cost, the services of a qualified archaeologist for 
the purpose of recording, protecting, or curating the discovery as 
appropriate. The archaeologist shall be required to submit to the City for 
review and approval a report of the findings and method of curation or 
protection of the resources. Further construction work within the vicinity 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        3 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


of the discovery, as identified by the qualified archaeologist, shall not be 
allowed until the preceding steps have been taken. 
 


7.  PLAN SET REVISIONS – The applicant shall make the following 
revisions to the building permit plan set prior to issuance of building 
permits: 
 
General 


• On Sheet A5, include a partial outline of the neighboring residences 
for lots east and west of the project site and their window locations 
to show that window placement of proposed residences would not 
have a straight view into the windows of neighboring residences.  


 


• In the landscape plan, provide a calculation showing that the front 
yard area (the area 20 feet back from the front property line) is not 
covered by impervious surfaces for more than 40% of this front yard 
area. 
 


Lot #3 


• Reduce the front porch projection into the foot front yard area, or 
shift the residence back, so that a minimum 18-foot separation is 
maintained between the front property line and any point along the 
porch, including the eaves and overhangs of the porch area.  
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        4 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


• The eave over the garage needs to maintain a minimum 18-foot 
separation from the front property line. Show the measurement on 
Sheet A1.1 Site Plan. 
 


• Ensure the front yard setback is consistent on all applicable plan 
sheets, including the site plan and landscape plan. 


 
Lot #4 


• Identify the separation distance between the rear deck and the 
retaining wall. 


 


8.  GEOTECHNICAL AND SOILS REPORT – The applicant shall re-submit 
the geotechnical and soils report prepared by GeoEngineering 
Consultants, dated February 17, 2017, and R.A. McGuire 
Civil/Environmental Engineering, dated October 4, 2006, to the Building 
Division as part of the Building Permit application. The project shall 
implement the recommendations of the report, in compliance with all 
current building code standards. Required modifications to the 
recommendations and the plans may be identified through the Building 
Permit plan check process. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


9.  LANDSCAPE PLAN – The applicant shall prepare and submit a full 
detailed landscape and irrigation plan for review and approval by the 
Development Services Department prior to issuance of building permits. 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        5 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


 
The landscape and irrigation plan shall include the number, type, and 
size of all proposed new trees, shrubs, and groundcover specimens. All 
proposed plantings shall be drought-tolerant and well-suited to the City’s 
climate zone. The landscape plan shall reflect the latest approved site 
plan. 
 
The detailed landscape plan and irrigation plan shall be consistent with all 
applicable requirements of the Municipal Code including Chapter 17.44. 
The detailed landscape plan shall ensure that: 
 


a. All shrubs shall be a minimum 5-gallon size.  
 


b. Light-colored, high albedo materials or vegetation shall be 
installed for at least fifty percent of all sidewalks, patios, and 
driveways. Specific design material information and specifications 
for the permeable pavers and crushed rock shall be included 
within the final landscape plan. 
 


c. High water use turf grasses and other similar plantings shall only 
be utilized in high-use areas with high visibility or functional 
needs. When only drought-tolerant turf grasses are used, the turf 
area shall be limited to twenty-five percent (25%) of all irrigated, 
landscaped areas. When non-drought-tolerant turf grasses or a 
combination of non-drought-tolerant and drought-tolerant turf 


Permits 
 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        6 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


grasses is used, the turf area shall be limited to fifteen percent 
(15%) of all irrigated, landscaped areas. 
 


d. At least twenty-five percent (25%) of the lot area and no more 
than forty percent (40%) of the front yard area shall be non-
pervious surface. Additionally, at least ninety percent (90%) of the 
plants selected in non-turf areas shall be well suited to the climate 
of the region and require minimal water once established. Up to 
ten percent (10%) of the plants may be of a non-drought-tolerant 
variety, provided they are grouped together and can be irrigated 
separately 
 


e. Tree protection measures provided by a certified arborist shall be 
included in the landscape plan, if applicable.   


10.  WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPING – The landscape plans shall 
identify the total landscaped area for each of the lots and demonstrate 
compliance with the State Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance 
requirements (California Code of Regulations Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 
2.7), including any required documentation based on the Ordinance. 
Projects with an aggregate landscape area of 2,500 square feet or less 
may show compliance by conforming to the requirements of and 
completing Appendix D under California Code of Regulations Title 23, 
Division 2, Chapter 2.7. The landscape plans shall also include a table 
showing proposed plants and their water use designation based on the 
Water Use Classification of Landscape Species (WUCOLS) database. 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        7 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


 


11.  TREE PROTECTION - The applicant shall implement the recommended 
tree protection measures in the arborist reports prepared by Arborwell, 
dated January 14, 2016 and April 18, 2018. Any revisions to tree 
protection and tree removal details described in the arborist reports shall 
be submitted to the Planning Manager for review prior to work affecting 
trees in the field.  


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


12.  LIGHTING PLAN - The applicant shall prepare and submit a lighting plan 
for review and approval to the Development Services Department prior to 
the issuance of the building permit. The lighting plan shall include 
specifications for all proposed exterior light fixtures. Light fixtures 
selected shall include shields to project light downward and to prevent 
light spill-over onto adjacent properties. All proposed exterior lighting 
specifications and cut sheet details and finishes shall be included on the 
building plans. The Lighting Plan shall include the road and 100 ft in each 
direction to determine if a streetlight is warranted.  
 
  


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


13.  DRAINAGE PLANS - The applicant shall prepare a construction drainage 
plan and final drainage plan for Development Services Department 
review and approval. The construction drainage plan will show how 
drainage will be handled during construction. The final drainage plan will 
show how drainage will be handled from impervious surfaces after 
construction is completed. 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        8 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


 


14.  UNDERGROUNDING UTILITIES – The developer shall underground all 
utility services, if feasible, including telephone facilities, electric power, 
fire alarm conduits, street lighting wiring, cable television and other wiring 
conduits, and similar facilities, as per Chapter 17.50 of the Municipal 
Code. Undergrounding utilities shall be acknowledged in the plan set 
prior to building permit issuance and completed during construction/prior 
to occupancy. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits; and 


During 
Construction  


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


15.  PERMITS REQUIRED BY OTHER AGENCIES - The applicant shall 
obtain all permits that may be required by any other agencies, which may 
include pipeline and utility companies. If the project is within jurisdiction of 
any of these agencies, verification of permit or waiver of permit must be 
given to the Development Services Department prior to issuance of any 
City permits. If the City is required to be party to the permit and an 
application and fee is required, the applicant shall reimburse the City for 
its cost. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


16.  STAGING PLAN - Prior to the issuance of a construction permit, the 
applicant shall submit staging plan detailing how the applicant shall 
comply with storage of all materials, truck deliveries and all other 
appropriate sections of the Pinole Municipal Code and conditions of 
approval, as appropriate. This plan shall be submitted to the Planning 


Prior to 
Issuance of a 
Construction 


Permit 
 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        9 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


Manager for review and approval. 
 


17.  PRE-CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN - The applicant 
shall complete a pre-construction waste management plan prior to the 
issuance of the building permit.   


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


18.  MATERIAL HAULING   - The applicant shall submit a proposed material 
hauling route and schedule, if needed, for City Engineer review and 
approval. The hauling route shall be included on the building construction 
plans. The City Engineer prior to issuance of a building or site 
development permit shall review and approve said submittal. All material 
hauling activities including, but not limited to, adherence to approved 
route, hours of operation, dust control and street maintenance shall be 
the responsibility of the applicant (as per Section 15.36.080 of the 
Municipal Code). Violation of the applicable may be cause for suspension 
of work. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


19.  PERMITS, BONDS, AND INSURANCE - The applicant shall obtain an 
encroachment permit, posting the required bonds and insurance, for any 
work to be done in the City’s right-of-way. This encroachment permit shall 
be obtained prior to the issuance of a building permit and prior to any 
work being done in the City’s right-of-way. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department  


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        10 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


20.  WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM   - Prior to issuance of a building permit there 
shall be an approved and tested water supply system capable of 
supplying the required fire flow as determined by the Fire Chief or Fire 
Marshall. Water supply system for staged construction, if applicable, shall 
provide required fire flows at all stages. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Fire 
Department 


 


21.  DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES AND SCHOOL FEES– The applicant 
shall pay all applicable development impact fees and show payment of 
school fees to the school district, prior to issuance of the building permit.  


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


22.  INFRASTRUCTURE WORK - Prior to the issuance of the first building 
permit for a new dwelling, the plans for infrastructure improvements, 
including road and utility work, shall be reviewed and approved by the 
City Engineer. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


23.  PUMP STATION - Prior to the approval of a Final Parcel Map, the 
applicant shall submit to the Development Service Director, a detailed 
plan as to how the existing sewer pump station will be converted from 
being served from an overhead electrical line to an underground service. 
The plan shall include details of how this change over and all site 
construction will be completed without an interruption of sewer service. 
 


Prior to Final 
Parcel Map 
Approval 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


 During Construction and Prior to Occupancy 
 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        11 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


24.  CONSTRUCTION CONTACT – A construction contact person’s name, 
mobile phone number, and email address shall be posted on the project 
site during the duration of construction.  
 


During 
Construction  


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


25.  ADDRESS MARKING - The property address shall be clearly marked 
during the project construction process. 
 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


26.  INSPECTIONS - The applicant shall notify the Development Services  
Department at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to starting any work  
pertaining to on-site drainage facilities, grading, or paving, as well as   
any work in the City’s right-of-way as per Section 15.36.230 of the 
Municipal Code.  
 
The applicant shall arrange all inspections with the Building Division, Fire 
Department, and Public Works Division.  All Building Division inspection 
requests shall be made at least 24 hours in advance. 
 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


27.  CERTIFIED GRADED PAD - A California-Licensed Engineer shall certify 
that the graded construction pad for the proposed dwelling unit has been 
adequately compacted and designed to support the proposed dwelling 
unit to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 
 


During 
Construction 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


28.  CONSTRUCTION SITE MANAGEMENT - The building permit holder 
shall ensure the following provisions to control noise, dust, and 
construction debris nuisance occur during construction: 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        12 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


 
A. Building construction activities shall occur only between 7:00A.M. and 


5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday on non-federal holidays. Interior 
construction work may occur between 9:00A.M. and 6:00P.M. on 
weekends if requested and approved by the City as allowed under 
Chapter 15.02 of the City Municipal Code. 


 
B. All construction vehicles shall be properly maintained and equipped 


with exhaust mufflers and meet State and Federal standards. 
 


C. Newly disturbed soil surfaces shall be watered down regularly 
throughout the day and any construction grading activity shall be 
discontinued in wind conditions greater than 10 miles per hour. 


 
D. Construction activities shall be scheduled so that paving and 


foundation placement begin immediately upon completion of grading 
operation. 


 
E. All excavated or silty materials shall be covered with a tarp during 


transit to and from the site. 
 


F. All construction debris shall be covered with a tarp during transit from 
the site.  


 
G. The construction site shall be maintained in an orderly fashion and 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        13 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


litter shall be contained and properly disposed of on a daily basis. 
 


29.  SITE MAINTENANCE - The construction site shall be cleaned of garbage 
and debris on a daily basis and maintained in an orderly fashion. All 
construction equipment shall be secured at the end of each day of 
construction. 
 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


30.  ACCESS TO HAZEL STREET - Project construction vehicles and 
vehicles belonging to construction workers shall not block access to 
Hazel Street or any other public roadway.  
 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


31.  POST-CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT Report - The applicant 
shall complete a post-construction waste management report prior to 
issuance of a certificate of occupancy.   


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Development 
Services 


Department  


 


32.  FIRE PROTECTION - Prior to issuance of a “Certificate of Occupancy” or 
final building inspection, approved fire prevention features shall be 
installed as required by the Fire Prevention Bureau. 
 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Fire 
Department 


 


33.  FIRE PREVENTION FEES AND INSPECTION - Prior to issuance of a 
“Certificate of Occupancy” or final building inspection, the applicant shall 
pay all applicable fees in accordance with the Master Fee Schedule 
adopted by the City of Pinole and obtain all required inspections from the 
Fire Prevention Bureau.   


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Fire 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-18 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        14 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
September 28, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


34.  ADDRESSING - Prior to issuance of a “Certificate of Occupancy” or final 
building inspection approved illuminated numbers and addresses shall be 
installed on the new residence in compliance with Section 15.02.050 of 
the Municipal Code. 
 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


35.  SIDEWALK, CURB AND GUTTER REPAIR - The applicant shall repair 
and replace to existing City standards, any sidewalk, curb and gutter 
abutting the project site. 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Development 
Services 


Department  


 


36.  Timing of construction shall be coordinated with City off-site drainage 
improvement. Such improvements must be completed prior to building of 
applicant furnished infrastructure 


   


 







ATTACHMENT B







HAZEL STREET 


PARCEL   B
36 PM 16


19


18


SUBDIVISION   3319
MB 104  PG 40


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PARCEL  A
23 PM 17


LOT  1 LOT  2 LOT  3 LOT  4


AERIAL VIEW FRONT VIEW


CODE COMPLIANCE & BLDG DATA


1. PROPOSED 1,205 SF LIVING SPACE AT GROUND FLOOR & 1,025 SF AT SECOND FLOOR


SCOPE OF WORK


2. PROPOSED 2-CAR GARAGE WITH APPROX. AREA OF 434 SF.


3. PROPOSED 90 SF FRONT PATIO, 171 SF BACK PATIO


1068 TURQUOISE DR., HERCULES, CA


BALJIT DHALIWAL


OWNER


APN


6,001 SFPROPERTY AREA


402-013-060


ZONING R1- SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL


V - NTYPE CONSTRUCTION


R-1, U-1
OCCUPANCY GROUPS


6,000


F.A.R. 2,172


=  0.362


GARAGE AREA


434


FIRST FLOOR LEVEL 1,205


SECOND FLOOR LEVEL 1,025


PORCHES & BALCONIES- 1ST FLOOR LEVEL 261


PORCHES & BALCONIES- 2ND FLOOR LEVEL NA


GENERAL NOTES


A1.0


A1.2


COVER SHEET, AREA MAP/ PARCEL MAP & OTHER INFO


PLOT PLAN & PROFILE SECTION


A2.0


A3.0


A4.0


GROUND & SECOND FLOOR PLANS


ELEVATIONS


L1.0 CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN, FENCING PLAN


VICINITY MAP


LOCATION MAP


SITE


HAZEL ST., PINOLE,


CA. 94564


SITE


HAZEL ST., PINOLE,


CA. 94564


A1.0


G
E


N
E


R
A


L 
N


O
TE


S
,


VI
C


IN
IT


Y 
M


A
P


, I
N


FO
,


E
TC


.


LOT - 1


SF


SF


SF


SF


2016 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE (CBC 2016)


A1.1 OVERALL SITE PLAN


C1


C2


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY


GRADING, DRAINAGE, & UTILITY PLAN


DRAWING INDEX


SECTIONS / ROOF PLAN


C3 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


A0.1 PERSPECTIVE (LOTS #1,2,3 & 4)


DHALI-BALI DEVELOPMENT
LOT #1 - MODEL #1


HAZEL ST., PINOLE, CA. 94564


A5.0
WINDOW VISIBILITY LOCATION PLANS (LOTS 1,2,3,4)


ATTACHMENT C



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN CASE OF DISCREPANCIES OR CONFLICTS IN INFORMATION OR REQUIREMENTS  WITHIN THE DRAWINGS, WITHIN THE SPECIFICATIONS, OR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS  AND THE SPECIFICATIONS, THE MOST EXPENSIVE REQUIREMENT SHOWN OR SPECIFIED SHALL BE THE BASIS OF THE CONTRACT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHOULD CONFLICTS OCCUR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS,  DRAWINGS SHALL GOVERN IN MATTERS OF DIMENSION OR QUANTITY; SPECIFICATIONS SHALL GOVERN IN MATTERS OF MATERIALS OR FINISHES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE EVENT CERTAIN FEATURES OF THE CONSTRUCTION ARE NOT FULLY SHOWN  ON THE DRAWINGS OR CALLED FOR IN THE NOTES OR SPECIFICATIONS, THEN THEIR  CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE OF THE SAME CHARACTER AS FOR SIMILAR CONDITIONS  THAT ARE SHOWN OR CALLED FOR.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DIMENSIONS SHALL GOVERN ON WORKING DRAWINGS.  DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2. %%UREADING THE PLANS



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL CONTRACTORS WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE 2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING, AND FIRE CODES, AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT,  AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE CODES, OR THOSE ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF PINOLE, CALIFORNIA.  GOVERNING AUTHORITIES AND CODES TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER DRAWINGS  AND SPECIFICATIONS.  REPORT DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

1. %%UCODES



AutoCAD SHX Text

VERIFY DIMENSIONS, GRADES, ELEVATIONS AND CRITICAL LOCATIONS, SUCH AS  STRUCTURAL SUPPORTS, BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AFFECTED BY THEM.  THE  CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CIVIL ENGINEER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING THE FOLLOWING  INFORMATION:



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL THOROUGHLY REVIEW PLANS AND EXISTING SITE  CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND GRADING, VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AND  CONTACT UTILITY COMPANIES AND AFFECTED CITY AGENCIES.  CONTACT  "UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT" PHONE: (800) 642-2444.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

4) SITE DIMENSION AND SETBACKS



AutoCAD SHX Text

3) SIZES AND TYPE OF CURB AND GUTTERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

2) ALL SITE DRAINAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

1) FINISHED AND EXISTING GRADES



AutoCAD SHX Text

4. %%USITE WORK



AutoCAD SHX Text

3. %%UPRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME SOLE RESPONSIBILITY FOR SAFETY ON OR ABOUT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND CODE, AND SHALL OBSERVE SAFETY PROVISIONS OF THE LATEST MANUAL OF ACCIDENT PREVENTION PUBLISHED BY THE ASSOCIATION OF GENERAL CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA.



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXTERIOR OPENINGS OF THE WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL SECURITY  REQUIREMENTS AS OUTLINED IN ALL LOCAL BUILDING CODES AND ORDINANCES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM ALL WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL.  THE APPROVED PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS SHALL NOT BE CHANGED OR MODIFIED WITHOUT THE APPROVAL OF THE BUILDING OFFICIAL PER SECTION 106 OF THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT TO THE ARCHITECT INCONSISTENCIES HE MAY DISCOVER.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CORRECTING ANY ERROR AFTER THE START OF CONSTRUCTION WHICH HAS NOT BEEN BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT.  THE MEANS OF CORRECTING ANY ERROR SHALL BE FIRST APPROVED BY THE OWNER.



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL ALL MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS IN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH  MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATION AND APPLICABLE ICBO REPORTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PERFORMING ALL WORK REQUIRED  FOR A COMPLETELY FINISHED PROJECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL WORK FURNISHED BY SUBCONTRACTORS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEITHER THE ARCHITECT, NOR THE ENGINEERS, NOR THE OWNER SHALL BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR:  CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHODS, TECHNIQUES, SEQUENCES, OR  PROCEDURES OF THE CONTRACTOR; SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS OF THE  CONTRACTOR; THE ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF CONTRACTOR; OR THE FAILURE OF  CONTRACTOR TO CARRY OUT THE WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONTRACT  DOCUMENTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

H)



AutoCAD SHX Text

G)



AutoCAD SHX Text

F)



AutoCAD SHX Text

E)



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

5. %%UCONSTRUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO STRUCTURAL MEMBERS SHALL BE CUT TO ACCEPT PIPES, VENTS, DUCTS, ETC.,  EXCEPT AS DETAILED OR SPECIFIED HEREIN OR AS APPROVED BY THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER IN WRITING.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TEMPORARY PROJECT OFFICE, TELEPHONE, FAX MACHINE, SECURITY FENCE, WATER, POWER, AND TOILET FACILITIES.  COORDINATE LOCATIONS WITH ALL APPROPRIATE AGENCIES.  CONTRACTOR'S FIELD OFFICE SHALL ALSO CONTAIN A CURRENT COPY OF GOVERNING BUILDING CODE(S).



AutoCAD SHX Text

IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE ALL EXISTING  UTILITIES, WHETHER SHOWN HEREIN OR NOT, AND TO PROTECT THEM FROM DAMAGE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BEAR ALL THE EXPENSE FOR REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF UTILITIES AND/OR OTHER PROPERTY DAMAGED BY OPERATIONS IN CONJUNCTIONS WITH THE EXECUTION OF WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

6. %%UJOB SITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE SITE IN A CLEAN AND ORDERLY MANNER.  NO  RADIOS, ALCOHOL, OR CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ARE ALLOWED ON THE JOB SITE.  ALL DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM PREMISES, AND ALL AREAS SHALL BE LEFT IN A BROOM-CLEAN CONDITION ON A DAILY BASIS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMPLETE SECURITY OF THE SITE  WHILE THE JOB IS IN PROGRESS AND UNTIL THE JOB IS COMPLETE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY APPROVED PLANS SHALL BE KEPT IN A PLAN BOX IN THE FIELD OFFICE AND SHALL NOT BE USED BY WORKERS.  ALL CONSTRUCTION SETS SHALL BE KEPT UP TO DATE, AND REFLECT THE SAME INFORMATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SETS SHALL REFLECT THE SAME INFORMATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO MAINTAIN, IN GOOD CONDITION, ONE COMPLETE SET OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS WITH ALL REVISIONS, ADDENDA, AND CHANGE ORDERS ON THE PREMISES AT ALL TIMES.  THESE ARE TO BE UNDER THE  CARE OF THE JOB SUPERINTENDENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

E)



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE OR MAKE AVAILABLE A COMPLETE SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS (INCLUDING DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS)  TO EVERY SUBCONTRACTOR BIDDING ANY PORTION OF THIS PROJECT.  THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE SEPARATED INTO DISCIPLINES (ARCHITECTURAL, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, ETC.), FOR PURPOSE OF SUBCONTRACTOR BIDDING.  THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL REQUIRE BIDDING SUBCONTRACTOR TO REVIEW THE ENTIRE SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS TO OBTAIN CLARITY ON THE COMPLETE SCOPE OF THEIR WORK AND REFER TO CROSS DISCIPLINE DRAWINGS FOR FULL COORDINATION OF WORK WITH OTHER TRADES, AND TO BE AWARE OF ALL WORK WHICH DOES NOT APPEAR WITHIN THE PARTICULAR DISCIPLINE'S DRAWINGS FOR THE PARTICULAR TRADE.  FURTHERMORE, THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL INSURE THAT EACH SUBCONTRACTOR WORKING ON THE PROJECT MAINTAINS A FULL SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIELD CONFIRMATION OF DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE RECORDED ON A REPRODUCIBLE  DOCUMENT AND IMMEDIATELY TRANSMITTED TO ARCHITECT FOR PROJECT RECORD,  COORDINATION, AND NECESSARY RESOLUTION PRIOR TO CONTINUING WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

7. %%UCOMMUNICATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST OWNER IN OBTAINING "CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY"  OR "OCCUPANCY PERMIT" AS NECESSARY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

ONE SET OF EQUIPMENT OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS PER UNIT SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO OWNER UPON COMPLETION OF PROJECT, PRIOR TO REQUEST FOR FINAL PAYMENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

8. %%UCOMPLETION



AutoCAD SHX Text

THESE NOTES ARE ARRANGED ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING DIVISIONS AS A CONVENIENCE TO THE CONTRACTOR.  GENERAL NOTES ARE NOT LIMITED BY THEIR DIVISION HEADING AND APPLY AS NECESSARY THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE PROJECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI
NG


 E
NG


IN
EE


RS
, 


IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4


FRONT ELEVATIONS


AT STREET ELEVATION


AERIAL PERSPECTIVE
A0.1


PE
R


SP
EC


TI
V


E


NOTE:


THE DRAWINGS / PERSPECTIVE SHOWN HERE


ARE GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATION ONLY &


NOT TO SCALE.


FOR ACTUAL SIZE OF LOT DEVELOPMENT, SEE


SHEET A.1



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)


PARCEL   B
AREA = 24,572 SF.


36 PM 16


N 4996.4253
E 5386.0234


N 4968.2376
E 5190.1768


N 4967.6270
E 5256.1212


N 4977.6265
E 5256.2138


N 4978.0870
E 5206.2487


N 5018.0871
E 5206.4097


6" SS 


2


34


5


6


7


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


50


35


30


40


28


40


45


(E) SSMH


W W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


S


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


(E) CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


(E) PP


S


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


PARCEL   C
36 PM 1615' SEWER EASEMENT


3628 O.R. 38


SEWER EASEMENT
3628 O.R. 354'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


AREA = 10,688 SF.


S00°31'50"W
40.00'


NORTH


CONTRA COSTA COUNTY RECORDS TAKEN AS NORTH 00°31'50" EAST.
THE  MONUMENT LINE ALONG DUTRA COURT AS SHOWN ON TRACT 3319 BK 104 PG 40
BASIS OF BEARINGS


0 10 20 30


SCALE   1" = 10'


1.   PARCEL MAP  36 PM 16
REFERENCES


MONUMENT LINE


PROPERTY LINE


LEGEND & ABBREVIATIONS


3.   TRACT 3319 BK 104 PG 40
2.   PARCEL MAP  23 PM 17


ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE


C-1


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


SHEET INDEX


SHEET NO SHEET CONTENT


C-1


C-2


TOPOGRAPHIC PLAN


GRADING AND
DRAINAGE PLAN
UTILITY PLAN


ELECT ELECTRIC  BOX


TELEPHONETEL


FS FIRE SERVICE RISER


FIRE HYDRANTFH


WV WATER VALVE
WM WATER METER


TRAFFIC LIGHTTLGT


BOLLARDBLD


TRAFFIC CONTROL BOXTCB


UTILITY BOXUBX


PST POST


LP, LPST LIGHT POST


HANDICAPPEDHC


CATCH BASINCB


STREET SIGNSSN


PRCH PORCH


IRV IRRIGATION VALVE


PLANTERPLT


FACE OF SIDEWALKFW


YL YELLOW LINE (STRIPING)


BUILDING CORNER, BACK OF CURBBC


SANITARY SEWER MANHOLESSMH


FLOW LINEFL


SS SANITARY SEWER
STRIPINGSTR


AC   ASPHALT CONCRETE
AP   ANGLE POINT


FOUNDFND


FENCE CORNERFC
FENCEF


TREE & DIAMETER


WOOD


CONCRETE


WD


T-12"Ø


CC


RIGHT OF WAYROW
RAILROAD SPIKERRS


GROUNDG


CALC CALCULATED


EP EDGE OF PAVEMENT


CL CENTER LINE


san pablo ave


hazel ave.


80 FREEWAY


AP
PI


AN
 W


AY


PINON AVESITE


VICINITY PLAN


CITY OF PINOLE


NTS


NORTH


C-3 STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT PLAN


SHEET   1  OF  3


021918



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.92



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)
6" SS 


PARCEL   A
36 PM 16


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


PARCEL   4


PARCEL   3


PARCEL   2


PARCEL   1


PARCEL   C
36 PM 16


47.40' 47.40' 47.40' 47.61'


47.40'
47.40'


56.17'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


50


35


30


40


28


25


40


45


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


RESIDENCE #3


RESIDENCE #2


RESIDENCE #1


RESIDENCE #4


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


20' CONCRETE DRIVEWAY
20'CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


4' (N) CONCRETE WALK


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


PORCHPORCH


PORCH


PORCH


DECK


DECK


DECK


DECK


5.00


5.00


6.40
5'


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


47.40'


38
'


6.40'


5'


20' 20' 20'
20'


(E) SSMH


W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


END OF (E)
SIDEWALK BEGIN OF (N)


SIDEWALK


4' (N) CONC SIDEWALK (N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


(E) CURB & GUTTER


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K
RE


AR
 S


ET
BA


CK


RE
AR


 S
ET


BA
CK


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CURB & GUTTER


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


SS SS
SS SS SS


SS S


SS


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


A = 6001 SF


A = 6001 SF


A = 6001 SF


A = 6569 SF


0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50
1+90.82


(E) CURB & GUTTER


BEGIN OF (N)
CURB & GUTTER


37.83'


SSCO


65
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T.


SSCO


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


SSCO


(E) PP


SSCO


51
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


43
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


42
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


W W W W W W W


(E) PP TO BE
RELOCATED


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


WM
1"FS


1"WS


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


WM
1"FS


1"WS


WM
1"fs


1"WS


WM
1" FS


1" WS


E


G


E


G


E


G
E


G


(TO BE REMOVE)


G G G G


4'-2" RETAINING WALL


4'-4" RETAINING WALL


FF 28.00


FF 29.00


FF 30.00


FF 30.00


FC TO FC


( TO BE PIPE BY DEVELOPER )


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


(TO BE REINFORCED)S


FF 27.85


FF 27.85


FF 28.85


FF 28.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


19.78'
TRANSITION


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


(E) PP TO BE
RELOCATED


END OF (E)
AC PAVEMENT


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


6.40'


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


BEGIN (N) AC 
 PAVEMENT


DRAINAGE TRENCH
TO BE PIPE BY 
DEVELOPER


 ± 38' WIDE HAZEL STREET WITH 3"
THICK AC PAVEMENT WITH SUB BASE
AT 95% RC PER SOIL'S REPORT
RECOMMENDATION


(E) VENTILATION
PIPE ( TO BE RELOCATED)


(E) EBMUD


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


VERIFY LOCATION OF GAS LINE


6.17'
6'


GARAGE


GARAGE


GARAGE


GARAGE
FF 27.00


FF 28.00


FF 29.00


FF 29.00


(TO BE REMOVE)
(TO BE RELOCATED)


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


4'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


S00°31'50"W


40.00'


8.48'


47.34
SIDE


SETBACK


NO SIDEWALK
ON THIS SIDE


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


33
.2


0


23
.0


4


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K
23


.3
2


31
.9


4


42
.1


6


50
.1


0
RE


AR
 S


ET
BA


CK


46
.4


7


RE
AR


 S
ET


BA
CK


3'-10" RETAINING WALL


7'-0" RETAINING WALL


6'-0" RETAINING WALL


3'-0" RETAINING WALL 5'-0" RETAINING WALL


NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


MONUMENT LINE


PROPERTY LINE


LEGEND :


ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE


C-2


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


GRADING PLAN


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


DRAINAGE PLAN
UTILITY PLAN


KLC CONSULTING ENGINEERS
ENGINEER


TEL  (510) 232-0300
11100 SAN PABLO AVENUE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530


FAX  (510) 232-0303


BALJIT DHALIWAL
OWNER / APPLICANT


1068 TORQUISE DRIVE, HERCULES, CA 94547


HAZEL STREET, PINOLE, CA
PROPERTY ADDRESS


402-013-060
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.


RESIDENTIAL
EXISTING AND PROPOSED ZONING


WEST COUNTY WASTE WATER DISTRICT
SANITARY SEWER


EAST BAY MUNICIPAL DISTRICT
WATER SERVICE


PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
GAS AND ELECTRIC


PINOLE FIRE DEPARTMENT
FIRE PROTECTION


PARCEL B ( 36 PM 16 )  A = 24,572 SF
TOTAL AREA TO BE DIVIDED


SHEET  2  OF  3


38'
PL PL


6' 6'


SECTION 
HAZEL STREET


SCALE  1"=10'


AC PAVEMENT


SUB BASE SHALL CONFORM TO SOIL'S
REPORT RECOMMENDATION AND
COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS


2%


& GUTTER
CONC. CURB


021918



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)
6" SS 


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


50


35


30


40


28


40


45


(E) SSMH


W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


S


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50
1+90.82


(E) CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


(E) PP


4'-2" RETAINING WALL


4'-4" RETAINING WALL


S


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


DMA #1 = 1863 SF


DMA #3 = 1861 SF


DMA #5 = 1836 SF


DMA #7 = 1858 SF


DMA #2 = 862 SF
DMA #4 = 602 SF


DMA #6 = 450 SF


DMA #8 = 680 SF


landscape landscape landscape landscape


4'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


S00°31'50"W


40.00'


3'-10" RETAINING WALL


7'-0" RETAINING WALL


6'-0" RETAINING WALL


3'-0" RETAINING WALL 5'-0" RETAINING WALL


NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


C-3


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


STORM WATER


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


MANAGEMENT PLAN


SURFACE TYPE


IMPERVIOUS AREA CALCULATIONS


DMA #2 =  862 SF
DMA #1 = 1,863 SF


PARCEL 2  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #4 =  602 SF
DMA #3 = 1,861 SF


PARCEL 3  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #6 =  450 SF
DMA #5 = 1,836 SF


PARCEL 4  A = 6,568 SF


DMA #8 =  680 SF
DMA #7 = 1,858 SF


TOTAL LOT AREA = 24,572 ~ 0.564 AC. 


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


2,725 SF


2,462 SF


2,286 SF


2,538 SF


PARCEL 1  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #


SHEET  3  OF  3 


IMPERVIOUS AREA


NOTE


PARCEL 2, PARCEL 3 AND PARCEL 4 SHALL BE DIVERTED TO THEIR RESPECTIVE
ALL RUNOFF WATER COMING FROM THE ROOF AND DRIVEWAYS FOR PARCEL 1, 


LANDSCAPE AREAS AND OTHER PERVIOUS AREA LOCATION.


PERVIOUS AREA


3,276 SF


3,539 SF


3,715 SF


4,030 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4







N
05°08'30"E


50.16'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


HAZEL STREET 


PARCEL B
36 PM 16


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PARCEL  A
23 PM 17


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


LOT #1


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


50


35


30


40


28


25


40


45


4' CONCRETE WALK


CONC CURB & GUTTER


PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40'
PROPERTY LINE 47.61'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


N
05°08'30"E


   127.01' 


PROPERTY LINE 56.17'


LOT #2 LOT #3


LOT #4
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE NEW 2-STORY


RESIDENCE


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


A1.1


S
IT


E
 P


LA
N


LOT - 1


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS TREE CONDITION



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILL BE UPDATED



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY THEE ARBORIST 



AutoCAD SHX Text

(E) TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO REMAIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED LOCATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

OF %%P4'-0" HIGH RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

(OWNERS OPTION - WOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

OR CONCRETE)



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







1


LOT - 1   PLOT PLAN


28


P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE  S89°28'10"E 47.40'


P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE   N89°28'10"W  47.40'


2
-


1
-


1


2


A1.2


P
LO


T 
P


LA
N


LOT - 1


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT CROSS SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING  GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:28.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:27.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:27.20



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

HAZEL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N) 2-STORY RESIDENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALKWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALKWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE OR



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOOD RET. WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'-2" HIGH MAX.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING  GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:28.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:27.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:27.20



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT CROSS SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

GAZEBO



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







3680


A2.0


FL
O


O
R


 P
LA


N
S


LOT - 1


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2280



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

SETTEE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LINEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

WIC



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

3680



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

6048 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

(EGRESS)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2436



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING W/  ARCH TOP



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

WH



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

CU



AutoCAD SHX Text

2436



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET BAR



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

154



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATH 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

51 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAUNDRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

57 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

TWO CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

458 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

LIVING



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

DINING



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

90 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATTIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

171 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

DW



AutoCAD SHX Text

FAMILY ROOM 



AutoCAD SHX Text

KITCHEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

90 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2280



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

3640 SH



AutoCAD SHX Text

3648 SH



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

3636SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

3648SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6060 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4836 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2436



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2436



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

5050 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

1248 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

1248 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

416 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

65 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

65 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

382 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

134 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

139 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

136 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

15 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

290 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

100 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

97 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

62 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

PANTRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

UNDER STAIRS



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A3.0


E
LE


VA
TI


O
N


S


LOT - 1


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CULTURED STONE BY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BORAL (OR EQUIVALENT)



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CHARDONAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

W/ PLAIN WINDOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOPAY VALUE SERIES- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL RAILING



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAINTED: BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIGHT SIDE  ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAUNDRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATHROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIN GR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIN GR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIN GR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

REAR ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOAM LOUVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL NFD 303L



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY NEW FOAM DESIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TOFEE CRUNCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CHESTNUT BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE:  FOAM TRIMS 



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY STYROTRIM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: COBBLESTONE



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: BOOTHBAY BLUE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARCADIA SHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: BARKWOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: SANTA FE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A4.0


S
E


C
TI


O
N


S
 / 


R
O


O
F


P
LA


N


LOT - 1


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

UPPER ROOF PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM-3



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION A



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION B



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LIVING ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

KITCHEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOSET



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A5.0


W
IN


D
O


W
 V


IS
IB


IL
IT


Y
P


R
IV


A
C


Y 
FR


O
M


N
E


IG
H


B
O


R
IN


G
 U


N
IT


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4
2ND FLOOR
PLAN


GROUND
FLOOR PLAN


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







28


LOT -1


CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN


1


28


FENCING PLAN


2


TYPICAL FENCE DETAIL


3 L.1


C
O


N
C


E
P


TU
A


L
LA


N
D


S
C


A
P


E
 P


LA
N


.


LOT - 1


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.



AutoCAD SHX Text

MEXICAN BEACH PEBBLES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULTICOLORED COLEUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDY BLUE PLUMBAGO



AutoCAD SHX Text

SWEET WOODRUFF



AutoCAD SHX Text

CASCADES IN PLANTBOXES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MEXICAN BEACH PEBBLES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

REDWOOD RUBBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

REDWOOD RUBBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLAGSTONE OR PAVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERVIOUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMPED CONCRETE DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIVACY TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BLUE SAPPHIRE CYPRES



AutoCAD SHX Text

(5'-0" DIA MAX EACH TREE)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(EXTREMELY DROUGHT TOLERANT &



AutoCAD SHX Text

FAST GROWING)



AutoCAD SHX Text

DROUGHT TOLERANT JAPANESE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOXWOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

PALM TREE (CYCAS REVOLUTA) 4'-0" HT



AutoCAD SHX Text

DROUGHT TOLERANT LAVENDER



AutoCAD SHX Text

(LAVANDULA ANGUSTIFOLIA)



AutoCAD SHX Text

& MIXTURE OF SUCCULENTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYPICAL WOODEN TERRACES



AutoCAD SHX Text

GAZEBO



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HAZEL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/2"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE
LOT #1


HAZEL ST.,


PINOLE, CA., 94564



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOAM LOUVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL NFD 303L



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY NEW FOAM DESIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TOFEE CRUNCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARCADIA SHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: BARKWOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CULTURED STONE BY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BORAL (OR EQUIVALENT)



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CHARDONAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: SANTA FE



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CHESTNUT BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE:  FOAM TRIMS 



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: COBBLESTONE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

W/ PLAIN WINDOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOPAY VALUE SERIES- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL RAILING



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAINTED: BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIN GR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: WHITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: BOOTHBAY BLUE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY STYROTRIM







HAZEL STREET 


PARCEL   B
36 PM 16


19


18


SUBDIVISION   3319
MB 104  PG 40


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PARCEL  A
23 PM 17


LOT  1 LOT  2 LOT  3 LOT  4


AERIAL VIEW FRONT VIEW


CODE COMPLIANCE & BLDG DATA


SCOPE OF WORK GENERAL NOTES


VICINITY MAP


LOCATION MAP


SITE


HAZEL ST., PINOLE,


CA. 94564


SITE


HAZEL ST., PINOLE,


CA. 94564


A1.0


G
E


N
E


R
A


L 
N


O
TE


S
,


VI
C


IN
IT


Y 
M


A
P


, I
N


FO
,


E
TC


.


LOT - 2


DRAWING INDEX


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


1. PROPOSED 1,205 SF LIVING SPACE AT GROUND FLOOR & 1,025 SF AT SECOND FLOOR


2. PROPOSED 2-CAR GARAGE WITH APPROX. AREA OF 461 SF.


3. PROPOSED 90 SF FRONT PATIO, 117 SF BACK PATIO


1068 TURQUOISE DR., HERCULES, CA


BALJIT DHALIWAL


OWNER


APN


6,001 SFPROPERTY AREA


402-013-060


ZONING R1- SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL


V - NTYPE CONSTRUCTION


R-1, U-1
OCCUPANCY GROUPS


6,001


F.A.R. 2,165


=  0.360


GARAGE AREA


461


FIRST FLOOR LEVEL 1,205


SECOND FLOOR LEVEL 1,025


PORCHES & BALCONIES- 1ST FLOOR LEVEL 207


PORCHES & BALCONIES- 2ND FLOOR LEVEL NA


SF


SF


SF


SF


2016 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE (CBC 2016)


L
O


T
 
#
2


DHALI-BALI DEVELOPMENT
LOT #2 - MODEL #2


HAZEL ST., PINOLE, CA. 94564


A1.0


A1.2


COVER SHEET, AREA MAP/ PARCEL MAP & OTHER INFO


PLOT PLAN & PROFILE SECTION


A2.0


A3.0


A4.0


GROUND & SECOND FLOOR PLANS


ELEVATIONS


L1.0 CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN, FENCING PLAN


A1.1 OVERALL SITE PLAN


C1


C2


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY


GRADING, DRAINAGE, & UTILITY PLAN


SECTIONS / ROOF PLAN


C3 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN


A0.1 PERSPECTIVE (LOTS #1,2,3 & 4)


A5.0
WINDOW VISIBILITY LOCATION PLANS (LOTS 1,2,3,4)


ATTACHMENT D



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN CASE OF DISCREPANCIES OR CONFLICTS IN INFORMATION OR REQUIREMENTS  WITHIN THE DRAWINGS, WITHIN THE SPECIFICATIONS, OR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS  AND THE SPECIFICATIONS, THE MOST EXPENSIVE REQUIREMENT SHOWN OR SPECIFIED SHALL BE THE BASIS OF THE CONTRACT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHOULD CONFLICTS OCCUR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS,  DRAWINGS SHALL GOVERN IN MATTERS OF DIMENSION OR QUANTITY; SPECIFICATIONS SHALL GOVERN IN MATTERS OF MATERIALS OR FINISHES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE EVENT CERTAIN FEATURES OF THE CONSTRUCTION ARE NOT FULLY SHOWN  ON THE DRAWINGS OR CALLED FOR IN THE NOTES OR SPECIFICATIONS, THEN THEIR  CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE OF THE SAME CHARACTER AS FOR SIMILAR CONDITIONS  THAT ARE SHOWN OR CALLED FOR.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DIMENSIONS SHALL GOVERN ON WORKING DRAWINGS.  DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2. %%UREADING THE PLANS



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL CONTRACTORS WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE 2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING, AND FIRE CODES, AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT,  AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE CODES, OR THOSE ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF PINOLE, CALIFORNIA.  GOVERNING AUTHORITIES AND CODES TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER DRAWINGS  AND SPECIFICATIONS.  REPORT DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

1. %%UCODES



AutoCAD SHX Text

VERIFY DIMENSIONS, GRADES, ELEVATIONS AND CRITICAL LOCATIONS, SUCH AS  STRUCTURAL SUPPORTS, BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AFFECTED BY THEM.  THE  CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CIVIL ENGINEER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING THE FOLLOWING  INFORMATION:



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL THOROUGHLY REVIEW PLANS AND EXISTING SITE  CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND GRADING, VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AND  CONTACT UTILITY COMPANIES AND AFFECTED CITY AGENCIES.  CONTACT  "UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT" PHONE: (800) 642-2444.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

4) SITE DIMENSION AND SETBACKS



AutoCAD SHX Text

3) SIZES AND TYPE OF CURB AND GUTTERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

2) ALL SITE DRAINAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

1) FINISHED AND EXISTING GRADES



AutoCAD SHX Text

4. %%USITE WORK



AutoCAD SHX Text

3. %%UPRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME SOLE RESPONSIBILITY FOR SAFETY ON OR ABOUT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND CODE, AND SHALL OBSERVE SAFETY PROVISIONS OF THE LATEST MANUAL OF ACCIDENT PREVENTION PUBLISHED BY THE ASSOCIATION OF GENERAL CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA.



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXTERIOR OPENINGS OF THE WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL SECURITY  REQUIREMENTS AS OUTLINED IN ALL LOCAL BUILDING CODES AND ORDINANCES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM ALL WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL.  THE APPROVED PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS SHALL NOT BE CHANGED OR MODIFIED WITHOUT THE APPROVAL OF THE BUILDING OFFICIAL PER SECTION 106 OF THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT TO THE ARCHITECT INCONSISTENCIES HE MAY DISCOVER.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CORRECTING ANY ERROR AFTER THE START OF CONSTRUCTION WHICH HAS NOT BEEN BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT.  THE MEANS OF CORRECTING ANY ERROR SHALL BE FIRST APPROVED BY THE OWNER.



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL ALL MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS IN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH  MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATION AND APPLICABLE ICBO REPORTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PERFORMING ALL WORK REQUIRED  FOR A COMPLETELY FINISHED PROJECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL WORK FURNISHED BY SUBCONTRACTORS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEITHER THE ARCHITECT, NOR THE ENGINEERS, NOR THE OWNER SHALL BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR:  CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHODS, TECHNIQUES, SEQUENCES, OR  PROCEDURES OF THE CONTRACTOR; SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS OF THE  CONTRACTOR; THE ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF CONTRACTOR; OR THE FAILURE OF  CONTRACTOR TO CARRY OUT THE WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONTRACT  DOCUMENTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

H)



AutoCAD SHX Text

G)



AutoCAD SHX Text

F)



AutoCAD SHX Text

E)



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

5. %%UCONSTRUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO STRUCTURAL MEMBERS SHALL BE CUT TO ACCEPT PIPES, VENTS, DUCTS, ETC.,  EXCEPT AS DETAILED OR SPECIFIED HEREIN OR AS APPROVED BY THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER IN WRITING.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TEMPORARY PROJECT OFFICE, TELEPHONE, FAX MACHINE, SECURITY FENCE, WATER, POWER, AND TOILET FACILITIES.  COORDINATE LOCATIONS WITH ALL APPROPRIATE AGENCIES.  CONTRACTOR'S FIELD OFFICE SHALL ALSO CONTAIN A CURRENT COPY OF GOVERNING BUILDING CODE(S).



AutoCAD SHX Text

IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE ALL EXISTING  UTILITIES, WHETHER SHOWN HEREIN OR NOT, AND TO PROTECT THEM FROM DAMAGE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BEAR ALL THE EXPENSE FOR REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF UTILITIES AND/OR OTHER PROPERTY DAMAGED BY OPERATIONS IN CONJUNCTIONS WITH THE EXECUTION OF WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

6. %%UJOB SITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE SITE IN A CLEAN AND ORDERLY MANNER.  NO  RADIOS, ALCOHOL, OR CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ARE ALLOWED ON THE JOB SITE.  ALL DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM PREMISES, AND ALL AREAS SHALL BE LEFT IN A BROOM-CLEAN CONDITION ON A DAILY BASIS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMPLETE SECURITY OF THE SITE  WHILE THE JOB IS IN PROGRESS AND UNTIL THE JOB IS COMPLETE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY APPROVED PLANS SHALL BE KEPT IN A PLAN BOX IN THE FIELD OFFICE AND SHALL NOT BE USED BY WORKERS.  ALL CONSTRUCTION SETS SHALL BE KEPT UP TO DATE, AND REFLECT THE SAME INFORMATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SETS SHALL REFLECT THE SAME INFORMATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO MAINTAIN, IN GOOD CONDITION, ONE COMPLETE SET OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS WITH ALL REVISIONS, ADDENDA, AND CHANGE ORDERS ON THE PREMISES AT ALL TIMES.  THESE ARE TO BE UNDER THE  CARE OF THE JOB SUPERINTENDENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

E)



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE OR MAKE AVAILABLE A COMPLETE SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS (INCLUDING DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS)  TO EVERY SUBCONTRACTOR BIDDING ANY PORTION OF THIS PROJECT.  THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE SEPARATED INTO DISCIPLINES (ARCHITECTURAL, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, ETC.), FOR PURPOSE OF SUBCONTRACTOR BIDDING.  THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL REQUIRE BIDDING SUBCONTRACTOR TO REVIEW THE ENTIRE SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS TO OBTAIN CLARITY ON THE COMPLETE SCOPE OF THEIR WORK AND REFER TO CROSS DISCIPLINE DRAWINGS FOR FULL COORDINATION OF WORK WITH OTHER TRADES, AND TO BE AWARE OF ALL WORK WHICH DOES NOT APPEAR WITHIN THE PARTICULAR DISCIPLINE'S DRAWINGS FOR THE PARTICULAR TRADE.  FURTHERMORE, THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL INSURE THAT EACH SUBCONTRACTOR WORKING ON THE PROJECT MAINTAINS A FULL SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIELD CONFIRMATION OF DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE RECORDED ON A REPRODUCIBLE  DOCUMENT AND IMMEDIATELY TRANSMITTED TO ARCHITECT FOR PROJECT RECORD,  COORDINATION, AND NECESSARY RESOLUTION PRIOR TO CONTINUING WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

7. %%UCOMMUNICATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST OWNER IN OBTAINING "CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY"  OR "OCCUPANCY PERMIT" AS NECESSARY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

ONE SET OF EQUIPMENT OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS PER UNIT SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO OWNER UPON COMPLETION OF PROJECT, PRIOR TO REQUEST FOR FINAL PAYMENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

8. %%UCOMPLETION



AutoCAD SHX Text

THESE NOTES ARE ARRANGED ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING DIVISIONS AS A CONVENIENCE TO THE CONTRACTOR.  GENERAL NOTES ARE NOT LIMITED BY THEIR DIVISION HEADING AND APPLY AS NECESSARY THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE PROJECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI
NG


 E
NG


IN
EE


RS
, 


IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4


FRONT ELEVATIONS


AT STREET ELEVATION


AERIAL PERSPECTIVE
A0.1


PE
R


SP
EC


TI
V


E


NOTE:


THE DRAWINGS / PERSPECTIVE SHOWN HERE


ARE GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATION ONLY &


NOT TO SCALE.


FOR ACTUAL SIZE OF LOT DEVELOPMENT, SEE


SHEET A.1



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)


PARCEL   B
AREA = 24,572 SF.


36 PM 16


N 4996.4253
E 5386.0234


N 4968.2376
E 5190.1768


N 4967.6270
E 5256.1212


N 4977.6265
E 5256.2138


N 4978.0870
E 5206.2487


N 5018.0871
E 5206.4097


6" SS 


2


34


5


6


7


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


50


35


30


40


28


40


45


(E) SSMH


W W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


S


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


(E) CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


(E) PP


S


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


PARCEL   C
36 PM 1615' SEWER EASEMENT


3628 O.R. 38


SEWER EASEMENT
3628 O.R. 354'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


AREA = 10,688 SF.


S00°31'50"W
40.00'


NORTH


CONTRA COSTA COUNTY RECORDS TAKEN AS NORTH 00°31'50" EAST.
THE  MONUMENT LINE ALONG DUTRA COURT AS SHOWN ON TRACT 3319 BK 104 PG 40
BASIS OF BEARINGS


0 10 20 30


SCALE   1" = 10'


1.   PARCEL MAP  36 PM 16
REFERENCES


MONUMENT LINE


PROPERTY LINE


LEGEND & ABBREVIATIONS


3.   TRACT 3319 BK 104 PG 40
2.   PARCEL MAP  23 PM 17


ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE


C-1


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


SHEET INDEX


SHEET NO SHEET CONTENT


C-1


C-2


TOPOGRAPHIC PLAN


GRADING AND
DRAINAGE PLAN
UTILITY PLAN


ELECT ELECTRIC  BOX


TELEPHONETEL


FS FIRE SERVICE RISER


FIRE HYDRANTFH


WV WATER VALVE
WM WATER METER


TRAFFIC LIGHTTLGT


BOLLARDBLD


TRAFFIC CONTROL BOXTCB


UTILITY BOXUBX


PST POST


LP, LPST LIGHT POST


HANDICAPPEDHC


CATCH BASINCB


STREET SIGNSSN


PRCH PORCH


IRV IRRIGATION VALVE


PLANTERPLT


FACE OF SIDEWALKFW


YL YELLOW LINE (STRIPING)


BUILDING CORNER, BACK OF CURBBC


SANITARY SEWER MANHOLESSMH


FLOW LINEFL


SS SANITARY SEWER
STRIPINGSTR


AC   ASPHALT CONCRETE
AP   ANGLE POINT


FOUNDFND


FENCE CORNERFC
FENCEF


TREE & DIAMETER


WOOD


CONCRETE


WD


T-12"Ø


CC


RIGHT OF WAYROW
RAILROAD SPIKERRS


GROUNDG


CALC CALCULATED


EP EDGE OF PAVEMENT


CL CENTER LINE


san pablo ave


hazel ave.


80 FREEWAY


AP
PI


AN
 W


AY


PINON AVESITE


VICINITY PLAN


CITY OF PINOLE


NTS


NORTH


C-3 STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT PLAN


SHEET   1  OF  3


021918



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.92



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)
6" SS 


PARCEL   A
36 PM 16


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


PARCEL   4


PARCEL   3


PARCEL   2


PARCEL   1


PARCEL   C
36 PM 16


47.40' 47.40' 47.40' 47.61'


47.40'
47.40'


56.17'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


50


35


30


40


28


25


40


45


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


RESIDENCE #3


RESIDENCE #2


RESIDENCE #1


RESIDENCE #4


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


20' CONCRETE DRIVEWAY
20'CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


4' (N) CONCRETE WALK


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


PORCHPORCH


PORCH


PORCH


DECK


DECK


DECK


DECK


5.00


5.00


6.40
5'


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


47.40'


38
'


6.40'


5'


20' 20' 20'
20'


(E) SSMH


W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


END OF (E)
SIDEWALK BEGIN OF (N)


SIDEWALK


4' (N) CONC SIDEWALK (N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


(E) CURB & GUTTER


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K
RE


AR
 S


ET
BA


CK


RE
AR


 S
ET


BA
CK


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CURB & GUTTER


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


SS SS
SS SS SS


SS S


SS


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


A = 6001 SF


A = 6001 SF


A = 6001 SF


A = 6569 SF


0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50
1+90.82


(E) CURB & GUTTER


BEGIN OF (N)
CURB & GUTTER


37.83'


SSCO


65
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T.


SSCO


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


SSCO


(E) PP


SSCO


51
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


43
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


42
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


W W W W W W W


(E) PP TO BE
RELOCATED


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


WM
1"FS


1"WS


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


WM
1"FS


1"WS


WM
1"fs


1"WS


WM
1" FS


1" WS


E


G


E


G


E


G
E


G


(TO BE REMOVE)


G G G G


4'-2" RETAINING WALL


4'-4" RETAINING WALL


FF 28.00


FF 29.00


FF 30.00


FF 30.00


FC TO FC


( TO BE PIPE BY DEVELOPER )


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


(TO BE REINFORCED)S


FF 27.85


FF 27.85


FF 28.85


FF 28.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


19.78'
TRANSITION


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


(E) PP TO BE
RELOCATED


END OF (E)
AC PAVEMENT


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


6.40'


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


BEGIN (N) AC 
 PAVEMENT


DRAINAGE TRENCH
TO BE PIPE BY 
DEVELOPER


 ± 38' WIDE HAZEL STREET WITH 3"
THICK AC PAVEMENT WITH SUB BASE
AT 95% RC PER SOIL'S REPORT
RECOMMENDATION


(E) VENTILATION
PIPE ( TO BE RELOCATED)


(E) EBMUD


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


VERIFY LOCATION OF GAS LINE


6.17'
6'


GARAGE


GARAGE


GARAGE


GARAGE
FF 27.00


FF 28.00


FF 29.00


FF 29.00


(TO BE REMOVE)
(TO BE RELOCATED)


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


4'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


S00°31'50"W


40.00'


8.48'


47.34
SIDE


SETBACK


NO SIDEWALK
ON THIS SIDE


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


33
.2


0


23
.0


4


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K
23


.3
2


31
.9


4


42
.1


6


50
.1


0
RE


AR
 S


ET
BA


CK


46
.4


7


RE
AR


 S
ET


BA
CK


3'-10" RETAINING WALL


7'-0" RETAINING WALL


6'-0" RETAINING WALL


3'-0" RETAINING WALL 5'-0" RETAINING WALL


NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


MONUMENT LINE


PROPERTY LINE


LEGEND :


ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE


C-2


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


GRADING PLAN


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


DRAINAGE PLAN
UTILITY PLAN


KLC CONSULTING ENGINEERS
ENGINEER


TEL  (510) 232-0300
11100 SAN PABLO AVENUE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530


FAX  (510) 232-0303


BALJIT DHALIWAL
OWNER / APPLICANT


1068 TORQUISE DRIVE, HERCULES, CA 94547


HAZEL STREET, PINOLE, CA
PROPERTY ADDRESS


402-013-060
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.


RESIDENTIAL
EXISTING AND PROPOSED ZONING


WEST COUNTY WASTE WATER DISTRICT
SANITARY SEWER


EAST BAY MUNICIPAL DISTRICT
WATER SERVICE


PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
GAS AND ELECTRIC


PINOLE FIRE DEPARTMENT
FIRE PROTECTION


PARCEL B ( 36 PM 16 )  A = 24,572 SF
TOTAL AREA TO BE DIVIDED


SHEET  2  OF  3


38'
PL PL


6' 6'


SECTION 
HAZEL STREET


SCALE  1"=10'


AC PAVEMENT


SUB BASE SHALL CONFORM TO SOIL'S
REPORT RECOMMENDATION AND
COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS


2%


& GUTTER
CONC. CURB


021918



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)
6" SS 


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


50


35


30


40


28


40


45


(E) SSMH


W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


S


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50
1+90.82


(E) CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


(E) PP


4'-2" RETAINING WALL


4'-4" RETAINING WALL


S


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


DMA #1 = 1863 SF


DMA #3 = 1861 SF


DMA #5 = 1836 SF


DMA #7 = 1858 SF


DMA #2 = 862 SF
DMA #4 = 602 SF


DMA #6 = 450 SF


DMA #8 = 680 SF


landscape landscape landscape landscape


4'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


S00°31'50"W


40.00'


3'-10" RETAINING WALL


7'-0" RETAINING WALL


6'-0" RETAINING WALL


3'-0" RETAINING WALL 5'-0" RETAINING WALL


NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


C-3


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


STORM WATER


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


MANAGEMENT PLAN


SURFACE TYPE


IMPERVIOUS AREA CALCULATIONS


DMA #2 =  862 SF
DMA #1 = 1,863 SF


PARCEL 2  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #4 =  602 SF
DMA #3 = 1,861 SF


PARCEL 3  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #6 =  450 SF
DMA #5 = 1,836 SF


PARCEL 4  A = 6,568 SF


DMA #8 =  680 SF
DMA #7 = 1,858 SF


TOTAL LOT AREA = 24,572 ~ 0.564 AC. 


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


2,725 SF


2,462 SF


2,286 SF


2,538 SF


PARCEL 1  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #


SHEET  3  OF  3 


IMPERVIOUS AREA


NOTE


PARCEL 2, PARCEL 3 AND PARCEL 4 SHALL BE DIVERTED TO THEIR RESPECTIVE
ALL RUNOFF WATER COMING FROM THE ROOF AND DRIVEWAYS FOR PARCEL 1, 


LANDSCAPE AREAS AND OTHER PERVIOUS AREA LOCATION.


PERVIOUS AREA


3,276 SF


3,539 SF


3,715 SF


4,030 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4







N
05°08'30"E


50.16'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


HAZEL STREET 


PARCEL B
36 PM 16


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PARCEL  A
23 PM 17


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


LOT #1


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


50


35


30


40


28


25


40


45


4' CONCRETE WALK


CONC CURB & GUTTER


PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40'
PROPERTY LINE 47.61'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


N
05°08'30"E


   127.01' 


PROPERTY LINE 56.17'


LOT #2 LOT #3


LOT #4
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE NEW 2-STORY


RESIDENCE


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


A1.1


S
IT


E
 P


LA
N


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

(E) TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO REMAIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS TREE CONDITION



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILL BE UPDATED BY



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARBORIST



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N) RETAINING WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N) RETAINING WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'-4" HIGH



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%P3'-10" HIGH



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







1


LOT - 2   PLOT PLAN


P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE  S89°28'10"E 47.40'


2
-


1
-


A1.2


P
LO


T 
P


LA
N


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

24'



AutoCAD SHX Text

40'



AutoCAD SHX Text

42'



AutoCAD SHX Text

44'



AutoCAD SHX Text

46'



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING  GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

HAZEL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N) 2-STORY RESIDENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:28.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:30.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT CROSS SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

24'



AutoCAD SHX Text

40'



AutoCAD SHX Text

42'



AutoCAD SHX Text

44'



AutoCAD SHX Text

46'



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING  GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:29.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:28.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:28.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:30.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

FP



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT CROSS SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

EL=28.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

EL=30.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

EL=%%P34.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

LINE EDGE OF LOT#2 RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO EDGE OF LOT#3 RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







3680


A2.0


FL
O


O
R


 P
LA


N
S


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2280



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

SETTEE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LINEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

WIC



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4030



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

3680



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

6048 SL (EGRESS)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2030 SH



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING W/  ARCH TOP



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

WH



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

CU



AutoCAD SHX Text

2030



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET BAR



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

153 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATH 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

50 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAUNDRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

50 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

TWO CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

461 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

LIVING



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

DINING



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

90 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATTIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

117 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

DW



AutoCAD SHX Text

FAMILY ROOM 



AutoCAD SHX Text

KITCHEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

90 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2280



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6080 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

65 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

380 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAIRWELL



AutoCAD SHX Text

63 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

408 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL (EGRESS)



AutoCAD SHX Text

3640



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

3640



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2436



AutoCAD SHX Text

2436



AutoCAD SHX Text

SH



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

(EGRESS)



AutoCAD SHX Text

SH



AutoCAD SHX Text

6048



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6048



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

3636SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

3648SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

5448



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

5448



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

139 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

134 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

137 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

61 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

103 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

95 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

287  SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

15 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

PANTRY UNDER STAIRS



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A3.0


E
LE


VA
TI


O
N


S


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOAM LOUVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL NFD 303L



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY NEW FOAM DESIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: WHITE CLAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRICK VENEER PANEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TERRA COTTA/ RED



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: ARABIAN SANDS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CASTLE PATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE:  FOAM TRIMS BY STYROTRIM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: SANDSTONE COVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

(PELLA CARRIAGE SERIES)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOPAY VALUE SERIES- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL RAILING



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAINTED: BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIGHT SIDE  ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIN GR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIN GR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

REAR ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

"RUSTIC STYLE"



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARCADIA SHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: BARKWOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: OFF WHITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A4.0


S
E


C
TI


O
N


S
 &


 R
O


O
F


P
LA


N
M


R.
 B


A
LJ


IT
 D


H
A


LI
W


A
L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

UPPER ROOF PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM-3



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION A



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION B



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LIVING ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

KITCHEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOSET



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A5.0


W
IN


D
O


W
 V


IS
IB


IL
IT


Y
P


R
IV


A
C


Y 
FR


O
M


N
E


IG
H


B
O


R
IN


G
 U


N
IT


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4
2ND FLOOR
PLAN


GROUND
FLOOR PLAN


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


FENCING PLAN


2


TYPICAL FENCE DETAIL


3 L.1


C
O


N
C


E
P


TU
A


L
LA


N
D


S
C


A
P


E
 P


LA
N


.
M


R.
 B


A
LJ


IT
 D


H
A


LI
W


A
L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULTICOLORED COLEUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDY BLUE PLUMBAGO



AutoCAD SHX Text

SWEET WOODRUFF



AutoCAD SHX Text

CASCADES IN PLANTBOXES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MEXICAN BEACH PEBBLES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

REDWOOD RUBBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLAGSTONE OR PAVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERVIOUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMPED CONCRETE DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIVACY TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BLUE SAPPHIRE CYPRES



AutoCAD SHX Text

(5'-0" DIA MAX EACH TREE)



AutoCAD SHX Text

DROUGHT TOLERANT JAPANESE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOXWOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

DROUGHT TOLERANT LAVENDER



AutoCAD SHX Text

(LAVANDULA ANGUSTIFOLIA)



AutoCAD SHX Text

& MIXTURE OF SUCCULENTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HAZEL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

FP



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PALM TREE (CYCAS REVOLUTA) 4'-0" HT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

(EXTREMELY DROUGHT TOLERANT & FAST GROWING)



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/2"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE
LOT #2


HAZEL ST.,


PINOLE, CA., 94564



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRICK VENEER PANEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TERRA COTTA/ RED



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN. LEVEL 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TRABUCO



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: KHAKI BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE:  FOAM TRIMS BY STYROTRIM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: EVENING BLUE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

(PELLA CARRIAGE SERIES)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOPAY VALUE SERIES- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL RAILING



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAINTED: BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

"RUSTIC STYLE"



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CHARCOAL BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: SANDSTORM



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARCADIA SHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2







HAZEL STREET 


PARCEL   B
36 PM 16


19


18


SUBDIVISION   3319
MB 104  PG 40


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PARCEL  A
23 PM 17


LOT  1 LOT  2 LOT  3 LOT  4


AERIAL VIEW FRONT VIEW


CODE COMPLIANCE & BLDG DATA


SCOPE OF WORK GENERAL NOTES


VICINITY MAP


LOCATION MAP


SITE


HAZEL ST., PINOLE,


CA. 94564


SITE


HAZEL ST., PINOLE,


CA. 94564


A1.0


G
E


N
E


R
A


L 
N


O
TE


S
,


VI
C


IN
IT


Y 
M


A
P


, I
N


FO
,


E
TC


.


LOT - 3


DRAWING INDEX


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


2016 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE (CBC 2016)


1. PROPOSED 1,206 SF LIVING SPACE AT GROUND FLOOR & 1,064 SF AT SECOND FLOOR


2. PROPOSED 2-CAR GARAGE WITH APPROX. AREA OF 434 SF.


3. PROPOSED 87 SF FRONT PATIO, 171 SF BACK PATIO & 39 SF UPPER BALCONY


1068 TURQUOISE DR., HERCULES, CA


BALJIT DHALIWAL


OWNER


APN


6,001 SFPROPERTY AREA


402-013-060


ZONING R1- SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL


V - NTYPE CONSTRUCTION


R-1, U-1
OCCUPANCY GROUPS


6,001


F.A.R. 2,214


=  0.369


GARAGE AREA


434


FIRST FLOOR LEVEL 1,206


SECOND FLOOR LEVEL 1,064


PORCHES & BALCONIES- 1ST FLOOR LEVEL 258


LOOKOUT AREA - 2ND FLOOR LEVEL 39


SF


SF


SF


SF


SF


LO
T 


#
3


DHALI-BALI DEVELOPMENT
LOT #3 - MODEL #3


HAZEL ST., PINOLE, CA. 94564


A1.0


A1.2


COVER SHEET, AREA MAP/ PARCEL MAP & OTHER INFO


PLOT PLAN & PROFILE SECTION


A2.0


A3.0


A4.0


GROUND & SECOND FLOOR PLANS


ELEVATIONS


L1.0 CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN, FENCING PLAN


A1.1 OVERALL SITE PLAN


C1


C2


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY


GRADING, DRAINAGE, & UTILITY PLAN


SECTIONS / ROOF PLAN


C3 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN


A0.1 PERSPECTIVE (LOTS #1,2,3 & 4)


A5.0
WINDOW VISIBILITY LOCATION PLANS (LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4)


ATTACHMENT E



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN CASE OF DISCREPANCIES OR CONFLICTS IN INFORMATION OR REQUIREMENTS  WITHIN THE DRAWINGS, WITHIN THE SPECIFICATIONS, OR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS  AND THE SPECIFICATIONS, THE MOST EXPENSIVE REQUIREMENT SHOWN OR SPECIFIED SHALL BE THE BASIS OF THE CONTRACT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHOULD CONFLICTS OCCUR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS,  DRAWINGS SHALL GOVERN IN MATTERS OF DIMENSION OR QUANTITY; SPECIFICATIONS SHALL GOVERN IN MATTERS OF MATERIALS OR FINISHES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE EVENT CERTAIN FEATURES OF THE CONSTRUCTION ARE NOT FULLY SHOWN  ON THE DRAWINGS OR CALLED FOR IN THE NOTES OR SPECIFICATIONS, THEN THEIR  CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE OF THE SAME CHARACTER AS FOR SIMILAR CONDITIONS  THAT ARE SHOWN OR CALLED FOR.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DIMENSIONS SHALL GOVERN ON WORKING DRAWINGS.  DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2. %%UREADING THE PLANS



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL CONTRACTORS WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE 2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING, AND FIRE CODES, AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT,  AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE CODES, OR THOSE ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF PINOLE, CALIFORNIA.  GOVERNING AUTHORITIES AND CODES TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER DRAWINGS  AND SPECIFICATIONS.  REPORT DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

1. %%UCODES



AutoCAD SHX Text

VERIFY DIMENSIONS, GRADES, ELEVATIONS AND CRITICAL LOCATIONS, SUCH AS  STRUCTURAL SUPPORTS, BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AFFECTED BY THEM.  THE  CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CIVIL ENGINEER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING THE FOLLOWING  INFORMATION:



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL THOROUGHLY REVIEW PLANS AND EXISTING SITE  CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND GRADING, VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AND  CONTACT UTILITY COMPANIES AND AFFECTED CITY AGENCIES.  CONTACT  "UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT" PHONE: (800) 642-2444.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

4) SITE DIMENSION AND SETBACKS



AutoCAD SHX Text

3) SIZES AND TYPE OF CURB AND GUTTERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

2) ALL SITE DRAINAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

1) FINISHED AND EXISTING GRADES



AutoCAD SHX Text

4. %%USITE WORK



AutoCAD SHX Text

3. %%UPRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME SOLE RESPONSIBILITY FOR SAFETY ON OR ABOUT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND CODE, AND SHALL OBSERVE SAFETY PROVISIONS OF THE LATEST MANUAL OF ACCIDENT PREVENTION PUBLISHED BY THE ASSOCIATION OF GENERAL CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA.



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXTERIOR OPENINGS OF THE WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL SECURITY  REQUIREMENTS AS OUTLINED IN ALL LOCAL BUILDING CODES AND ORDINANCES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM ALL WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL.  THE APPROVED PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS SHALL NOT BE CHANGED OR MODIFIED WITHOUT THE APPROVAL OF THE BUILDING OFFICIAL PER SECTION 106 OF THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT TO THE ARCHITECT INCONSISTENCIES HE MAY DISCOVER.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CORRECTING ANY ERROR AFTER THE START OF CONSTRUCTION WHICH HAS NOT BEEN BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT.  THE MEANS OF CORRECTING ANY ERROR SHALL BE FIRST APPROVED BY THE OWNER.



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL ALL MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS IN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH  MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATION AND APPLICABLE ICBO REPORTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PERFORMING ALL WORK REQUIRED  FOR A COMPLETELY FINISHED PROJECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL WORK FURNISHED BY SUBCONTRACTORS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEITHER THE ARCHITECT, NOR THE ENGINEERS, NOR THE OWNER SHALL BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR:  CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHODS, TECHNIQUES, SEQUENCES, OR  PROCEDURES OF THE CONTRACTOR; SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS OF THE  CONTRACTOR; THE ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF CONTRACTOR; OR THE FAILURE OF  CONTRACTOR TO CARRY OUT THE WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONTRACT  DOCUMENTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

H)



AutoCAD SHX Text

G)



AutoCAD SHX Text

F)



AutoCAD SHX Text

E)



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

5. %%UCONSTRUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO STRUCTURAL MEMBERS SHALL BE CUT TO ACCEPT PIPES, VENTS, DUCTS, ETC.,  EXCEPT AS DETAILED OR SPECIFIED HEREIN OR AS APPROVED BY THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER IN WRITING.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TEMPORARY PROJECT OFFICE, TELEPHONE, FAX MACHINE, SECURITY FENCE, WATER, POWER, AND TOILET FACILITIES.  COORDINATE LOCATIONS WITH ALL APPROPRIATE AGENCIES.  CONTRACTOR'S FIELD OFFICE SHALL ALSO CONTAIN A CURRENT COPY OF GOVERNING BUILDING CODE(S).



AutoCAD SHX Text

IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE ALL EXISTING  UTILITIES, WHETHER SHOWN HEREIN OR NOT, AND TO PROTECT THEM FROM DAMAGE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BEAR ALL THE EXPENSE FOR REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF UTILITIES AND/OR OTHER PROPERTY DAMAGED BY OPERATIONS IN CONJUNCTIONS WITH THE EXECUTION OF WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

6. %%UJOB SITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE SITE IN A CLEAN AND ORDERLY MANNER.  NO  RADIOS, ALCOHOL, OR CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ARE ALLOWED ON THE JOB SITE.  ALL DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM PREMISES, AND ALL AREAS SHALL BE LEFT IN A BROOM-CLEAN CONDITION ON A DAILY BASIS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMPLETE SECURITY OF THE SITE  WHILE THE JOB IS IN PROGRESS AND UNTIL THE JOB IS COMPLETE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY APPROVED PLANS SHALL BE KEPT IN A PLAN BOX IN THE FIELD OFFICE AND SHALL NOT BE USED BY WORKERS.  ALL CONSTRUCTION SETS SHALL BE KEPT UP TO DATE, AND REFLECT THE SAME INFORMATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SETS SHALL REFLECT THE SAME INFORMATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO MAINTAIN, IN GOOD CONDITION, ONE COMPLETE SET OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS WITH ALL REVISIONS, ADDENDA, AND CHANGE ORDERS ON THE PREMISES AT ALL TIMES.  THESE ARE TO BE UNDER THE  CARE OF THE JOB SUPERINTENDENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

E)



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE OR MAKE AVAILABLE A COMPLETE SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS (INCLUDING DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS)  TO EVERY SUBCONTRACTOR BIDDING ANY PORTION OF THIS PROJECT.  THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE SEPARATED INTO DISCIPLINES (ARCHITECTURAL, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, ETC.), FOR PURPOSE OF SUBCONTRACTOR BIDDING.  THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL REQUIRE BIDDING SUBCONTRACTOR TO REVIEW THE ENTIRE SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS TO OBTAIN CLARITY ON THE COMPLETE SCOPE OF THEIR WORK AND REFER TO CROSS DISCIPLINE DRAWINGS FOR FULL COORDINATION OF WORK WITH OTHER TRADES, AND TO BE AWARE OF ALL WORK WHICH DOES NOT APPEAR WITHIN THE PARTICULAR DISCIPLINE'S DRAWINGS FOR THE PARTICULAR TRADE.  FURTHERMORE, THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL INSURE THAT EACH SUBCONTRACTOR WORKING ON THE PROJECT MAINTAINS A FULL SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIELD CONFIRMATION OF DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE RECORDED ON A REPRODUCIBLE  DOCUMENT AND IMMEDIATELY TRANSMITTED TO ARCHITECT FOR PROJECT RECORD,  COORDINATION, AND NECESSARY RESOLUTION PRIOR TO CONTINUING WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

7. %%UCOMMUNICATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST OWNER IN OBTAINING "CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY"  OR "OCCUPANCY PERMIT" AS NECESSARY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

ONE SET OF EQUIPMENT OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS PER UNIT SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO OWNER UPON COMPLETION OF PROJECT, PRIOR TO REQUEST FOR FINAL PAYMENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

8. %%UCOMPLETION



AutoCAD SHX Text

THESE NOTES ARE ARRANGED ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING DIVISIONS AS A CONVENIENCE TO THE CONTRACTOR.  GENERAL NOTES ARE NOT LIMITED BY THEIR DIVISION HEADING AND APPLY AS NECESSARY THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE PROJECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI
NG


 E
NG


IN
EE


RS
, 


IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4


FRONT ELEVATIONS


AT STREET ELEVATION


AERIAL PERSPECTIVE
A0.1


PE
R


SP
EC


TI
V


E


NOTE:


THE DRAWINGS / PERSPECTIVE SHOWN HERE


ARE GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATION ONLY &


NOT TO SCALE.


FOR ACTUAL SIZE OF LOT DEVELOPMENT, SEE


SHEET A.1



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)


PARCEL   B
AREA = 24,572 SF.


36 PM 16


N 4996.4253
E 5386.0234


N 4968.2376
E 5190.1768


N 4967.6270
E 5256.1212


N 4977.6265
E 5256.2138


N 4978.0870
E 5206.2487


N 5018.0871
E 5206.4097


6" SS 


2


34


5


6


7


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


50


35


30


40


28


40


45


(E) SSMH


W W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


S


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


(E) CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


(E) PP


S


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


PARCEL   C
36 PM 1615' SEWER EASEMENT


3628 O.R. 38


SEWER EASEMENT
3628 O.R. 354'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


AREA = 10,688 SF.


S00°31'50"W


40.00'


NORTH


CONTRA COSTA COUNTY RECORDS TAKEN AS NORTH 00°31'50" EAST.
THE  MONUMENT LINE ALONG DUTRA COURT AS SHOWN ON TRACT 3319 BK 104 PG 40
BASIS OF BEARINGS


0 10 20 30


SCALE   1" = 10'


1.   PARCEL MAP  36 PM 16
REFERENCES


MONUMENT LINE


PROPERTY LINE


LEGEND & ABBREVIATIONS


3.   TRACT 3319 BK 104 PG 40
2.   PARCEL MAP  23 PM 17


ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE


C-1


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


SHEET INDEX


SHEET NO SHEET CONTENT


C-1


C-2


TOPOGRAPHIC PLAN


GRADING AND
DRAINAGE PLAN
UTILITY PLAN


ELECT ELECTRIC  BOX


TELEPHONETEL


FS FIRE SERVICE RISER


FIRE HYDRANTFH


WV WATER VALVE
WM WATER METER


TRAFFIC LIGHTTLGT


BOLLARDBLD


TRAFFIC CONTROL BOXTCB


UTILITY BOXUBX


PST POST


LP, LPST LIGHT POST


HANDICAPPEDHC


CATCH BASINCB


STREET SIGNSSN


PRCH PORCH


IRV IRRIGATION VALVE


PLANTERPLT


FACE OF SIDEWALKFW


YL YELLOW LINE (STRIPING)


BUILDING CORNER, BACK OF CURBBC


SANITARY SEWER MANHOLESSMH


FLOW LINEFL


SS SANITARY SEWER
STRIPINGSTR


AC   ASPHALT CONCRETE
AP   ANGLE POINT


FOUNDFND


FENCE CORNERFC
FENCEF


TREE & DIAMETER


WOOD


CONCRETE


WD


T-12"Ø


CC


RIGHT OF WAYROW
RAILROAD SPIKERRS


GROUNDG


CALC CALCULATED


EP EDGE OF PAVEMENT


CL CENTER LINE


san pablo ave


hazel ave.


80 FREEWAY


AP
PI


AN
 W


AY


PINON AVESITE


VICINITY PLAN


CITY OF PINOLE


NTS


NORTH


C-3 STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT PLAN


SHEET   1  OF  3


021918



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.92



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)
6" SS 


PARCEL   A
36 PM 16


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


PARCEL   4


PARCEL   3


PARCEL   2


PARCEL   1


PARCEL   C
36 PM 16


47.40' 47.40' 47.40' 47.61'


47.40'
47.40'


56.17'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


50


35


30


40


28


25


40


45


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


RESIDENCE #3


RESIDENCE #2


RESIDENCE #1


RESIDENCE #4


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


20' CONCRETE DRIVEWAY
20'CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


4' (N) CONCRETE WALK


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


PORCHPORCH


PORCH


PORCH


DECK


DECK


DECK


DECK


5.00


5.00


6.40
5'


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


47.40'


38
'


6.40'


5'


20' 20' 20'
20'


(E) SSMH


W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


END OF (E)
SIDEWALK BEGIN OF (N)


SIDEWALK


4' (N) CONC SIDEWALK (N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


(E) CURB & GUTTER


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K
RE


AR
 S


ET
BA


CK


RE
AR


 S
ET


BA
CK


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CURB & GUTTER


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


SS SS
SS SS SS


SS S


SS


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


A = 6001 SF


A = 6001 SF


A = 6001 SF


A = 6569 SF


0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50
1+90.82


(E) CURB & GUTTER


BEGIN OF (N)
CURB & GUTTER


37.83'


SSCO


65
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T.


SSCO


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


SSCO


(E) PP


SSCO


51
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


43
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


42
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


W W W W W W W


(E) PP TO BE
RELOCATED


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


WM
1"FS


1"WS


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


WM
1"FS


1"WS


WM
1"fs


1"WS


WM
1" FS


1" WS


E


G


E


G


E


G
E


G


(TO BE REMOVE)


G G G G


4'-2" RETAINING WALL


4'-4" RETAINING WALL


FF 28.00


FF 29.00


FF 30.00


FF 30.00


FC TO FC


( TO BE PIPE BY DEVELOPER )


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


(TO BE REINFORCED)S


FF 27.85


FF 27.85


FF 28.85


FF 28.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


19.78'
TRANSITION


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


(E) PP TO BE
RELOCATED


END OF (E)
AC PAVEMENT


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


6.40'


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


BEGIN (N) AC 
 PAVEMENT


DRAINAGE TRENCH
TO BE PIPE BY 
DEVELOPER


 ± 38' WIDE HAZEL STREET WITH 3"
THICK AC PAVEMENT WITH SUB BASE
AT 95% RC PER SOIL'S REPORT
RECOMMENDATION


(E) VENTILATION
PIPE ( TO BE RELOCATED)


(E) EBMUD


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


VERIFY LOCATION OF GAS LINE


6.17'
6'


GARAGE


GARAGE


GARAGE


GARAGE
FF 27.00


FF 28.00


FF 29.00


FF 29.00


(TO BE REMOVE)
(TO BE RELOCATED)


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


4'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


S00°31'50"W
40.00'


8.48'


47.34
SIDE


SETBACK


NO SIDEWALK
ON THIS SIDE


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


33
.2


0


23
.0


4


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K
23


.3
2


31
.9


4


42
.1


6


50
.1


0
RE


AR
 S


ET
BA


CK


46
.4


7


RE
AR


 S
ET


BA
CK


3'-10" RETAINING WALL


7'-0" RETAINING WALL


6'-0" RETAINING WALL


3'-0" RETAINING WALL 5'-0" RETAINING WALL


NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


MONUMENT LINE


PROPERTY LINE


LEGEND :


ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE


C-2


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


GRADING PLAN


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


DRAINAGE PLAN
UTILITY PLAN


KLC CONSULTING ENGINEERS
ENGINEER


TEL  (510) 232-0300
11100 SAN PABLO AVENUE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530


FAX  (510) 232-0303


BALJIT DHALIWAL
OWNER / APPLICANT


1068 TORQUISE DRIVE, HERCULES, CA 94547


HAZEL STREET, PINOLE, CA
PROPERTY ADDRESS


402-013-060
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.


RESIDENTIAL
EXISTING AND PROPOSED ZONING


WEST COUNTY WASTE WATER DISTRICT
SANITARY SEWER


EAST BAY MUNICIPAL DISTRICT
WATER SERVICE


PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
GAS AND ELECTRIC


PINOLE FIRE DEPARTMENT
FIRE PROTECTION


PARCEL B ( 36 PM 16 )  A = 24,572 SF
TOTAL AREA TO BE DIVIDED


SHEET  2  OF  3


38'
PL PL


6' 6'


SECTION 
HAZEL STREET


SCALE  1"=10'


AC PAVEMENT


SUB BASE SHALL CONFORM TO SOIL'S
REPORT RECOMMENDATION AND
COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS


2%


& GUTTER
CONC. CURB


021918



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)
6" SS 


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


50


35


30


40


28


40


45


(E) SSMH


W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


S


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50
1+90.82


(E) CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


(E) PP


4'-2" RETAINING WALL


4'-4" RETAINING WALL


S


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


DMA #1 = 1863 SF


DMA #3 = 1861 SF


DMA #5 = 1836 SF


DMA #7 = 1858 SF


DMA #2 = 862 SF
DMA #4 = 602 SF


DMA #6 = 450 SF


DMA #8 = 680 SF


landscape landscape landscape landscape


4'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


S00°31'50"W


40.00'


3'-10" RETAINING WALL


7'-0" RETAINING WALL


6'-0" RETAINING WALL


3'-0" RETAINING WALL 5'-0" RETAINING WALL


NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


C-3


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


STORM WATER


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


MANAGEMENT PLAN


SURFACE TYPE


IMPERVIOUS AREA CALCULATIONS


DMA #2 =  862 SF
DMA #1 = 1,863 SF


PARCEL 2  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #4 =  602 SF
DMA #3 = 1,861 SF


PARCEL 3  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #6 =  450 SF
DMA #5 = 1,836 SF


PARCEL 4  A = 6,568 SF


DMA #8 =  680 SF
DMA #7 = 1,858 SF


TOTAL LOT AREA = 24,572 ~ 0.564 AC. 


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


2,725 SF


2,462 SF


2,286 SF


2,538 SF


PARCEL 1  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #


SHEET  3  OF  3 


IMPERVIOUS AREA


NOTE


PARCEL 2, PARCEL 3 AND PARCEL 4 SHALL BE DIVERTED TO THEIR RESPECTIVE
ALL RUNOFF WATER COMING FROM THE ROOF AND DRIVEWAYS FOR PARCEL 1, 


LANDSCAPE AREAS AND OTHER PERVIOUS AREA LOCATION.


PERVIOUS AREA


3,276 SF


3,539 SF


3,715 SF


4,030 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4







N
05°08'30"E


50.16'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


HAZEL STREET 


PARCEL B
36 PM 16


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PARCEL  A
23 PM 17


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


LOT #1


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


50


35


30


40


28


25


40


45


4' CONCRETE WALK


CONC CURB & GUTTER


PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40'
PROPERTY LINE 47.61'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


N
05°08'30"E


   127.01' 


PROPERTY LINE 56.17'


LOT #2 LOT #3


LOT #4
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE NEW 2-STORY


RESIDENCE


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


A1.1


S
IT


E
 P


LA
N


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

3'-0" HIGH



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC RET. WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

7'-0" HIGH



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC RET. WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







1


LOT - 3   PLOT PLAN


35


30


40


45


P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


A1.2


P
LO


T 
P


LA
N


 &
P


R
O


FI
LE


 S
E


C
TI


O
N


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HAZEL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N) 2-STORY RESIDENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT CROSS SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

40'



AutoCAD SHX Text

42'



AutoCAD SHX Text

44'



AutoCAD SHX Text

46'



AutoCAD SHX Text

48'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING  GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:29.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:30.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:29.20



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOCATION OF (E) TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO REMAIN (BEYOND),



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE SHEET A1.1 FOR LOCATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

40'



AutoCAD SHX Text

42'



AutoCAD SHX Text

44'



AutoCAD SHX Text

46'



AutoCAD SHX Text

48'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING  GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:29.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:30.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:29.20



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOCATION OF (E) TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO REMAIN (BEYOND),



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE SHEET A1.1 FOR LOCATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT CROSS SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







171 SF


PATTIO


U
P


2880


2
0
3
0


4
0
4
0


4
0
4
0


3
6
8
0


2
8
8
0


4
0
4
0


4
0
4
0


3680


4040


3630 3630


4
0
4
0


4
0
4
0


4
0
4
0


2880


2
0
3
0


2
0
3
0


2
0
3
0


2
0
3
0


A2.0


FL
O


O
R


 P
LA


N
S


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

LIVING



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAUNDRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

37 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATH 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

54 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

TWO CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

434 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET BAR



AutoCAD SHX Text

DINING



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

COATS



AutoCAD SHX Text

KITCHEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

FAMILY RM



AutoCAD SHX Text

48"  WALLNUT



AutoCAD SHX Text

PANTRY UNDER



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAIRS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOOK SHELVES



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOSET



AutoCAD SHX Text

WH



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

CU



AutoCAD SHX Text

4030



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

458 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

95 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

315 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAIRWELL



AutoCAD SHX Text

63 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATH 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

167 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2280



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

SETTEE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LINEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

WIC



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

3640



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

42" HIGH



AutoCAD SHX Text

3040



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

131 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

135 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

138 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

18 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

62 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

105 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

119 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

306 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

32  SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2280



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

SETTEE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LINEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

WIC



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

3640



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

42" HIGH



AutoCAD SHX Text

3040



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

131 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

135 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

138 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

18 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

62 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

105 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

119 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

306 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

32  SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A3.0


E
LE


VA
TI


O
N


S


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE:  FOAM TRIMS BY STYROTRIM



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

CULTURED STONE BY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BORAL (OR EQUIVALENT)



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CREAM



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

W/ PLAIN WINDOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOPAY VALUE SERIES- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAUNDRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATHROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

REAR SIDE ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MONTEREY



AutoCAD SHX Text

TAUPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TIMBERBARK



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOAM LOUVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL NFD 303L



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY NEW FOAM DESIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: GRACEFUL GRAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MILK SHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMPOSITE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE HD



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MISSION BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A4.0


S
E


C
TI


O
N


S
 &


 R
O


O
F


P
LA


N
M


R.
 B


A
LJ


IT
 D


H
A


LI
W


A
L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

UPPER ROOF PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM-3



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION A



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

KITCHEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

DINING



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION B



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

FAMILY RM.



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOSET



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATH-1



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A5.0


W
IN


D
O


W
 V


IS
IB


IL
IT


Y
P


R
IV


A
C


Y 
FR


O
M


N
E


IG
H


B
O


R
IN


G
 U


N
IT


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4
2ND FLOOR
PLAN


GROUND
FLOOR PLAN


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







LOT -3


CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN


1


35


30


40


45


P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


35


30


40


45


FENCING PLAN


2


TYPICAL FENCE DETAIL


3
L.1


C
O


N
C


E
P


TU
A


L
LA


N
D


S
C


A
P


E
 P


LA
N


.
M


R.
 B


A
LJ


IT
 D


H
A


LI
W


A
L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULTICOLORED COLEUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDY BLUE PLUMBAGO



AutoCAD SHX Text

SWEET WOODRUFF



AutoCAD SHX Text

CASCADES IN PLANTBOXES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MEXICAN BEACH PEBBLES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

REDWOOD RUBBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLAGSTONE OR PAVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERVIOUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMPED CONCRETE DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIVACY TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BLUE SAPPHIRE CYPRES



AutoCAD SHX Text

(5'-0" DIA MAX EACH TREE)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(EXTREMELY DROUGHT TOLERANT &



AutoCAD SHX Text

FAST GROWING)



AutoCAD SHX Text

DROUGHT TOLERANT JAPANESE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOXWOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

PALM TREE (CYCAS REVOLUTA) 4'-0" HT



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HAZEL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/2"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE
LOT #3


HAZEL ST.,


PINOLE, CA., 94564



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TIMBER BARK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE:  FOAM TRIMS BY STYROTRIM



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMPOSITE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MONTEREY



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MILK SHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

CULTURED STONE BY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BORAL (OR EQUIVALENT)



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CREAM



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

W/ PLAIN WINDOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOPAY VALUE SERIES- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOAM LOUVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL NFD 303L



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY NEW FOAM DESIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: GRACEFUL GRAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDI SIDING



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAGGERED EDGE PANEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: NAVAJO BEIGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMPOSITE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE HD



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MISSION BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: DESERT TAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE HD



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MISSION BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

TAUPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3















NORTH


BASIS OF BEARINGS


0 10 20 30


SCALE   1" = 10'


REFERENCES


LEGEND & ABBREVIATIONS


SHEET INDEX


ELECT ELECTRIC  BOX


TELEPHONETEL


FS FIRE SERVICE RISER


FIRE HYDRANTFH


WV WATER VALVE
WM WATER METER


TRAFFIC LIGHTTLGT


BOLLARDBLD


TRAFFIC CONTROL BOXTCB


UTILITY BOXUBX


PST POST


LP, LPST LIGHT POST


HANDICAPPEDHC


CATCH BASINCB


STREET SIGNSSN


PRCH PORCH


IRV IRRIGATION VALVE


PLANTERPLT


FACE OF SIDEWALKFW


YL YELLOW LINE (STRIPING)


BUILDING CORNER, BACK OF CURBBC


SANITARY SEWER MANHOLESSMH


FLOW LINEFL


SS SANITARY SEWER
STRIPINGSTR


AC   ASPHALT CONCRETE
AP   ANGLE POINT


FOUNDFND


FENCE CORNERFC
FENCEF


TREE & DIAMETER


WOOD


CONCRETE


WD


CC


RIGHT OF WAYROW
RAILROAD SPIKERRS


GROUNDG


CALC CALCULATED


EP EDGE OF PAVEMENT


CL CENTER LINE







NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


LEGEND :







NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'







CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE NEW 2-STORY


RESIDENCE


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


S
IT


E
 P


LA
N







PROPERTY LINE 56.17'


P
LO


T 
P


LA
N







3680


FL
O


O
R


 P
LA


N
S







R
O


O
F 


P
LA


N







E
LE


VA
TI


O
N


S







A5.0


W
IN


D
O


W
 V


IS
IB


IL
IT


Y
P


R
IV


A
C


Y 
FR


O
M


N
E


IG
H


B
O


R
IN


G
 U


N
IT


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4
2ND FLOOR
PLAN


GROUND
FLOOR PLAN


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







C
O


N
C


E
P


TU
A


L
LA


N
D


S
C


A
P


E
 &


FE
N


C
IN


G
 P


LA
N







DHALI-BALI
DEVELOPMENT
LOT #4


HAZEL ST.,


PINOLE, CA., 94564



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOAM LOUVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL NFD 303L



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY NEW FOAM DESIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: SILVER DROP



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMPOSITE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARMOURSHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: GREYSTONE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIPLANK



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TIMBERBARK



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: HACIENDA



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: SILVER DROP



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE: FOAM TRIMS BY STYROTRIM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: KHAKI BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

W/ PLAIN WINDOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

GALLERY COLLECTION- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL RAILING



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAINTED: BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL RAILING



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAINT FINISH: WHITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TIMBERBARK



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDI SHINGLE SIDING



AutoCAD SHX Text

STRAIGHT EDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TIMBERBARK







 


 


3598308.1   
 


 


RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 


WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 


 


City of Pinole 


2131 Pear Street 


Pinole, CA  94564 


Attn: City Manager 


 


Exempt from Recording Fees 


Pursuant to Government 


Code Sections 6103 and 27383 


______________________________________________________________________________ 
APN: 402-013-060 (Space Above This Line Reserved for Recorder’s Use Only) 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 


 


BY AND BETWEEN 


 


THE CITY OF PINOLE 


 


AND 


 


BALJIT DHALIWAL 


 


 







 
 


1 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 


THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Development Agreement” or this 


“Agreement”) is entered into as of ________________, 2020 (the “Agreement Date”) by and 


between the City of Pinole, a municipal corporation (“City”), and Bajit Dhaliwal, an individual 


(“Developer”).  City and Developer are referred to individually as “Party,” and collectively as 


the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 


This Agreement is entered upon the basis of the following facts, understandings and 


intentions of City and Developer. 


A. The lack of certainty in the approval of development projects can result in a waste 


of resources, escalate the cost of housing and other development, and discourage investment in 


and commitment to comprehensive planning that would make maximum efficient utilization of 


resources at the least economic cost to the public. 


B. In order to strengthen the public planning process, encourage private participation 


in comprehensive planning and reduce the economic costs and risk of development, the 


Legislature of the State of California enacted Section 65864 et seq. of the Government Code (the 


“Development Agreement Legislation”), which authorizes City to enter into a development 


agreement for real property with any person having a legal or equitable interest in such property 


in order to establish certain development rights in the property. 


C. The Developer is the owner of certain property located in the City, known as 


County Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 402-013-060 and 402-013-061_(the “Property”), as more 


particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 


D. Developer intends to construct four (4) homes on the Property (the “Project”).  


Construction of the Project includes construction of a number of public improvements, including 


but not limited to design and construction of a new vault and pump station, the extension of Hazel 


Street, storm drain construction and curb and gutter improvements. 


E. The complexity, magnitude and long-range nature of the Project would be 


difficult for Developer to undertake if City had not determined, through this Development 


Agreement, to inject a sufficient degree of certainty in the land use regulatory process to justify 


the substantial financial investment associated with development of the Project.  As a result of 


the execution of this Development Agreement, both Parties can be assured that the Project can 


proceed without disruption caused by a change in City planning and development policies and 


requirements, which assurance will thereby reduce the actual or perceived risk of planning, 


financing and proceeding with construction of the Project. 


F. City has determined that by entering into this Development Agreement: (1) City 


will ensure the productive use of property and foster orderly growth and quality development in 


City; (2) development will proceed in accordance with the goals and policies set forth in the City 


of Pinole General Plan (the “General Plan”) and will implement City’s stated General Plan 







 
 


2 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


policies; (3) City will receive increased property tax revenues; and (4) City will benefit from 


increased housing for residents of City that are created by the Project. 


G. Developer has applied for, and City has granted, the Project Approvals (as defined 


in Section 1.6) in order to protect the interests of its citizens in the quality of their community 


and environment. 


City has also undertaken, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 


Resources Code Section 21000 et seq., hereinafter “CEQA”), the required analysis of the 


environmental effects that would be caused by the Project and has determined that the Project is 


categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15332, and that none of 


the exceptions to this exemption specified in CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2 are applicable to 


the Project.  


 


H. In addition to the Project Approvals, the Project may require various additional 


land use and construction approvals, termed Subsequent Approvals (as defined in Section 1.6.4), 


in connection with development of the Project. 


I. City has given the required notice of its intention to adopt this Development 


Agreement and has conducted public hearings thereon pursuant to Government Code 


Section 65867.  As required by Government Code Section 65867.5, City has found that the 


provisions of this Development Agreement and its purposes are consistent with the goals, 


policies, standards and land use designations specified in City’s General Plan. 


J. On ________, 2020, the City of Pinole’s Planning Commission (the “Planning 


Commission”), the initial hearing body for purposes of development agreement review, 


recommended approval of this Development Agreement pursuant to Resolution No. ____. 


K. On ________, 2020, the City of Pinole City Council (the “City Council”) 


adopted its Ordinance No. ____ (the “Approving Ordinance”) approving this Development 


Agreement and authorizing its execution.  The Approving Ordinance will take effect on 


______________, 2020 (the “Effective Date”). 


L. For the reasons recited herein, City and Developer have determined that the 


Project is a development for which this Development Agreement is appropriate.  This 


Development Agreement will eliminate uncertainty regarding Project Approvals (including the 


Subsequent Approvals), thereby encouraging planning for, investment in and commitment to 


develop the Property in a manner beneficial to the City and surrounding properties.  Continued 


use and development of the Property will in turn provide substantial employment and property 


tax benefits, and contribute to the provision of needed infrastructure enhancements and public 


benefits, thereby achieving the goals and purposes for which the Development Agreement 


Legislation was enacted and ensuring consistency with the City’s General Plan. 


M. The terms and conditions of this Development Agreement have undergone 


extensive review by City staff, the Planning Commission and the City Council at publicly 


noticed meetings and have been found to be fair, just and reasonable and in conformance with 


the City General Plan and the Development Agreement Legislation, and, further, the City 







 
 


3 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


Council finds that the economic interests of City’s residents and the public health, safety and 


welfare will be best served by entering into this Development Agreement. 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises set forth 


herein, City and Developer agree as follows: 


ARTICLE 1. 


GENERAL PROVISIONS 


1.1. Parties. 


1.1.1. City.  City is a California municipal corporation, with offices located at 


2131 Pear Street, Pinole, CA 94564.  “City,” as used in this Development Agreement, includes 


the City of Pinole and any assignee of or successor to its rights, powers and responsibilities. 


1.1.2. Developer.  Developer is an individual located at 1068 Turquoise Drive, 


Hercules, CA 94547.  “Developer,” as used in this Development Agreement, includes any 


permitted assignee or successor-in-interest as herein provided. 


1.2. Property Subject to this Development Agreement. 


The Property known as APN 402-013-060 and 402-013-061, as more particularly 


described in Exhibit A, is subject to this Development Agreement. 


1.3. Term of the Agreement. 


The term (“Term”) of this Development Agreement will commence upon the Effective 


Date and shall continue in full force and effect for a period of ten (10) years, unless earlier 


terminated as provided in this Agreement.  The Term has been established by the Parties as a 


reasonable estimate of the time required to develop the Project and obtain the benefits of the 


Project. 


1.4. The Project. 


1.4.1. General.  Developer intends to subdivide the Property and construct four 


(4) homes on the Property (the “Project”).  Construction of the Project includes construction of a 


number of public improvements, including but not limited to design and construction of a new 


vault and pump station, the extension of Hazel Street, storm drain construction and curb and 


gutter improvements and other ancillary improvements described in this Section 1.4. 


1.4.2. Improvements.  


a. Homes. The Project consists of subdividing that portion of the 


Property known as Contra Costa APN 402-013-060 into four (4) parcels and constructing one (1) 


single family homes on each of the four (4) lots. The four single family homes will range in size 


from 2,000 square feet to 2,600 square feet.  The homes will be constructed in accordance with 


the Project Approvals. In accordance with the City’s inclusionary housing ordinance, Pinole 


Municipal Code Chapter 17.32, one (1) of the homes shall be deed restricted as an affordable 







 
 


4 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


unit to be sold to a moderate-income household restricted to sale at a price affordable to 


households earning up to 120% of the Area Median Income. Prior to the issuance of a building 


permit for any of the homes, the Developer shall execute and record on the one of the newly 


created parcels a resale restriction agreement, in substantially the form contained in Exhibit C, 


attached hereto and incorporated herein, to ensure the affordability of the home built on that 


parcel. Developer agrees that the affordable home shall be no later than the third of the four 


homes built on the Property, and Developer agrees that City may refuse to issue building permits 


that would result in the affordable unit not being the third home built.  


b. Vault and Pump Station.  There is an existing sewer pump station 


vault located on the northwest corner of the Property. The sewer pump station currently receives 


electric service from an overhead electrical line. As part of the Project, the Developer will be 


responsible for, with the approval of the relevant utility companies, removing this overhead 


electrical line and replacing it with underground electric service serving the sewer pump station. 


c. Storm Drain.  On the northwest corner of the property there is 


currently an open-air ditch that collects storm water and channels it into the City’s storm water 


system. The City will replace these existing storm drain facilities with an underground storm 


drainpipe that is located underneath the future Hazel Street extension described below. In 


addition, the City will install a surface level storm drain inlet located on Hazel Street. 


d. Hazel Street Extension.  Hazel Street is a public road located near 


the Property. Hazel Street currently terminates just east of Woy Circle and just west of Hazel 


Lane, resulting in no direct access to the Property from Hazel Street, or any other public road. At 


its sole cost and expense, Developer will design and construct, in accordance with City 


standards, a road, with curb, gutter, and sidewalk, to connect the two existing sections of Hazel 


Street and provide direct access to the Property. These improvements will be located on that 


portion of the Property commonly known as 402-013-061. Upon completion of these 


improvements, the Developer will dedicate the Improvements, and the property on which they 


are located, to the City. A portion of the Developer’s cost to construct the improvements 


described in this Section 1.4.2 (d) shall be $9,937.33 per single-family unit against the 


transportation development impact mitigation fee..  


e. Landscaping.  There is no public landscaping associated with this 


Project. Developer will be required to install landscaping when constructing the new single- 


family homes in accordance with the Project Approvals. 


 


1.4.3. Nuisance.  Developer shall not use or permit the use of any portion of the 


Project for any offensive, noisy or dangerous trade, business manufacturing activity or 


occupation; for any activity which constitutes a nuisance or violated public policy; in violation of 


any law, ordinance rule or regulation of any governmental authority with jurisdiction over any 


portion of the Project. 


1.5. RESERVED. 







 
 


5 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


1.6. Project Approvals. 


Developer has applied for and obtained various environmental and land use approvals 


and entitlements related to the development of the Project, as described below.  For purposes of 


this Development Agreement, the term “Project Approvals” means all of the approvals, plans 


and agreements described in this Section 1.6 and shall include all Project Approvals to (i) 


subdivide that portion of the Property known as Contra Costa APN 402-013-060 into four (4) 


parcels (ii) construct four (4) new single-family homes on such newly created parcels, (iii) 


construct certain infrastructure improvements to serve the four (4) new single-family residences, 


and (iv) construct those other improvements as more fully set forth and described in that certain 


City of Pinole Development Application submitted by Developer to the City on July 17, 2017, 


together with those plans and other information approved by the City Council on ________, 


2020 by Resolution No. ______________.  City and Developer agree to work diligently and in 


good faith toward appropriate planning entitlements and building permit approvals for each 


phase of construction.   


1.6.1. CEQA Exemption.  The City Council determined that the Project is 


categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15332, and that none of 


the exceptions to this exemption specified in CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2 are applicable to 


the Project, on ___________, 2020 by Resolution No. _________. 


1.6.2. Development Agreement.  On ________, 2020, following Planning 


Commission review and recommendation, and after a duly noticed public hearing, the City 


Council, by Ordinance No. _____, approved this Development Agreement and authorized its 


execution. 


1.6.3. Other Concurrent Project Approvals. In order to develop the Project as 


contemplated in this Development Agreement, the following land use approvals shall be required 


a. Tentative Parcel Map. A tentative parcel map will be required for 


the creation of the new parcels. The tentative parcel map shall be approved by the City Council 


and the Final Parcel Map shall be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer and City 


Surveyor pursuant Sections 16.12.220 and 16.12.280 of the City of Pinole Municipal Code; 


b. Comprehensive Design Review. Comprehensive Design Review is 


required for the construction of the four (4) single family residences pursuant to Section 


17.12.150 of the City of Pinole Zoning Code; . 


1.6.4. Subsequent Approvals.  In order to develop the Project as contemplated in 


this Development Agreement, the Project may require land use approvals, entitlements, 


development permits, and use and/or construction approvals other than those listed in Section 1.6 


above, which may include, without limitation:  development plans, amendments to applicable 


conditional use permits, variances, subdivision approvals, street abandonments, design review 


approvals, demolition permits, improvement agreements, infrastructure agreements, grading 


permits, building permits, right-of-way permits, lot line adjustments, design review, lot line 


adjustments, site plans, sewer and water connection permits, certificates of occupancy, parcel 


maps, lot splits, landscaping plans, master sign programs, transportation demand management 







 
 


6 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


programs, encroachment permits, and amendments thereto and to the Project Approvals 


(collectively, “Subsequent Approvals”).  At such time as any Subsequent Approval applicable 


to the Property is approved by the City, then such Subsequent Approval shall become subject to 


all the terms and conditions of this Development Agreement applicable to Project Approvals and 


shall be treated as a “Project Approval” under this Development Agreement. 


ARTICLE 2. 


DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY 


2.1. Project Development. 


Developer shall have a vested right to develop the Project on the Property, in accordance 


with the Vested Elements (defined in Section 2.2). 


2.2. Vested Elements. 


The permitted uses of the Property, the minimum and maximum density, number of 


commercial and retail square footage, the intensity of use, the maximum height and size of the 


proposed buildings, provisions for reservation or dedication of land for public purposes, the 


conditions, terms, restrictions, and requirements for subsequent discretionary actions, the 


provisions for public improvements and financing of public improvements, and the other terms 


and conditions of development applicable to the Property are as set forth in: 


a. The City of Pinole General Plan as of the Effective Date, including any 


General Plan Amendments (“Applicable General Plan”); 


b. The Zoning Ordinance of City on the Effective Date (“Applicable Zoning 


Ordinance”); 


c. Other rules, regulations, ordinances and policies of City applicable to 


development of the Property on the Effective Date, except for any and all fees applicable to the 


development, which shall be vested as set forth in Section 2.6.3 of this Agreement, (collectively, 


together with the Applicable General Plan and the Applicable Zoning Ordinance, the 


“Applicable Rules”); and 


d. The Project Approvals, as they may be amended from time to time with 


Developer’s consent; 


and are hereby vested in Developer, subject to, and as provided in, the provisions of this 


Development Agreement (the “Vested Elements”).  City hereby agrees to be bound with respect 


to the Vested Elements, subject to Developer’s compliance with the terms and conditions of this 


Development Agreement. 


2.3. Development Construction Completion. 


2.3.1. Timing of Development; Pardee Finding.  Because the California 


Supreme Court held in Pardee Construction Co. v. City of Camarillo, 37 Cal.3d 465 (1984), that 


the failure of the parties therein to provide for the timing of development resulted in a later-







 
 


7 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


adopted initiative restricting the timing of development to prevail over the parties’ agreement, it 


is the Parties’ intent to cure that deficiency by acknowledging and providing that, subject to any 


infrastructure phasing requirements that may be required by the Project Approvals, Developer 


shall have the right (without obligation) to develop the Property in such order and at such rate 


and at such times as Developer deems appropriate within the exercise of its subjective business 


judgment. 


2.3.2. Moratorium.  No City-imposed moratorium or other limitation (whether 


relating to the rate, timing or sequencing of the development or construction of all or any part of 


the Property, whether imposed by ordinance, initiative, resolution, policy, order or otherwise, 


and whether enacted by the City Council, an agency of City, the electorate, or otherwise) 


affecting parcel or subdivision  maps (whether tentative, vesting tentative or final), building 


permits, occupancy certificates or other entitlements to use or service (including, without 


limitation, water and sewer) approved, issued or granted within City, or portions of City, shall 


apply to the Property to the extent such moratorium or other limitation is in conflict with this 


Development Agreement; provided, however, the provisions of this Section 2.3.2 shall not affect 


City’s compliance with moratoria or other limitations mandated by other governmental agencies 


or court-imposed moratoria or other limitations. 


2.3.3. No Other Requirements.  Nothing in this Development Agreement is 


intended to create any affirmative development obligations to develop the Project at all, or 


liability in Developer under this Development Agreement if the development fails to occur. 


2.4. Effect of Project Approvals and Applicable Rules; Future Rules. 


2.4.1. Governing Rules.  Except as otherwise explicitly provided in this 


Development Agreement, development of the Property shall be subject to (a) the Project 


Approvals and (b) the Applicable Rules. 


2.4.2. Changes in Applicable Rules; Future Rules. 


a. To the extent any changes in the Applicable Rules, or any 


provisions of future General Plans, Specific Plans, Zoning Ordinances or other rules, regulations, 


ordinances or policies (whether adopted by means of ordinance, initiative, referenda, resolution, 


policy, order, moratorium, or other means, adopted by the City Council, Planning Commission, 


or any other board, commission, agency, committee, or department of City, or any officer or 


employee thereof, or by the electorate) of City (collectively, “Future Rules”) are not in conflict 


with the Vested Elements, such Future Rules shall be applicable to the Project. 


b. To the maximum extent permitted by law, City shall prevent any 


Future Rules from invalidating or prevailing over all or any part of this Development Agreement, 


and City shall cooperate with Developer and shall undertake such actions as may be necessary to 


ensure this Development Agreement remains in full force and effect.  City shall not support, 


adopt or enact any Future Rule, or take any other action which would violate the express 


provisions or spirit and intent of this Development Agreement or the Project Approvals.  


Developer reserves the right to challenge in court any Future Rule that would conflict with the 







 
 


8 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


Vested Elements or this Development Agreement or reduce the development rights provided by 


this Development Agreement. 


c. A Future Rule that conflicts with the Vested Elements shall 


nonetheless apply to the Property if, and only if (i) consented to in writing by Developer; (ii) it is 


determined by City and evidenced through findings adopted by the City Council confirming that 


the change or provision is reasonably required in order to prevent a condition dangerous to the 


public health or safety, that there are no feasible alternatives to the imposition of such change or 


provision and how such change or provision would alleviate the dangerous condition; (iii) it is 


required by changes in State or Federal law as set forth in Section 2.4.3 below; (iv) it consists of 


changes in, or new fees permitted by, Section 2.6; or (v) it is otherwise expressly permitted by 


this Development Agreement. 


d. Prior to the Effective Date, the Parties shall have prepared two (2) 


sets of the Project Approvals and Applicable Rules, one (1) set for City and one (1) set for 


Developer.  If it becomes necessary in the future to refer to any of the Project Approvals or 


Applicable Rules, the contents of these sets are presumed for all purposes of this Development 


Agreement, absent clear clerical error or similar mistake, to constitute the Project Approvals and 


Applicable Rules. 


2.4.3. Changes in State or Federal Laws.  In accordance with California 


Government Code Section 65869.5, in the event that state or federal laws or regulations enacted 


after the Effective Date (“State or Federal Law”) prevent or preclude compliance with one or 


more provisions of this Development Agreement, the Parties shall meet in good faith to 


determine the feasibility of any modification or suspension of this Development Agreement that 


may be necessary to comply with such State or Federal Law and to determine the effect such 


modification or suspension would have on the purposes and intent of this Development 


Agreement and the Vested Elements.  Following the meeting between the Parties, the provisions 


of this Development Agreement may, to the extent feasible, and upon mutual agreement of the 


Parties, be modified or suspended, but only to the minimum extent necessary to comply with 


such State or Federal Law.  In such an event, this Development Agreement, together with any 


required modifications, shall continue in full force and effect.  In the event that the State or 


Federal Law operates to frustrate irremediably and materially the vesting of development rights 


to the Project as set forth in this Agreement, Developer may terminate this Agreement.  In 


addition, Developer shall have the right to challenge (by any method, including litigation) the 


State or Federal Law preventing compliance with, or performance of, the terms of this 


Development Agreement and, in the event that such challenge is successful, this Development 


Agreement shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect, unless (i) Developer fails to 


commence construction under valid permits within two (2) years of the commencement of the 


Term of this Development Agreement, or (ii) Developer fails to submit a written request to City 


prior to the expiration date of any construction permits for an extension of time as allowed under 


the Zoning Ordinance. 


2.4.4. Conflicts.  In the event of an irreconcilable conflict between the provisions 


of the Project Approvals (on the one hand) and the Applicable Rules (on the other hand), the 


provisions of the Project Approvals shall apply.  In the event of a conflict between the Project 







 
 


9 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


Approvals (on the one hand) and this Development Agreement, in particular, (on the other hand), 


the provisions of this Development Agreement shall control. 


2.5. Processing Subsequent Approvals.City will accept, make completeness 


determinations, and process, promptly and diligently, to completion all 


applications for Subsequent Approvals for the Project, in accordance with the 


terms of this Development Agreement. 


2.5.2. Scope of Review of Subsequent Approvals.  By approving the Project 


Approvals, City has made a final policy decision that the Project is in the best interests of the 


public health, safety and general welfare.  Accordingly, City shall not use its authority in 


considering any application for a discretionary Subsequent Approval to change the policy 


decisions reflected by the Project Approvals or otherwise to prevent or delay development of the 


Project as set forth in the Project Approvals.  Instead, the Subsequent Approvals shall be deemed 


to be tools to implement those final policy decisions.  The scope of the review of applications for 


Subsequent Approvals shall be limited to a review of substantial conformity with the Vested 


Elements and the Applicable Rules (except as otherwise provided by Section 2.4), and 


compliance with CEQA.  Where such substantial conformity/compliance exists, City shall not 


deny an application for a Subsequent Approval for the Project. 


2.6. Development Fees, Exactions; and Conditions.General.  All fees, exactions, 


dedications, reservations or other impositions to which the Project would be 


subject, but for this Development Agreement, are referred to in this Development 


Agreement either as “Processing Fees” (as defined in Section 2.6.2) or “Impact 


Fees” (as defined in Section 2.6.3). 


2.6.2. Processing Fees.  “Processing Fees” mean fees charged on a citywide 


basis to cover the cost of City review of applications for any permit or other review by City 


departments.  Applications for Subsequent Approvals for the Project shall be charged Processing 


Fees to allow City to recover its actual and reasonable costs of processing Developer’s 


Subsequent Approvals with respect to the Project. 


2.6.3. Impact Fees.  “Impact Fees” means monetary fees, exactions or 


impositions, other than taxes or assessments, whether established for or imposed upon the 


Project individually or as part of a class of projects, that are imposed by City on the Project in 


connection with any Project Approval for the Project for any purpose, including, without 


limitation, defraying all or a portion of the cost of public services and/or facilities construction, 


improvement, or operation and maintenance attributable to the burden created by the Project.  


Any fee, exaction or imposition imposed on the Project which is not a Processing Fee is an 


Impact Fee.  Subject to the Impact Fee credits provided to Developer in Section 1.4, the 


Developer agrees to pay the specific Impact Fees listed in Exhibit B, attached hereto and 


incorporated herein.  


2.6.4. Conditions of Subsequent Approvals.In connection with any Subsequent 


Approvals, City shall have the right to impose reasonable conditions including, without 


limitation, normal and customary dedications for rights of way or easements for public access, 


utilities, water, sewers, and drainage necessary for the Project; provided, however, such 







 
 


10 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


conditions and dedications shall not be inconsistent with the Applicable Rules or Project 


Approvals, nor inconsistent with the development of the Project as contemplated by this 


Agreement. 


b. No conditions imposed on Subsequent Approvals shall require 


dedications or reservations for, or construction or funding of, public infrastructure or public 


improvements beyond those already included in the Project Approvals.  In addition, any and all 


conditions imposed on Subsequent Approvals for the Project must comply with Sections 2.6.2 


and 2.6.3 herein. 


2.7. Life of Project Approvals and Subdivision Maps. 


2.7.1. Life of Tentative Map.  The terms of any tentative map for the Property, 


any amendment or reconfiguration thereto, or any subsequent tentative map, shall be 


automatically extended such that such tentative maps remain in effect for a period of time 


coterminous with the Term of this Development Agreement. 


2.7.2. Life of Other Project Approvals.  The term of all other Project Approvals, 


shall be automatically extended such that these Project Approvals remain in effect for a period of 


time at least as long as the Term of this Development Agreement. 


2.7.3. Termination of Agreement.  In the event that this Development Agreement 


is terminated prior to the expiration of the Term of the Development Agreement, the term of any 


tentative map or any other Project Approval and the vesting period for any final subdivision map 


approved as a Project Approval shall be the term otherwise applicable to the approval (including 


any extensions), which shall commence to run on the date that the termination of this 


Development Agreement takes effect. 


2.8. Further CEQA Environmental Review. 


2.8.1. Reliance on  CEQA Exemption.  The City has determined that the Project 


is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15332. It is agreed 


that, in acting on any discretionary Subsequent Approvals for the Project, City will rely on this 


exemption to satisfy the requirements of CEQA to the fullest extent permissible by CEQA and 


City will not require a new initial study, negative declaration, EIR or subsequent or supplemental 


EIR unless required by CEQA. 


2.8.2. Subsequent CEQA Review.  In the event that any additional CEQA 


documentation is legally required for any discretionary Subsequent Approval for the Project, 


then the scope of such documentation shall be focused, to the extent possible consistent with 


CEQA, on the specific subject matter of the Subsequent Approval, and the City shall conduct 


such CEQA review as expeditiously as possible. 


2.9. Developer’s Right to Rebuild. Developer may renovate or rebuild the Project 


within the Term of this Agreement should it become necessary due to natural 


disaster, changes in seismic requirements, or should the buildings located within 


the Project become functionally outdated, within Developer’s sole discretion, due 


to changes in technology.  Any such renovation or rebuilding shall be subject to 







 
 


11 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


the Vested Elements, shall comply with the Project Approvals, the building 


regulations existing at the time of such rebuilding or reconstruction, and the 


requirements of CEQA. 


ARTICLE 3. 


ANNUAL REVIEW 


3.1. Annual Review.The annual review required by California Government Code 


Section 65865.1 will be conducted for the purposes and in the manner stated in 


those laws as further provided herein.  As part of that review, City and Developer 


shall have a reasonable opportunity to assert action(s) that either Party believes 


have not been undertaken in accordance with this Development Agreement, to 


explain the basis for such assertion, and to receive from the other Party a 


justification for the other Party’s position with respect to such action(s), and to 


take such actions as permitted by law.  The procedure set forth in this Article shall 


be used by Developer and City in complying with the annual review requirement.  


The City and Developer agree that the annual review process will review 


compliance by Developer and City with the obligations under this Development 


Agreement but will not review compliance with other Project Approvals or other 


agreements between City and Developer. 


3.2. Intentionally omitted. 


3.3. Commencement of Process; Developer Compliance Letter. 


At least fifteen (15) days prior to the anniversary of the Effective Date each year, 


Developer shall submit a letter to the Director of City’s Development Services Director/City 


Engineer demonstrating Developer’s good faith compliance with the material terms and 


conditions of this Development Agreement and shall include in the letter a statement that the 


letter is being submitted to City pursuant to the requirements of Government Code 


Section 65865.1. 


3.4. Development Services Director/City Engineer Review. 


Within thirty (30) days after the receipt of Developer’s letter, the Development Services 


Director/City Engineer shall review Developer’s submission and determine whether Developer 


has, for the year under review, demonstrated good faith compliance with the material terms and 


conditions of this Development Agreement.  If Developer has demonstrated good faith 


compliance, than the Development Services Director/City Engineer shall make such a finding 


and send a letter back to Developer describing the Development Services Director/City 


Engineer’s finding and any comments. 


3.5. Development Services Director/City Engineer Noncompliance Finding. 


If the Development Services Director/City Engineer finds and determines that there is 


substantial evidence that Developer has not complied in good faith with the material terms and 


conditions of this Development Agreement and that Developer is in material breach of this 


Development Agreement for the year under review, the Development Services Director/City 







 
 


12 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


Engineer shall issue and deliver to Developer a written “Notice of Default” specifying in detail 


the nature of the failures in performance that the Development Services Director/City Engineer 


claims constitutes material noncompliance, all facts demonstrating substantial evidence of 


material noncompliance, and the manner in which such noncompliance may be satisfactorily 


cured in accordance with the Development Agreement.  In the event that the material 


noncompliance is an Event of Default pursuant to ARTICLE 5 herein, the Parties shall be 


entitled to their respective rights and obligations under both ARTICLE 3 and 5 herein, except 


that the particular entity allegedly in default shall be accorded only one of the 60-day cure 


periods referred to in Sections 3.6 and 5.1 herein. 


3.6. Cure Period. 


If the Development Services Director/City Engineer finds that Developer is not in 


compliance, the Development Services Director/City Engineer shall grant a reasonable period of 


time for Developer to cure the alleged noncompliance.  The Development Services Director/City 


Engineer shall grant a cure period of at least sixty (60) days and shall extend the sixty (60) day 


period if Developer is proceeding in good faith to cure the noncompliance and additional time is 


reasonably needed.  At the conclusion of the cure period, the Development Services 


Director/City Engineer shall either (i) find that Developer is in compliance; or (ii) find that 


Developer is not in compliance. 


3.7. Referral of Noncompliance to City Council. 


The Development Services Director/City Engineer shall refer the alleged default to the 


City Manager or her designee who then shall discuss the matter with the City Council.  If 


Developer fails to cure the alleged noncompliance to the Development Services Director/City 


Engineer’s reasonable satisfaction during the prescribed cure period and any extensions thereto.  


The Development Services Director/City Engineer shall refer the alleged noncompliance to the 


City Manager who shall forward to the City Council if Developer requests a hearing before the 


City Council.  The Development Services Director/City Engineer shall prepare a staff report to 


the City Council which shall include, in addition to Developer’s letter, (i) demonstration of 


City’s good faith compliance with the terms and conditions of this Development Agreement; 


(ii) the Notice of Default; and (iii) a description of any cure undertaken by Developer during the 


cure period. 


3.8. Delivery of Documents. 


At least five (5) days prior to any City hearing regarding Developer’s compliance with 


this Development Agreement, City shall deliver to Developer all staff reports and all other 


relevant documents pertaining to the hearing. 


3.9. City Council Compliance Finding. 


If the City Council, following a noticed public hearing pursuant to Section 3.7, 


determines that Developer is in compliance with the material terms and conditions of this 


Development Agreement, the annual review shall be deemed concluded.  City shall, at 


Developer’s request, issue and have recorded a Certificate of Compliance indicating Developer’s 


compliance with the terms of this Development Agreement. 







 
 


13 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


3.10. City Council Noncompliance Finding. 


If the City Council, at a properly noticed public hearing pursuant to Section 3.7, finds and 


determines, on the basis of substantial evidence, that Developer has not complied in good faith 


with the material terms or conditions of this Development Agreement and that Developer is in 


material breach of this Development Agreement, Developer will have a reasonable time 


determined by the City Council to meet the reasonable terms of compliance approved by the City 


Council, which time shall be not less than fifteen (15) days.  If Developer does not complete the 


terms of compliance within the time specified, the City Council shall hold a public hearing 


regarding termination or modification of this Development Agreement.  Notification of intention 


to modify or terminate this Development Agreement shall be delivered to Developer by certified 


mail containing:  (i) the time and place of the City Council hearing; (ii) a statement as to whether 


City proposes to terminate or modify this Development Agreement and the terms of any 


proposed modification; and (iii) any other information reasonably necessary to inform Developer 


of the nature of the proceedings.  At the time of the hearing, Developer shall be given an 


opportunity to be heard.  The City Council may impose conditions to the action it takes as 


necessary to protect the interests of City; provided that any modification or termination of this 


Development Agreement pursuant to this provision shall bear a reasonable nexus to, and be 


proportional in severity to the magnitude of, the alleged breach, and in no event shall termination 


be permitted except in accordance with ARTICLE 5 herein. 


3.11. Relationship to Default Provisions. 


The above procedures supplement and do not replace that provision of Section 5.1 of this 


Development Agreement whereby either City or Developer may, at any time, assert matters 


which either Party believes have not been undertaken in accordance with this Development 


Agreement by delivering a written Notice of Default and following the procedures set forth in 


Section 5.1. 


3.12.  Reimbursement of City's Costs Incurred in Bringing About Cure. 


Developer shall be obligated to reimburse to City all costs, expenses, damages and 


attorneys’ fees incurred as a result of any Developer default including all costs incurred in 


bringing about Developer's cure of any such default. 


ARTICLE 4. 


AMENDMENTS 


4.1. Amendments to Development Agreement Legislation. 


This Development Agreement has been entered into in reliance upon the provisions of the 


Development Agreement Legislation as those provisions existed at the Effective Date.  No 


amendment or addition to those provisions or any other federal or state law and regulation that 


would materially adversely affect the interpretation or enforceability of this Development 


Agreement or would prevent or preclude compliance with one or more provisions of this 


Development Agreement shall be applicable to this Development Agreement unless such 


amendment or addition is specifically required by the change in law, or is mandated by a court of 


competent jurisdiction.  In the event of the application of such a change in law, the Parties shall 







 
 


14 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


meet in good faith to determine the feasibility of any modification or suspension that may be 


necessary to comply with such new law or regulation and to determine the effect such 


modification or suspension would have on the purposes and intent of this Development 


Agreement and the Vested Elements.  Following the meeting between the Parties, the provisions 


of this Development Agreement may, to the extent feasible, and upon mutual agreement of the 


Parties, be modified or suspended but only to the minimum extent necessary to comply with such 


new law or regulation.  If such amendment or change is permissive (as opposed to mandatory), 


this Development Agreement shall not be affected by same unless the Parties mutually agree in 


writing to amend this Development Agreement to permit such applicability.  Developer and/or 


City shall have the right to challenge any new law or regulation preventing compliance with the 


terms of this Development Agreement, and in the event such challenge is successful, this 


Development Agreement shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect.  The Term of this 


Development Agreement may be extended for the duration of the period during which such new 


law or regulation precludes compliance with the provisions of this Development Agreement. 


4.2. Amendments to or Cancellation of Development Agreement. 


This Development Agreement may be amended from time to time or canceled in whole 


or in part by mutual consent of both Parties in writing in accordance with the provisions of the 


Development Agreement Legislation.  Review and approval of an amendment to this 


Development Agreement shall be strictly limited to consideration of only those provisions to be 


added or modified.  No amendment, modification, waiver or change to this Development 


Agreement or any provision hereof shall be effective for any purpose unless specifically set forth 


in a writing that expressly refers to this Development Agreement and signed by the duly 


authorized representatives of both Parties.  All amendments to this Development Agreement 


shall be recommended for approval by the Planning Commission and approved by the City 


Council  and, upon such approval, will become part of the Project Approvals. 


4.3. Operating Memoranda. 


The provisions of this Development Agreement require a close degree of cooperation 


between City and Developer and development of the Property hereunder may demonstrate that 


refinements and clarifications are appropriate with respect to the details of performance of City 


and Developer.  If and when, from time to time, during the Term of this Development 


Agreement, City and Developer agree that such clarifications are necessary or appropriate, City 


and Developer shall effectuate such clarifications through operating memoranda approved by 


City and Developer, which, after execution, shall be attached hereto as addenda and become a 


part hereof, and may be further clarified from time to time as necessary with future approval by 


City and Developer.  No such operating memoranda shall constitute an amendment to this 


Development Agreement requiring public notice or hearing.  The City Manager, in consultation 


with the City Attorney, shall make the determination on behalf of City whether a requested 


clarification may be effectuated pursuant to this Section 4.3 or whether the requested 


clarification is of such a character to constitute an amendment hereof pursuant to Section 4.2 


above.  The City Manager shall be authorized to execute any operating memoranda hereunder on 


behalf of City. 







 
 


15 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


4.4. Amendments to Project Approvals. 


Notwithstanding any other provision of this Development Agreement, Developer may 


seek and City may review and grant amendments or modifications to the Project Approvals 


(including the Subsequent Approvals) subject to the following (except that the procedures for 


amendment of this Development Agreement are set forth in Section 4.2 herein). 


4.4.1. Amendments to Project Approvals.  Project Approvals (except for this 


Development Agreement the amendment process for which is set forth in Section 4.2) may be 


amended or modified from time to time, but only at the written request of Developer or with the 


written consent of Developer (at its sole discretion) and in accordance with Section 2.4.  All 


amendments to the Project Approvals shall automatically become part of the Project Approvals, 


except to the extent such amendments are considered by the Development Services Director/City 


Engineer, in his or her sole discretion, to constitute a major amendment.  In such case, Developer 


consents to any major amendment’s review before the Planning Commission for approval or 


recommendation to the City Council, whose review and approval or denial shall be final.  The 


permitted uses of the Property, the maximum height and size of the proposed buildings, 


provisions for reservation or dedication of land for public purposes, the conditions, terms, 


restrictions and requirements for subsequent discretionary actions, the provisions for public 


improvements and financing of public improvements, and the other terms and conditions of 


development as set forth in all such amendments, except those considered by the Development 


Services Director/City Engineer to be a major amendment, shall be automatically vested 


pursuant to this Development Agreement, without requiring an amendment to this Development 


Agreement.  Amendments to the Project Approvals shall be governed by the Project Approvals 


and the Applicable Rules, subject to Section 2.4.  City shall not request, process or consent to 


any amendment to the Project Approvals that would affect the Property or the Project without 


Developer’s prior written consent unless a Project Approval has not been activated within two 


(2) years of commencement of the Term of this Development Agreement or a Project Approval 


has expired. 


4.4.2. Administrative Amendments.  Upon the request of Developer for an 


amendment or modification of any Project Approval, the Development Services Director/City 


Engineer or his/her designee shall determine:  (a) whether the requested amendment or 


modification is minor when considered in light of the Project as a whole; and (b) whether the 


requested amendment or modification substantially conforms with the material terms of this 


Development Agreement and the Applicable Rules.  If the Development Services Director/City 


Engineer or his/her designee finds that the requested amendment or modification is both minor 


and substantially conforms with the material terms of this Development Agreement and the 


Applicable Rules, the amendment or modification shall be determined to be an “Administrative 


Amendment,” and the Development Services Director/City Engineer or his or her designee may 


approve the Administrative Amendment, without public notice or a public hearing.  Without 


limiting the generality of the foregoing, lot line adjustments, minor alterations in vehicle 


circulation patterns or vehicle access points, variations in the location of structures that do not 


substantially alter the design concepts of the Project, substitution of comparable landscaping for 


any landscaping shown on any development plan or landscape plan, variations in the location or 


installation of utilities and other infrastructure connections and facilities that do not substantially 


alter design concepts of the Project, and minor adjustments to the Property legal description shall 







 
 


16 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


be deemed to be minor amendments or modifications.  Any request of Developer for an 


amendment or modification to a Project Approval that is determined not to be an Administrative 


Amendment as set forth above shall be subject to review, consideration and action pursuant to 


the Applicable Rules and this Agreement. 


ARTICLE 5. 


DEFAULT, REMEDIES AND TERMINATION 


5.1. Events of Default. 


Subject to any extensions of time by mutual consent of the Parties in writing, and subject 


to the provisions of Section 9.2 hereof regarding permitted delays and a Mortgagee’s right to 


cure pursuant to Section 8.3 hereof, any failure by either Party to perform any material term or 


provision of this Development Agreement (not including any failure by Developer to perform 


any term or provision of any other Project Approvals) shall constitute an “Event of Default,” 


(i) if such defaulting Party does not cure such failure within sixty (60) days (such sixty (60) day 


period is not in addition to any (60) day cure period under Section 3.7, if Section 3.7 is 


applicable) following written notice of default from the other Party, where such failure is of a 


nature that can be cured within such sixty (60) day period, or (ii) if such failure is not of a nature 


which can be cured within such sixty (60) day period, the defaulting Party does not within such 


sixty (60) day period commence substantial efforts to cure such failure, or thereafter does not 


within a reasonable time prosecute to completion with diligence and continuity the curing of 


such failure.   


Any notice of default given hereunder shall specify in detail the nature of the failures in 


performance that the noticing Party claims constitutes the Event of Default, all facts constituting 


substantial evidence of such failure, and the manner in which such failure may be satisfactorily 


cured in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Development Agreement.  During the 


time periods herein specified for cure of a failure of performance, the Party charged therewith 


shall not be considered to be in default for purposes of (a) termination of this Development 


Agreement, (b) institution of legal proceedings with respect thereto, or (c) issuance of any 


approval with respect to the Project.  The waiver by either Party of any default under this 


Development Agreement shall not operate as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or 


any other provision of this Development Agreement. 


5.2. Meet and Confer. 


During the time periods specified in Section 5.1 for cure of a failure of performance, the 


Parties shall meet and confer in a timely and responsive manner, to attempt to resolve any 


matters prior to litigation or other action being taken, including without limitation any action in 


law or equity; provided, however, nothing herein shall be construed to extend the time period for 


this meet and confer obligation beyond the 60-day cure period referred to in Section 5.1 (even if 


the 60-day cure period itself is extended pursuant to Section 5.1) unless the Parties agree 


otherwise in writing. 







 
 


17 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


5.3. Remedies and Termination. 


If, after notice and expiration of the cure periods and procedures set forth in Sections 5.1 


and 5.2, the alleged Event of Default is not cured, the non-defaulting Party, at its option, may 


institute legal proceedings pursuant to Section 5.4 of this Development Agreement and/or 


terminate this Development Agreement pursuant to Section 5.5 herein.  In the event that this 


Development Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 5.5 herein and litigation is instituted 


that results in a final decision that such termination was improper, then this Development 


Agreement shall immediately be reinstated as though it had never been terminated. 


5.4. Legal Action by Parties. 


5.4.1. Remedies.  Either Party may, in addition to any other rights or remedies, 


institute legal action to cure, correct or remedy any default, enforce any covenant or agreement 


herein, enjoin any threatened or attempted violation thereof, enforce by specific performance the 


obligations and rights of the Parties hereto or to obtain any remedies consistent with the purpose 


of this Development Agreement.  All remedies shall be cumulative and not exclusive of one 


another, and the exercise of any one or more of these remedies shall not constitute a waiver or 


election with respect to any other available remedy.  Without limiting the foregoing, Developer 


reserves the right to challenge in court any Future Rules that would conflict with the Vested 


Elements or the Subsequent Approvals for the Project or reduce the development rights provided 


by the Project Approvals. 


5.4.2. No Damages.  In no event shall either Party, or its boards, commissions, 


officers, agents or employees, be liable in damages for any default under this Development 


Agreement, it being expressly understood and agreed that the sole legal remedy available to 


either Party for a breach or violation of this Development Agreement by the other Party shall be 


an action in mandamus, specific performance or other injunctive or declaratory relief to enforce 


the provisions of this Development Agreement by the other Party, or to terminate this 


Development Agreement.  This limitation on damages shall not preclude actions by a Party to 


enforce payments of monies or the performance of obligations requiring an obligation of money 


from the other Party under the terms of this Development Agreement including, but not limited 


to obligations to pay attorneys’ fees and obligations to advance monies or reimburse monies.  In 


connection with the foregoing provisions, each Party acknowledges, warrants and represents that 


it has been fully informed with respect to, and represented by counsel of such Party’s choice in 


connection with, the rights and remedies of such Party hereunder and the waivers herein 


contained, and after such advice and consultation has presently and actually intended, with full 


knowledge of such Party’s rights and remedies otherwise available at law or in equity, to waive 


and relinquish such rights and remedies to the extent specified herein, and to rely to the extent 


herein specified solely on the remedies provided for herein with respect to any breach of this 


Development Agreement by the other Party. 


5.5. Termination. 


5.5.1. Expiration of Term.  Except as otherwise provided in this Development 


Agreement, this Development Agreement shall be deemed terminated and of no further effect 


upon the expiration of the Term of this Development Agreement as set forth in Section 1.3. 







 
 


18 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


5.5.2. Survival of Obligations.  Upon the termination or expiration of this 


Development Agreement as provided herein, neither Party shall have any further right or 


obligation with respect to the Property under this Development Agreement except with respect to 


any obligation that is specifically set forth as surviving the termination or expiration of this 


Development Agreement.  The termination or expiration of this Development Agreement shall 


not affect the validity of the Project Approvals (other than this Development Agreement) for the 


Project. 


5.5.3. Termination by City.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 


Development Agreement, City shall not have the right to terminate this Development Agreement 


with respect to all or any portion of the Property before the expiration of its Term unless City 


complies with all termination procedures set forth in the Development Agreement Legislation 


and there is an alleged Event of Default by Developer and such Event of Default is not cured 


pursuant to ARTICLE 3 herein or this ARTICLE 5 and Developer has first been afforded an 


opportunity to be heard regarding the alleged default before the City Council and this 


Development Agreement is terminated only with respect to that portion of the Property to which 


the default applies. 


ARTICLE 6. 


COOPERATION AND IMPLEMENTATION 


6.1. Further Actions and Instruments. 


Each Party to this Development Agreement shall cooperate with and provide reasonable 


assistance to the other Party and take all actions necessary to ensure that the Parties receive the 


benefits of this Development Agreement, subject to satisfaction of the conditions of this 


Development Agreement.  Upon the request of any Party, the other Party shall promptly execute, 


with acknowledgment or affidavit if reasonably required, and file or record such required 


instruments and writings and take any actions as may be reasonably necessary under the terms of 


this Development Agreement to carry out the intent and to fulfill the provisions of this 


Development Agreement or to evidence or consummate the transactions contemplated by this 


Development Agreement. 


6.2. Regulation by Other Public Agencies. 


Other public agencies not within the control of City may possess authority to regulate 


aspects of the development of the Property separately from or jointly with City, and this 


Development Agreement does not limit the authority of such other public agencies.  


Nevertheless, City shall be bound by, and shall abide by, its covenants and obligations under this 


Development Agreement in all respects when dealing with any such agency regarding the 


Property.  To the extent that City, the City Council, the Planning Commission or any other board, 


agency, committee, department or commission of City constitutes and sits as any other board, 


agency, commission, committee, or department, it shall not take any action that conflicts with 


City’s obligations under this Agreement unless required to by any State or Federal law. 







 
 


19 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


6.3. Other Governmental Permits and Approvals; Grants. 


Developer shall apply in a timely manner in accordance with Developer’s construction 


schedule for the permits and approvals from other governmental or quasi-governmental agencies 


having jurisdiction over the Project as may be required for the development of, or provision of 


services to, the Project.  Developer shall comply with all such permits, requirements and 


approvals.  City shall cooperate with Developer in its endeavors to obtain (a) such permits and 


approvals and (b) any grants for the Project for which Developer applies. 


6.4. Cooperation in the Event of Legal Challenge. 


6.4.1. The filing of any third party lawsuit(s) against City or Developer relating 


to this Agreement, the Project Approvals or other development issues affecting the Property shall 


not delay or stop the development, processing or construction of the Project or approval of any 


Subsequent Approvals, unless the third party obtains a court order preventing the activity.  City 


shall not stipulate to or cooperate in the issuance of any such order. 


6.4.2. In the event of any administrative, legal or equitable action instituted by a 


third party challenging the validity of any provision of this Development Agreement, the 


procedures leading to its adoption, the Project Approvals for the Project or the portions of the 


LRPMP applicable to the Property and this Project (“Initial Litigation Challenge”), Developer 


and City each shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to elect whether or not to defend such 


action, to select its own counsel, and to control its participation and conduct in the litigation in 


all respects permitted by law.  If an Initial Litigation Challenge is filed, upon receipt of the 


petition, the Parties will have 20 days to meet and confer regarding the merits of such Initial 


Litigation Challenge and to determine whether to defend against the Initial Litigation Challenge, 


which period may be extended by the Parties’ mutual agreement so long as it does not impact 


any litigation deadlines.   


If, after meeting and conferring, the Parties mutually agree to defend against the Initial 


Litigation Challenge, then the following shall apply:  (i) the Parties hereby agree to affirmatively 


cooperate in defending said action and to execute a joint defense and confidentiality agreement 


in order to share and protect information, under the joint defense privilege recognized under 


applicable law; (ii) for the purposes of cost-efficiency and coordination, the Parties shall first 


consider defending the Initial Litigation Challenge jointly, with counsel and under terms of joint 


representation mutually acceptable to the City and Developer (each in its sole discretion), at the 


Developer’s sole cost and expense; and (iii) if the Parties cannot reach timely and mutual 


agreement on a joint counsel, and Developer continues to elect (in its sole discretion) to defend 


against the Initial Litigation Challenge, then Developer shall take the lead role defending such 


Initial Litigation Challenge and may, in its sole discretion, elect to be represented by the legal 


counsel of its choice, in which case, City, at its expense, may elect to be separately represented 


by the outside legal counsel of its choice in any such action or proceeding.  The City Manager is 


authorized to negotiate and enter into a joint defense agreement in a form acceptable to the City 


Attorney.  Such joint defense agreement shall also provide that any proposed settlement of an 


Initial Litigation Challenge shall be subject to City’s and Developer’s approval, each in its 


reasonable discretion.   







 
 


20 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


As part of the cooperation in defending an action, City and Developer shall coordinate 


their defense in order to make the most efficient use of legal counsel and to share and protect 


information.  Developer and City shall each have sole discretion to terminate its defense at any 


time.  If Developer elects, in its sole and absolute discretion, not to defend against the Initial 


Litigation Challenge, it shall deliver written notice to the City regarding such decision.  If 


Developer elects not to defend, the City has the right, but not the obligation, to proceed to defend 


against the Initial Litigation Challenge and shall take the lead role defending such Initial 


Litigation Challenge and may, in its sole discretion, elect to be represented by the legal counsel 


of its choice, at its sole cost and expense.  If Developer elects not to defend, the City has the 


right, but not the obligation, to terminate this Agreement and consider the Developer’s 


application for any related Project Approvals withdrawn.  The City shall not settle any third party 


litigation of Project Approvals without Developer’s consent, which consent shall not be 


unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 


6.5. Revision to Project. 


In the event of a court order issued as a result of a successful legal challenge, City shall, 


to the extent permitted by law or court order, in good faith seek to comply with the court order in 


such a manner as will maintain the integrity of the Project Approvals and avoid or minimize to 


the greatest extent possible (i) any impact to the development of the Project as provided for in, 


and contemplated by, the Vested Elements, or (ii) any conflict with the Vested Elements or 


frustration of the intent or purpose of the Vested Elements. 


6.6. State, Federal or Case Law. 


Where any state, federal or case law allows City to exercise any discretion or take any act 


with respect to that law, City shall, in an expeditious and timely manner, at the earliest possible 


time, (a) exercise its discretion in such a way as to be consistent with, and carry out the terms of, 


this Development Agreement and (b) take such other actions as may be necessary to carry out in 


good faith the terms of this Development Agreement. 


6.7. Defense of Agreement. 


City shall take all actions that are necessary or advisable to uphold the validity and 


enforceability of this Development Agreement.  If this Development Agreement is adjudicated or 


determined to be invalid or unenforceable, City agrees, subject to all legal requirements, to 


consider modifications to this Development Agreement to render it valid and enforceable to the 


extent permitted by applicable law.  Developer shall pay all of City’s costs, including attorneys’ 


fees and experts’ costs, incurred to modify or defend this Development Agreement. 


ARTICLE 7. 


TRANSFERS AND ASSIGNMENTS 


7.1. Right to Assign. 


Provided City or Successor Agency is the owner of the Property, Developer may not sell, 


assign or transfer (“Transfer”) in whole or in part its rights, duties and obligations under this 


Development Agreement, to any person or entity at any time during the Term of this 







 
 


21 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


Development Agreement without the prior consent of City, which consent shall not be 


unreasonably withheld.  If Developer has exercised its option to purchase, and owns the Property 


in fee, Developer may Transfer its rights, duties and obligations under this Development 


Agreement without the prior consent of City; provided, however, in no event shall the rights, 


duties and obligations conferred upon Developer pursuant to this Development Agreement be at 


any time so transferred except through a transfer of the Property.  In the event of a transfer of a 


portion of the Property, Developer shall have the right to Transfer its rights, duties and 


obligations under this Development Agreement that are applicable to the transferred portion, and 


to retain all rights, duties and obligations applicable to the retained portions of the Property.  


Upon Developer’s request, City shall cooperate with Developer and any proposed transferee to 


allocate rights, duties and obligations under this Development Agreement and the Project 


Approvals among the transferred Property and the retained Property. 


7.2. Release upon Transfer. 


Upon the Transfer of Developer’s rights and interests under this Development Agreement 


pursuant to Section 7.1, Developer shall automatically be released from its obligations and 


liabilities under this Development Agreement with respect to that portion of the Property 


transferred, and any subsequent default or breach with respect to the transferred rights and/or 


obligations shall not constitute a default or breach with respect to the retained rights and/or 


obligations under this Development Agreement, provided that (i) Developer has provided to City 


written notice of such Transfer, and (ii) the transferee executes and delivers to City a written 


agreement in which (a) the name and address of the transferee is set forth and (b) the transferee 


expressly and unconditionally assumes all of the obligations of Developer under this 


Development Agreement with respect to that portion of the Property transferred.  Upon any 


transfer of any portion of the Property and the express assumption of Developer’s obligations 


under this Development Agreement by such transferee, City agrees to look solely to the 


transferee for compliance by such transferee with the provisions of this Development Agreement 


as such provisions relate to the portion of the Property acquired by such transferee.  A default by 


any transferee shall only affect that portion of the Property owned by such transferee and shall 


not cancel or diminish in any way Developer’s rights hereunder with respect to any portion of the 


Property not owned by such transferee.  The transferor and the transferee shall each be solely 


responsible for the reporting and annual review requirements relating to the portion of the 


Property owned by such transferor/transferee, and any amendment to this Development 


Agreement between City and a transferor or a transferee shall only affect the portion of the 


Property owned by such transferor or transferee.  Failure to deliver a written assumption 


agreement hereunder shall not affect the running of any covenants herein with the land, as 


provided in Section 7.3 below, nor shall such failure negate, modify or otherwise affect the 


liability of any transferee pursuant to the provisions of this Development Agreement. 


7.3. Covenants Run with the Land. 


All of the provisions, agreements, rights, powers, standards, terms, covenants and 


obligations contained in this Development Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties and their 


respective successors (by merger, reorganization, consolidation, or otherwise) and assigns, 


devisees, administrators, representatives, lessees, and all of the persons or entities acquiring the 


Property or any portion thereof, or any interest therein, whether by operation of law or in any 







 
 


22 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


manner whatsoever, and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors 


(by merger, consolidation or otherwise) and assigns.  All of the provisions of this Development 


Agreement shall be enforceable as equitable servitudes and constitute covenants running with the 


land pursuant to applicable law, including but not limited to, Section 1468 of the Civil Code of 


the State of California.  Each covenant to do, or refrain from doing, some act on the Property 


hereunder (i) is for the benefit of such Property and is a burden upon such Property, (ii) runs with 


such Property, (iii) is binding upon each Party and each successive owner during its ownership of 


such Property or any portion thereof, and (iv) each person or entity having any interest therein 


derived in any manner through any owner of such Property, or any portion thereof, and shall 


benefit the Property hereunder, and each other person or entity succeeding to an interest in such 


Property. 


ARTICLE 8. 


MORTGAGEE PROTECTION; CERTAIN RIGHTS OF CURE 


8.1. Mortgagee Protection. 


This Development Agreement shall not prevent or limit Developer in any manner, at 


Developer’s sole discretion, from encumbering the Property or any portion thereof or any 


improvement thereon by any mortgage, deed of trust or other security device securing financing 


with respect to the Property (“Mortgage”).  This Development Agreement shall be superior and 


senior to any lien placed upon the Property or any portion thereof after the date of recording this 


Development Agreement, including the lien of any Mortgage.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 


no breach hereof shall defeat, render invalid, diminish or impair the lien of any Mortgage made 


in good faith and for value, but all of the terms and conditions contained in this Development 


Agreement shall be binding upon and effective against and inure to the benefit of any person or 


entity, including any deed of trust beneficiary or mortgagee (“Mortgagee”) who acquires title to 


the Property, or any portion thereof, by foreclosure, trustee’s sale, deed in lieu of foreclosure, or 


otherwise. 


8.2. Mortgagee Not Obligated. 


Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 8.1 above, no Mortgagee shall have any 


obligation or duty under this Development Agreement to perform Developer’s obligations or 


other affirmative covenants of Developer hereunder; provided, however, that a Mortgagee shall 


not be entitled to devote the Property to any uses or to construct any improvements thereon other 


than those uses or improvements provided for or authorized by this Development Agreement, or 


by the Project Approvals and Applicable Rules. 


8.3. Notice of Default to Mortgagee; Right of Mortgagee to Cure. 


If City receives a notice from a Mortgagee requesting a copy of any Notice of Default 


given to Developer hereunder and specifying the address for service thereof, then City shall 


deliver to such Mortgagee, concurrently with service thereon to Developer, any notice given to 


Developer with respect to any claim by City that Developer has committed a default, and if City 


makes a determination of noncompliance hereunder, City shall likewise serve notice of such 


noncompliance on such Mortgagee concurrently with service thereof on Developer.  Each 







 
 


23 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


Mortgagee shall have the right (but not the obligation) during the same period available to 


Developer to cure or remedy, or to commence to cure or remedy, the Event of Default claimed or 


the areas of noncompliance set forth in City’s notice. 


8.4. No Supersedure. 


Nothing in this ARTICLE 8 shall be deemed to supersede or release a Mortgagee or 


modify a Mortgagee’s obligations under any subdivision improvement agreement or other 


obligation incurred with respect to the Project outside this Development Agreement, nor shall 


any provision of this ARTICLE 8 constitute an obligation of City to such Mortgagee, except as 


to the notice requirements of Section 8.3. 


8.5. Technical Amendments. 


City agrees to reasonably consider and approve interpretations and/or technical 


amendments to the provisions of this Agreement that are required by lenders for the acquisition 


and construction of the improvements on the Property or any refinancing thereof and to 


otherwise cooperate in good faith to facilitate Developer’s negotiations with lenders. 


ARTICLE 9. 


MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 


9.1. Limitation on Liability. 


Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Development Agreement, in 


no event shall any member, officer, agent or employee of City be personally liable for any breach 


of this Development Agreement by City or for any amount which may become due to Developer 


under the terms of this Development Agreement. 


9.2. Force Majeure. 


The Term of this Development Agreement and the Project Approvals and the time within 


which Developer shall be required to perform any act under this Development Agreement shall 


be extended by a period of time equal to the number of days during which performance of such 


act is delayed unavoidably and beyond the reasonable control of the Party seeking the delay by 


strikes, lock-outs and other labor difficulties, Acts of God, inclement weather, failure or inability 


to secure materials or labor by reason of priority or similar regulations or order of any 


governmental or regulatory body, changes in local, state or federal laws or regulations, any 


development moratorium or any action of other public agencies that regulate land use, 


development or the provision of services prevents, prohibits or delays construction of the Project, 


enemy action, civil disturbances, wars, terrorist acts, fire, unavoidable casualties, litigation 


involving this Agreement or the Project Approvals, or any other cause beyond the reasonable 


control of Developer which substantially interferes with carrying out the development of the 


Project.  Such extension(s) of time shall not constitute an Event of Default and shall occur at the 


request of any Party.  In addition, the Term of this Development Agreement and any subdivision 


map or any of the other Project Approvals shall not include any period of time during which (i) a 


development moratorium including, but not limited to, a water or sewer moratorium, is in effect; 


(ii) the actions of public agencies that regulate land use, development or the provision of services 







 
 


24 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


to the Property prevent, prohibit or delay either the construction, funding or development of the 


Project; or (iii) there is any mediation, arbitration, litigation or other administrative or judicial 


proceeding pending involving the Vested Elements, or Project Approvals.  The Term of the 


Project Approvals shall therefore be extended by the length of any development moratorium or 


similar action; the amount of time any actions of public agencies prevent, prohibit or delay the 


construction, funding or development of the Project; or the amount of time to finally resolve any 


mediation, arbitration, litigation or other administrative or judicial proceeding involving the 


Vested Elements, or Project Approvals.  Furthermore, in the event the issuance of a building 


permit for any part of the Project is delayed as a result of Developer’s inability to obtain any 


other required permit or approval, then the Term of this Development Agreement shall be 


extended by the period of any such delay. 


9.3. Notices, Demands and Communications Between the Parties. 


Formal written notices, demands, correspondence and communications between City and 


Developer shall be sufficiently given if delivered personally (including delivery by private 


courier), dispatched by certified mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, or delivered 


by nationally recognized overnight courier service, or by electronic facsimile transmission 


followed by delivery of a “hard” copy to the offices of City and Developer indicated below.  


Such written notices, demands, correspondence and communications may be sent in the same 


manner to such persons and addresses as either Party may from time-to-time designate in writing 


at least fifteen (15) days prior to the name and/or address change and as provided in this 


Section 9.3. 


City:    City of Pinole 


    2131 Pear Street 


    Pinole, CA 94564 


    Attn:  City Manager 


 


with copies to:   City of Pinole 


    2131 Pear Street 


    Pinole, CA 94564 


    Attn:  City Attorney 


 


Developer:   Baljit Dhaliwal 


    1068 Turquoise Drive 


    Hercules, CA 94547 


 


 


Notices personally delivered shall be deemed to have been received upon delivery.  


Notices delivered by certified mail, as provided above, shall be deemed to have been given and 


received on the first to occur of (i) actual receipt by any of the addresses designated above as the 


Party to whom notices are to be sent, or (ii) within five (5) days after a certified letter containing 


such notice, properly addressed, with postage prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail.  


Notices delivered by overnight courier service as provided above shall be deemed to have been 


received twenty-four (24) hours after the date of deposit.  Notices delivered by electronic 







 
 


25 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


facsimile transmission shall be deemed received upon receipt of sender of electronic 


confirmation of delivery, provided that a “hard” copy is delivered as provided above. 


9.4. Project as a Private Undertaking; No Joint Venture or Partnership.The Project 


constitutes private development, neither City nor Developer is acting as the agent 


of the other in any respect hereunder, and City and Developer are independent 


entities with respect to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Nothing 


contained in this Development Agreement or in any document executed in 


connection with this Development Agreement shall be construed as making City 


and Developer joint venturers or partners. 


9.5. Severability. 


If any terms or provision(s) of this Development Agreement or the application of any 


term(s)or provision(s) of this Development Agreement to a particular situation, is (are) held by a 


court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of this 


Development Agreement or the application of this Development Agreement to other situations, 


shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by mutual consent of the 


Parties.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any material provision of this Development 


Agreement, or the application of such provision to a particular situation, is held to be invalid, 


void or unenforceable, Developer (in its sole and absolute discretion) may terminate this 


Development Agreement by providing written notice of such termination to City. 


9.6. Section Headings. 


Article and Section headings in this Development Agreement are for convenience only 


and are not intended to be used in interpreting or construing the terms, covenants or conditions of 


this Development Agreement. 


9.7. Construction of Agreement. 


This Development Agreement has been reviewed and revised by legal counsel for both 


Developer and City, and no presumption or rule that ambiguities shall be construed against the 


drafting Party shall apply to the interpretation or enforcement of this Development Agreement. 


9.8. Entire Agreement. 


This Development Agreement, including the Recitals, and exhibits attached hereto and 


incorporated by reference herein, together with the Project Approvals, constitutes the entire 


understanding and agreement of the Parties and supersedes all negotiations or previous 


agreements between the Parties with respect to all or any part of the subject matter hereof.  The 


exhibits and appendices are as follows: 


Exhibit A Legal Description of the Property 


Exhibit B Impact Fees 


Exhibit C Resale Restriction Agreement 







 
 


26 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


 


 


9.9. Estoppel Certificates. 


Either Party may, at any time during the Term of this Development Agreement, and from 


time to time, deliver written notice to the other Party requesting such Party to certify in writing 


that, to the knowledge of the certifying Party, (i) this Development Agreement is in full force and 


effect and a binding obligation of the Parties, (ii) this Development Agreement has not been 


amended or modified either orally or in writing, or if amended; identifying the amendments, 


(iii) the requesting Party is not in default in the performance of its obligations under this 


Development Agreement, or if in default, to describe therein the nature and amount of any such 


defaults, and (iv) any other information reasonably requested.  The Party receiving a request 


hereunder shall execute and return such certificate or give a written, detailed response explaining 


why it will not do so within twenty (20) days following the receipt thereof.  The failure of either 


Party to provide the requested certificate within such twenty (20) day period shall constitute a 


confirmation that this Agreement is in full force and effect and no modification or default exists.  


Either the City Manager or her designee shall have the right to execute any certificate requested 


by Developer hereunder.  City acknowledges that a certificate hereunder may be relied upon by 


transferees and Mortgagees. 


9.10. Recordation. 


Pursuant to California Government Code Section 65868.5, within ten (10) days after the 


later of the Parties’ execution of this Development Agreement or the Effective Date, the City 


Clerk shall record this Development Agreement with the Contra Costa County Recorder.  


Thereafter, if this Development Agreement is terminated, modified or amended, the City Clerk 


shall record notice of such action with the Contra Costa County Recorder. 


9.11. No Waiver. 


No delay or omission by either Party in exercising any right or power accruing upon 


noncompliance or failure to perform by the other Party under any of the provisions of this 


Development Agreement shall impair any such right or power or be construed to be a waiver 


thereof.  A waiver by either Party of any of the covenants or conditions to be performed by the 


other Party shall be in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the Party against 


whom enforcement of a waiver is sought, and any such waiver shall not be construed as a waiver 


of any succeeding breach or non-performance of the same or other covenants and conditions 


hereof. 


9.12. Time Is of the Essence. 


Time is of the essence for each provision of this Development Agreement for which time 


is an element. 







 
 


27 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


9.13. Applicable Law. 


This Development Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 


laws of the State of California. 


9.14. Attorneys’ Fees. 


Should any legal action be brought by either Party because of a breach of this 


Development Agreement or to enforce any provision of this Development Agreement, the 


prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and such other costs as may be 


found by the court. 


9.15. Third Party Beneficiaries. 


Except as otherwise provided herein, City and Developer hereby renounce the existence 


of any third party beneficiary to this Development Agreement and agree that nothing contained 


herein shall be construed as giving any other person or entity third party beneficiary status.   


9.16. Constructive Notice and Acceptance. 


Every person who now or hereafter owns or acquires any right, title or interest in or to 


any portion of the Property is and shall be conclusively deemed to have consented and agreed to 


every provision contained herein, whether or not any reference to this Development Agreement 


is contained in the instrument by which such person acquired an interest in the Property. 


9.17. Counterparts. 


This Development Agreement may be executed by each Party on a separate signature 


page, and when the executed signature pages are combined, shall constitute one single 


instrument. 


9.18. Authority. 


The persons signing below represent and warrant that they have the authority to bind their 


respective Party and that all necessary board of directors’, shareholders’, partners’, city councils’ 


or other approvals have been obtained. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Developer have executed this Development 


Agreement as of the date first set forth above. 


 


DEVELOPER: 


BAJIT DHALIWAL 


an individual 







 
 


28 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


 


By: __________________________________ 


Name: Bajit Dhaliwal 


 


Title: __________________________________ 


 


 


 


CITY: 


 


CITY OF PINOLE 


a municipal corporation 


 


 


By: __________________________________ 


 


Name: __________________________________ 


 


Title: __________________________________ 


 


ATTESTATION: 


 


 


By: ________________________  


 City Clerk 


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


 


 


By: ________________________  


 Eric S. Casher 


 City Attorney 


 


 


SIGNATURES MUST BE NOTARIZED 


 







 


 


3598308.1   
 


 


EXHIBIT A 


 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  











 
 
 
 


  


 


 


EXHIBIT B 


IMPACT FEES 











 
 
 
 


  


 


 


EXHIBIT C 


RESALE RESTRICTION 


 
  







 
 
 
 


  


 


 


 
 


3598308.1  







 


 


City of Pinole 
Hazel Street Project 


 
 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


September 2020 
 
 
 
 


Prepared By 


 


1501 Sports Drive, Suite A, Sacramento, CA 95834







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


i 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 


A. INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY .......................................................................................... 1 


B. PROJECT DESCRIPTION ........................................................................................................... 1 


C. DISCUSSION .................................................................................................................................. 8 


D. EXCEPTIONS TO CATEGORICAL EXEMPTIONS ANALYSIS ....................................... 19 


E.  CONCLUSION ............................................................................................................................. 12 


Appendices 
 


Appendix A: Tree Memo 


Appendix B: Wetlands and Biological Resources Assessment 


Appendix C: Air Quality Modeling Results 


 


 


 


 







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


1 


September 2020 


A. INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY 


 


The City of Pinole has requested that Raney Planning & Management, Inc. (Raney) conduct a 


review of the Hazel Street Project (proposed project) to determine if the project could be 


considered exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Generally, the 


proposed project consists of two components: 1) subdivision of APN 402-013-060 into four lots 


to accommodate the future construction of four, two-story single-family residences and associated 


improvements; and 2) piping the existing drainage ditch located within the unpaved portion of 


Hazel Street and paving the connection of the roadway to complete the City’s planned circulation 


network in the residential community.  


 


Section 21084 of the Public Resources Code requires the CEQA Guidelines to include a list of 


classes of projects which have been determined not to have a significant effect on the environment 


and which shall, therefore, be exempt from the provisions of CEQA. In response to that mandate, 


the Secretary of the Natural Resources Agency has found that several classes of projects listed in 


Article 19 do not have a significant effect on the environment and, thus, are declared to be 


categorically exempt from the requirement for the preparation of environmental documents. 


 


As will be demonstrated below, the proposed project is considered exempt from CEQA, consistent 


with CEQA Guidelines Section 15332, In-Fill Development Projects. In addition, none of the 


exceptions specified by CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 are applicable to the proposed project. 


 


B. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 


 
The following sections provide a description of the current environmental setting of the project 
area, as well as the components of the proposed project. 
 
Project Location and Setting 


 


The 0.81-acre project site is located at the western terminus of Hazel Street in the City of Pinole, 


California, and identified by the Contra Costa County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 


(APNs) 402-013-060 and 402-013-061 (see Figure 1 and Figure 2). The approximately 0.56-acre 


southern parcel, identified as APN 402-013-060, is currently vacant and undeveloped. The parcel 


contains several trees, including two protected coast live oaks, in addition to ground cover brush 


consisting of Himalayan blackberry and English ivy. The approximately 0.25-acre northern parcel, 


identified as APN 402-013-061, consists of an unpaved portion of the Hazel Street right-of-way 


(ROW), which contains a gravel path and surrounding vegetated areas. A four- to five-foot-wide, 


open drainage ditch extends in a westerly direction from the southeastern edge of the parcel. The 


drainage ditch crosses underneath the gravel path by way of an approximately 44-foot-long culvert, 


before resurfacing into a five- to 10-foot-wide open drainage trench that extends for another 36 


feet at the northwest corner of the parcel, near an existing sewer lift station.  


 


The project site is surrounded by residential development that include an apartment complex to 


the west and single-family residences to the north, east, and south. Access to APN 402-013-060 is 


currently provided by way of the unpaved portion of the Hazel Street ROW within the northern 


parcel.  


 







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


2 


September 2020 


Figure 1 


Regional Project Location 


 


Project Location 







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


3 


September 2020 


Figure 2 


Project Vicinity Map 


 


Project Site  


 







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


4 


September 2020 


Project Components 


 


The following sections provide details on components associated with implementation of the 


proposed residential lot subdivision and Hazel Street roadway improvements.  


 


Residential Lot Subdivision (APN 402-013-060) 


 


The proposed project would subdivide APN 402-013-060 (proposed development area) into four 


lots to accommodate the future construction of four, two-story single-family residences (see Figure 


3 and Figure 4). The parcel has an area of approximately 24,572 sf. Lots 1, 2, and 3 would each be 


approximately 6,000 sf and Lot 4 would be approximately 6,568 sf. The proposed two-story single-


family residences would range in size from 2,165 sf to 2,664 sf and each include garage areas and 


first floor porches and balconies. The individual lots would be separated by eight-foot-tall wooden 


fences placed along the property lines.  


 


The proposed residences would tie into existing utility infrastructure within the Hazel Street ROW. 


Water service would be provided by the East Bay Municipal Utility District and serve each of the 


four residences by way of a new water line extension within the Hazel Street ROW, and individual 


north-south connections to each lot. Wastewater service would be provided by the City of Pinole. 


A new six-inch sanitary sewer line would extend along the northern portion of the site to connect 


with the existing sanitary sewer hub at the eastern edge of the site in the Hazel Street ROW. New 


north-south connections to the sanitary sewer main in Hazel Street would be made to each of the 


four proposed residences. For drainage, water from impervious surfaces such as roofs and concrete 


driveways would be routed to front yard landscape areas for treatment and infiltration. 


 


Given that the proposed development area is located on a slight slope, the proposed project would 


require minor cuts within the southern portion of the site to accommodate the proposed building 


pads. For the purposes of this analysis, grading activities associated with the proposed project are 


estimated to require approximately 7,778 cubic yards (CY) of soil export. 


 


Hazel Street Roadway Improvements (APN 402-013-061) 


 


As part of the proposed project, the open sections of the existing drainage ditch within the 


southeastern and northwestern portions of APN 402-013-061 (roadway improvement area) would 


be piped underground (see Figure 5 ). The undergrounding of the open sections of the drainage 


ditch would include the removal of a concrete wingwall in the southeastern portion of the site, 


where the ditch daylights, as well as reinforcement of the existing four-foot-wide, 44-foot-long 


corrugated steel culvert. The proposed drainage improvements would not increase capacity relative 


to existing conditions. 


 


The required circulation improvements would consist of roadway improvements that would 


include grading and paving of approximately 200 feet of the unpaved portion of the Hazel Street 


ROW to complete circulation throughout the neighborhood. 







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


5 


September 2020 


Figure 3 


Proposed Residential Subdivision Site Layout 


 







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


6 


September 2020 


Figure 4 


Proposed Residential Lot Subdivision 







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


7 


September 2020 


Figure 5 


Proposed Hazel Street Improvements 







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


8 


September 2020 


Upon completion, the newly paved portion of the Hazel Street ROW would be 38 feet wide and 


the southern portion would include a four-foot-wide concrete pedestrian sidewalk that would 


connect to existing sidewalks located along the adjacent portions of Hazel Street to the east and 


west. The improvements would also include the addition of a concrete roadside curb and gutter on 


the southern end of the Hazel Street ROW. The northern portion of Hazel Street would include a 


concrete curb and gutter, but would not be inclusive of a pedestrian sidewalk. The existing sewer 


lift station located in the northwestern corner of the site would be modified to match the grade of 


the new pavement and the access panel would be relocated to be within the back of the proposed 


curb. Two existing power poles would be relocated during the street improvements.  


 


The aforementioned roadway improvements would provide paved access to the adjacent, proposed 


residential lots, and serve to complete the City’s planned street system in this residential 


neighborhood. 


 


Tree Removal 


 


Two protected mature coast live oak trees are located in the southern portion of the project site 


(see Figure 6). As part of the proposed project, Tree 1, a 40-foot-tall live oak with a 31.5-inch 


diameter at breast height (DBH), is recommended by the consulting arborist to be removed due to 


indicators that the structure of the roots has been compromised. Tree 2, a 40-foot-tall coast live 


oak with a 38.5-inch DBH, shows good health and high vigor and would be retained with 


implementation of the proposed project.  


 


Required Entitlements  


 


The residential lot subdivision project would require the following discretionary entitlements from 


the City of Pinole:  


 


• Development Agreement; 


• Tentative Subdivision Map; 


• Design Review; and 


• Tree Removal Permit. 


 


The Hazel Street roadway connection project would be a component part of the Development 


Agreement and require subsequent improvement plan approval by the City of Pinole Development 


Services Department.  


 


C. DISCUSSION 


 


The following section contains substantial evidence showing that the proposed project can be 


considered exempt from CEQA and is not subject to any of the exceptions set forth in Section 


15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines. As demonstrated in the analysis below, the proposed project 


qualifies for exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 15332, Class 32.   







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


9 


September 2020 


Figure 6 


On-site Trees 


 







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


10 


September 2020 


In-Fill Development Project Exemption  


 


Article 19 of the CEQA Guidelines, Sections 15300 through 15333, includes a list of classes of 


projects that have been determined to not have a significant effect on the environment, and are 


therefore exempt from CEQA. Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines provides a categorical 


exemption for infill development projects that meet the following criteria: 


 


(a) The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable 


general plan polices as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations.  


(b) The proposed development occurs within the city limits on the project site of no more than 


five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses.  


(c) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species.  


(d) Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, 


air quality, or water quality.  


(e) The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services.  


 


The applicability of the above criteria to the proposed project is described in the following sections.  


 


Criterion 15332(a): General Plan and Zoning Consistency 


 


With regard to criterion ‘a’, the Pinole General Plan designates the proposed development area as 


Suburban Residential (SR) and the area is zoned as R-1. The proposed development area is 


currently vacant, and the proposed construction of four single-family residences would be 


consistent with the General Plan land use designation and zoning for the site.  


 


Furthermore, the proposed project would comply with applicable General Plan policies and zoning 


regulations adopted for the purpose of avoiding and/or mitigating adverse environmental effects. 


For example, the project would be required to comply with the City of Pinole’s Tree Removal 


Ordinance, as included in Chapter 17.96 of the Municipal Code, which defines “protected” trees 


as follows:  


 


• Trees with a single perennial stem of 12 inches or larger in circumference (four inches in 


diameter) measured at 4.5 feet above grade, of the following species: Coast live oak, 


Madrone, Buckeye, Black Walnut, Redwood, Big Leafed Maple, Redbud, California Bay, 


Toyon; and 


• Any other tree with a single stem greater than 56” or larger in circumference (18” in 


diameter) and 4.5 feet above the natural grade; nut and fruit trees, palms, and eucalyptus 


are not protected. 


 


Per a technical memorandum prepared for the proposed project by Arborwell Professional Tree 


Management (Tree Memo) (see Appendix A), the project site contains two coast live oaks that are 


considered protected trees per the Tree Removal Ordinance.1 Per the Tree Memo, one of the 


existing trees is recommended for removal (i.e., Tree 1 in Figure 6 above), as the tree’s root system 


appears to be failing due to root failure within overly saturated soils. The safety-risk for whole-


                                                 
1  Arborwell Professional Tree Management. Oak Tree Update at Hazel Street at Pinole. April 18, 2018. 







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


11 


September 2020 


tree failure, given that the roots are already failing, is high. Consistent with Chapter 17.96 of the 


City’s Municipal Code, the project applicant would be required to obtain a tree removal permit 


prior to removal of the tree, as well as replacement of the tree at a ratio of 1:1. The second protected 


tree is proposed for preservation as part of the proposed project; and the project applicant would 


be required to implement tree protection measures for this tree, as generally outlined in Section 


17.96.070 of the Pinole Municipal Code and, more specifically, in the oak tree protection 


guidelines prepared for the site by Arborwell (January 14, 2016). Thus, the proposed project would 


comply with local policies and ordinances protecting biological resources, particularly related to 


Chapter 17.96 of the Municipal Code. 


 


Based on the above, the proposed project meets Criterion 15332(a). 


 


Criterion 15332(b): Project Location, Size, and Context 


 


The project site consists of approximately 0.81-acre located within an urbanized area in the City 


of Pinole. The site is surrounded by existing residential development on all sides. Thus, the 


proposed project meets Criterion 15332(b). 


 


Criterion 15332(c): Endangered, Rare, or Threatened Species 


 


The project site is located in an urbanized area of the City of Pinole and is bordered on all sides 


by existing residential development. The proposed roadway improvement area in the northern 


portion of the site is currently vacant and consists of an approximately 200-foot gravel portion of 


the Hazel Street ROW. The roadway improvement area has been previously disturbed through the 


placement of gravel and installation of the existing 44-foot corrugated steel culvert, as well as 


other utility infrastructure such as a City sewer main, sewer lift station, and telecommunications 


and power poles. The proposed development area within the southern portion of the site is also 


vacant, and consists primarily of ruderal grasses and scattered trees. 


 


As part of a Wetlands & Biological Resources Assessment prepared for the proposed project by 


Barnett Environmental (see Appendix B),2 the following online resources were queried for 


information on the project site’s potential plant and wildlife resources:  


 


• California Department of Fish & Wildlife’s (CDFW) Natural Diversity Database 


(CNDDB) for observations of special status plant and animal species within five miles of 


the project site;  


• U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s (USFWS) iPac Database of federally-listed special status 


species in Contra Costa County; and 


• The California Native Plant Society’s (CNPS) Inventory of Rare & Endangered Plants in 


California. 


 


In addition, a Barnett Environmental biologist surveyed the project site on November 15, 2018 for 


special status plant and wildlife species and their habitats that could be supported on-site.  


 


                                                 
2  Barnett Environmental. Wetlands and Biological Resources Assessment of the Proposed Hazel Street Residential 


Subdivision & Road Improvement. December 19, 2018.   







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


12 


September 2020 


Based on the results of the data queries and site survey, Barnett Environmental concluded that only 


one endangered, rare, or threatened species has the potential to occur in the greater project area: 


California red-legged frog. It should be noted that per the Wetlands & Biological Resources 


Assessment, fragrant fritillary has a very low potential of occurrence due to marginal habitat on-


site; however, the species does not have a federal or State status and, thus, is not covered by 


Criterion 15332(c). In addition, fragrant fritillary was not detected during the November 2018 field 


survey, and CNDDB occurrences of the species have not been recorded within five miles of the 


project site. 


 


California red-legged frog is a Federal Threatened species and is a California Species of Concern. 


CNDDB occurrences for California red-legged frog were identified within five miles of the project 


site. However, based on the lack of breeding ponds or perennially slow-moving waters on the 


project site, the species does not have the potential to occur on the project site. In addition, 


California red-legged frogs were not identified on-site during the November 2018 site survey.  


 


Generally, due to the highly disturbed nature of the area surrounding the project site, the project 


site does not provide value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. Thus, the proposed 


project meets Criterion 15332(c). 


 


Criterion 15332(d): Traffic, Noise, Air Quality, and Water Quality 


 


The following sections present analysis regarding potential effects related to traffic, noise, air 


quality, and water quality resulting from implementation of the proposed project. 


 


Traffic 


 


During construction of the proposed project, vehicle traffic would be added to local roadways 


associated with the transport of construction equipment to and from the site, construction worker 


commutes, and haul truck traffic due to the export of approximately 8,000 CY of soil from the site. 


However, such traffic would be temporary, and would be typical of other small-scale residential 


construction projects.  


 


Upon buildout, the proposed project would consist of four single-family residences. Per the 


Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, the proposed residences would 


generate approximately 38 average daily vehicle trips, including three trips during the AM peak 


hour and four trips during the PM peak hour. Due to the relatively minimal vehicle trip generation 


associated with the proposed uses, the project would not be expected to degrade peak period LOS 


at any nearby intersections or roadway sections. In addition, the proposed project is consistent with 


the project site’s existing General Plan land use and zoning designations. Therefore, vehicle trip 


generation associated with the project site and associated effects on local transportation facilities 


have been anticipated by the City and accounted for in regional planning efforts. 


 







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


13 


September 2020 


Noise 


 


The proposed project has the potential to generate temporary noise level increases associated with 


construction activities. During operation, the primary source of noise associated with the proposed 


project would be vehicle traffic noise generated on local roadways.  


 


The Pinole General Plan does not include noise standards applicable to transportation noise 


increases attributable to new development. Other jurisdictions often use standards developed by 


the Federal Interagency Committee on Noise (FICON) to determine whether a project would result 


in a substantial permanent increase in noise levels. According to the FICON, in areas where the 


without project noise levels range from 60 to 65 dBA, a 3 dBA barely perceptible noise level 


increase appears to be appropriate for most people. When the without project noise levels already 


exceed 65 dBA, any increase in community noise louder than 1.5 dBA or greater is considered a 


significant impact if the noise criteria for a given land use is exceeded, given that the noise increase 


likely contributes to an existing noise exposure exceedance. Given that the proposed project is 


consistent with the site’s existing land use and zoning designations, traffic noise level increases 


associated with development of the project site with residential uses have been previously 


anticipated by the City. As such, the project would not result in traffic noise level increases beyond 


what has been analyzed in the General Plan EIR. In addition, given that the proposed project is 


estimated to generate only 38 average daily vehicle trips, the increase in traffic noise would not be 


sufficient to trigger FICON standards on nearby roadways, along which are located residential 


receptors. 


 


With respect to construction, Section 15.02.070 of the City’s Municipal Code includes the 


following hourly restrictions and nuisance provisions related to construction activities:  


 


• Work is allowed from 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM on non-federal holidays, but no inspections 


would be performed.  


• Saturday work is allowed in commercial zones only, from 9:00 AM to 6:00 PM, as long as 


it is interior work and does not generate significant noise. 


• The City Council designates the City Manager (or his/her designee) to further modify on a 


case-by-case basis the hours of construction in commercial zones. Additionally, the City 


Manager (or his/her designee) has the ability to modify the construction hours on a case-


by-case basis based on inclement weather conditions or certain construction procedures 


(such as setting up from a concrete pour) that may require working beyond 5:00 PM on 


weekdays or 6:00 PM on Saturday.  


• Administrative citations and penalties penalize responsible parties who fail or refuse to 


comply with any City ordinance or fail to promptly abate a public nuisance.  


 


During construction activities associated with the proposed residences, as well as the proposed 


Hazel Street improvements, the proposed project would result in short-term noise level increases 


in the project vicinity. However, the City’s Municipal Code does not specify any short-term 


construction noise level limits. In addition, construction of the proposed project would be required 


to comply with the restrictions established by Section 15.02.070(A) of the City’s Municipal Code. 


Per Section 15.02.070(F), construction activities related to the proposed project would include the 


use of sound-dampening equipment such as mufflers, air-inlet silencers, shrouds, shields, or other 







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


14 


September 2020 


noise-reducing features where appropriate in order to ensure that nuisance related to noise or 


vibration does not occur.  


 


Based on the above, the proposed project would not generate substantial temporary or permanent 


noise level increases during construction or operation that would be considered to have the 


potential to result in significant effects on the environment. 


 


Air Quality 


 


The City of Pinole is located in the San Francisco Bay Area Air Basin (SFBAAB), which is under 


the jurisdiction of the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). The SFBAAB is 


currently designated as a nonattainment area for State and federal ozone, State and federal fine 


particulate matter 2.5 microns in diameter (PM2.5), and State respirable particulate matter 10 


microns in diameter (PM10) ambient air quality standards (AAQS). The SFBAAB is designated 


attainment or unclassified for all other AAQS. It should be noted that on January 9, 2013, the U.S. 


Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) issued a final rule to determine that the Bay Area has 


attained the 24-hour PM2.5 federal AAQS. Nonetheless, the Bay Area must continue to be 


designated as nonattainment for the federal PM2.5 AAQS until such time as the BAAQMD submits 


a redesignation request and a maintenance plan to the USEPA, and the USEPA approves the 


proposed redesignation. The USEPA has not yet approved a request for redesignation of the 


SFBAAB; therefore, the SFBAAB remains in nonattainment for 24-hour PM2.5. 


 


In compliance with regulations, due to the nonattainment designations of the area, the BAAQMD 


periodically prepares and updates air quality plans that provide emission reduction strategies to 


achieve attainment of the AAQS, including control strategies to reduce air pollutant emissions 


through regulations, incentive programs, public education, and partnerships with other agencies. 


The current air quality plans are prepared in cooperation with the Metropolitan Transportation 


Commission (MTC) and the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG).  


 


The most recent federal ozone plan is the 2001 Ozone Attainment Plan, which was adopted on 


October 24, 2001 and approved by the California Air Resources Board (CARB) on November 1, 


2001. The plan was submitted to the USEPA on November 30, 2001 for review and approval. The 


most recent State ozone plan is the 2017 Clean Air Plan (CAP), adopted on April 19, 2017. The 


2017 CAP was developed as a multi-pollutant plan that provides an integrated control strategy to 


reduce ozone, PM, toxic air contaminants (TACs), and greenhouse gases (GHGs). Although a plan 


for achieving the State PM10 standard is not required, the BAAQMD has prioritized measures to 


reduce PM in developing the control strategy for the 2017 CAP. The control strategy serves as the 


backbone of the BAAQMD’s current PM control program. 


 


The aforementioned air quality plans contain mobile source controls, stationary source controls, 


and transportation control measures to be implemented in the region to attain the State and federal 


AAQS within the SFBAAB. Adopted BAAQMD rules and regulations, as well as the thresholds 


of significance, have been developed with the intent to ensure continued attainment of AAQS, or 


to work towards attainment of AAQS for which the area is currently designated nonattainment, 


consistent with applicable air quality plans. For development projects, BAAQMD establishes 


significance thresholds for emissions of the ozone precursors reactive organic gases (ROG) and 







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


15 


September 2020 


oxides of nitrogen (NOX), as well as for PM10, and PM2.5, expressed in pounds per day (lbs/day) 


and tons per year (tons/yr). The thresholds are listed in Table 1. Thus, by exceeding the 


BAAQMD’s mass emission thresholds for operational emissions of ROG, NOX, or PM10, a project 


would be considered to conflict with or obstruct implementation of the BAAQMD’s air quality 


planning efforts.  


 


Table 1 


BAAQMD Thresholds of Significance 


Pollutant 


Construction Operational 


Average Daily 


Emissions (lbs/day) 


Average Daily 


Emissions (lbs/day) 


Maximum Annual 


Emissions (tons/year) 


ROG 54 54 10 


NOX 54 54 10 


PM10 (exhaust) 82 82 15 


PM2.5 (exhaust) 54 54 10 
Source: BAAQMD, CEQA Guidelines, May 2017. 


 


The proposed project’s construction and operational emissions were quantified using the 


California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod) software version 2016.3.2 - a Statewide model 


designed to provide a uniform platform for government agencies, land use planners, and 


environmental professionals to quantify air quality emissions, including GHG emissions, from 


land use projects. The model applies inherent default values for various land uses, including 


construction data, vehicle mix, trip length, average speed, etc. Where project-specific information 


is available, such information is applied in the model. The proposed project’s modeling assumed 


the following: 


 


• Construction would commence in April of 2020 and occur over approximately six months; 


• Approximately 7,778 CY of soil would be exported during grading activities;  


• The proposed project would comply with all applicable provisions of the 2019 CBSC 


related to energy efficiency; and 


• Consistent with the 2109 CBSC, the proposed project would include installation of solar 


panels capable of meeting 100 percent of the project’s energy demands. 


 


The proposed project’s estimated emissions associated with construction and operations and the 


project’s contribution to cumulative air quality conditions are provided below. All CalEEMod 


results are included as Appendix C to this Memorandum. 


 


Construction Emissions 


 


According to the CalEEMod results, the proposed project would result in maximum construction 


criteria air pollutant emissions as shown in Table 2. The proposed project’s construction emissions 


would be below the applicable thresholds of significance.  


  







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


16 


September 2020 


Table 2 


Maximum Construction Emissions (lbs/day) 


Pollutant 


Proposed Project 


Emissions 


Threshold of 


Significance Exceeds Threshold? 


ROG 2.19 54 NO 


NOX 35.74 54 NO 


PM10 (exhaust) 0.92 82 NO 


PM10 (fugitive) 2.62 None N/A 


PM2.5 (exhaust) 0.85 54 NO 


PM2.5 (fugitive) 0.91 None N/A 
Source: CalEEMod, February 2020 (see Appendix C). 


 


Although thresholds of significance for mass emissions of fugitive dust PM10 and PM2.5 have not 


been identified by the City of Pinole or BAAQMD, the proposed project’s estimated fugitive dust 


emissions have been included for informational purposes. All projects within the jurisdiction of 


the BAAQMD are required to implement all of the BAAQMD’s Basic Construction Mitigation 


Measures, which would be included in the project approval as Conditions of Approval:  


 


1. All haul trucks transporting soil, sand, or other loose material off-site shall be covered.  


2. All visible mud or dirt track-out onto adjacent public roads shall be removed using wet 


power vacuum street sweepers at least once per day. The use of dry power sweeping is 


prohibited.  


3. All vehicle speeds on unpaved roads shall be limited to 15 mph.  


4. All roadways, driveways, and sidewalks to be paved shall be completed as soon as possible. 


Building pads shall be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders 


are used.  


5. Idling times shall be minimized either by shutting equipment off when not in use or 


reducing the maximum idling time to five minutes (as required by the California airborne 


toxics control measure Title 13, Section 2485 of California Code of Regulations [CCR]). 


Clear signage shall be provided for construction workers at all access points.  


6. All construction equipment shall be maintained and properly tuned in accordance with 


manufacturer‘s specifications. All equipment shall be checked by a certified visible 


emissions evaluator.  


7. Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the lead 


agency regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take corrective action 


within 48 hours. The Air District’s phone number shall also be visible to ensure compliance 


with applicable regulations.  


 


The proposed project’s required implementation of the BAAQMD’s Basic Construction 


Mitigation Measures listed above for the project’s construction activities, would help to further 


minimize construction-related emissions. 


 


Because the proposed project would be below the applicable thresholds of significance for 


construction emissions, project construction would not result in a significant air quality impact. 


 







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


17 


September 2020 


Operational Emissions 


 


According to the CalEEMod results, the proposed project would result in maximum operational 


criteria air pollutant emissions as shown in Table 3. The proposed project’s operational emissions 


would be below the applicable thresholds of significance. As such, the proposed project would not 


result in a significant air quality impact during operations. 


 


Table 3 


Unmitigated Maximum Operational Emissions 


Pollutant 


Proposed Project Emissions 


Threshold of 


Significance 


Exceeds Threshold? lbs/day tons/yr lbs/day tons/yr 


ROG 4.41 0.07 54 10 NO 


NOX 0.41 0.06 54 10 NO 


PM10 (exhaust) 0.77 0.01 82 15 NO 


PM10 (fugitive) 0.19 0.03 None None N/A 


PM2.5 (exhaust) 0.77 0.01 54 10 NO 


PM2.5 (fugitive) 0.05 0.01 None None N/A 
Source: CalEEMod, February 2020 (see Appendix C). 


 


Conclusion 


 


As discussed above, the proposed project is not anticipated to result in short-term construction-


related or long-term operational emissions of air quality pollutants that would be considered to 


have the potential to result in significant effects on the environment. 


 


Water Quality 


 


Water quality degradation is regulated by the federal National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 


System (NPDES) Program, established by the Clean Water Act, which controls and reduces 


pollutants to water bodies from point and non-point discharges. In California, the NPDES 


permitting program is administered by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) 


through nine Regional Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCBs). New development within the 


City that disturbs one or more acres of land is required to comply with the NPDES General 


Construction Permit and prepare a SWPPP incorporating BMPs to control sedimentation, erosion, 


and hazardous materials contamination of runoff during construction. The proposed project would 


disturb approximately 0.81-acres, and, thus, would be exempt from the State NPDES General 


Permit conditions. However, the project would be subject to Section 15.36.190 of the City’s 


Municipal Code, which would require the project to include preparation of an Erosion and 


Sediment Control Plan, capable of effectively minimizing soil erosion and sedimentation from the 


project site during and after construction. Thus, adverse effects to water quality associated with 


construction of the proposed project, including construction of the proposed drainage 


improvements within Hazel Street, would not occur. 


 


Following completion of project construction, the site would be covered with landscaping and 


impervious surfaces and topsoil would not be exposed. All municipalities within Contra Costa 


County are required to develop more restrictive surface water control standards for new 







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


18 


September 2020 


development projects as part of the renewal of the Countywide NPDES permit. Known as the “C.3 


Standards”, new development and redevelopment projects that create or replace 10,000 or more 


square feet of impervious surface area must contain and treat stormwater runoff from the site. 


Because the proposed project would create more than 10,000 square feet of impervious surface 


area, the project would be considered a C.3 regulated project and is required to include appropriate 


site design measures, source controls, and stormwater treatment measures.  


 


Consistent with applicable C.3 Standards, water from impervious surfaces within the proposed 


residential development area, such as roofs and concrete driveways, would be routed to front yard 


landscape areas for treatment and infiltration. In addition, the proposed Hazel Street roadway 


improvements would include paving of the existing gravel roadway and installation of new curbs 


and gutters along both sides of the roadway; thus, stormwater runoff from the roadway would 


cease to flow directly into the open portions of the drainage channel, as currently occurs.  


 


Based on the above, the proposed project would not violate any water quality standards or waste 


discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or groundwater quality during 


construction and operations. 


 


Criterion 15332(a): Utilities and Public Services 


 


The proposed residences would tie into existing utility infrastructure within the Hazel Street ROW. 


Water service would be provided by the East Bay Municipal Utility District and serve each of the 


four residences by way of a new water line extension within the Hazel Street ROW, and individual 


north-south connections to each lot. Wastewater service would be provided by the City of Pinole 


Public Works Department. A new six-inch sanitary sewer line would extend along the northern 


portion of the site to connect with the existing sanitary sewer hub at the eastern edge of the site in 


the Hazel Street ROW. New north-south connections to the sanitary sewer main in Hazel Street 


would be made to each of the four proposed residences. For drainage, water from impervious 


surfaces such as roofs and concrete driveways would be routed to front yard landscape areas for 


treatment and infiltration. Given the presence of existing utilities in the immediate project vicinity, 


the proposed project would not require substantial off-site utility improvements. It should be noted 


that the improvements to the open portions of the drainage ditch would not increase the capacity 


of the storm system.3 Similarly, the proposed lift station improvements would not increase the 


capacity of the existing sewer system. 


 


In addition, given that the proposed project is consistent with the site’s current General Plan land 


use and zoning designations, increases in demand on existing utilities and public services 


associated with the project have been previously anticipated in the General Plan and accounted for 


in local planning efforts. The project would be subject to payment of applicable development fees 


levied by the City on new development, including fees used to fund fire protection, police, parks 


and recreation, and other public facilities and equipment. Payment of such fees would help to offset 


any potential increases in demand for public services occurring as a result of development of the 


four proposed single-family residences. Thus, the project site would be adequately served by all 


required utilities and public services.  


                                                 
3  Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City Engineer, City of Pinole. Personal communication email 


with Nick Pappani, Vice President, Raney Planning and Management. June 17, 2019. 







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


19 


September 2020 


D. EXCEPTIONS TO CATEGORICAL EXEMPTIONS ANALYSIS 


 


Even if a project is ordinarily exempt under any of the potential categorical exemptions, CEQA 


Guidelines Section 15300.2 provides specific instances where exceptions to otherwise applicable 


exemptions apply. Exceptions to a categorical exemption apply in the following circumstances:  


 
(a)  Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and 11 are qualified by consideration of where the project 


is to be located – a project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the 


environment may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant. Therefore, 


these classes are considered to apply all instances, except where the project may impact 


on an environmental resource of hazardous or critical concern where designated, 


precisely mapped, and officially adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, or local 


agencies. 


(b) Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the 


cumulative impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time 


is significant. 


(c)  Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where there 


is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the 


environment due to unusual circumstances. 


(d) Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which may 


result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic 


buildings, rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially 


designated as a state scenic highway. This does not apply to improvements which are 


required as mitigation by an adopted negative declaration or certified EIR. 


(e)  Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project located 


on a site which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the 


Government Code. 


(f)  Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 


may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource. 


 


The following analysis addresses whether any of the exceptions to the CEQA exemption apply to 


the proposed project.  


 
Criterion 15300.2(a): Location 


 


CEQA exemptions 3, 4, 5, 6, or 11, are qualified by consideration of where the project is to be 


located. Given that the proposed project qualifies for exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 


15332, Class 32, an exception to the exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2(a) does 


not apply to the proposed project.  


 


Criterion 15300.2(b): Cumulative Impact 


 


Per CEQA Section 15300.2(b), in applying this exception, the cumulative impact must result from 


“successive projects of the same type in the same place.” Both the “same type” and “same place” 


limitations restrict the scope of this exception.4 The project site is located within a residential area, 


                                                 
4  Stephen L. Kostka and Michael H. Zischke. Practice Under the California Environmental Quality Act, Second 


Edition [pg. 5-68]. March 2019 Update.  







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


20 


September 2020 


which is mostly developed. The nearest vacant property is located approximately 0.25-mile south 


of the site, along San Pablo Avenue, and no development application has been submitted to the 


City for said site. Thus, the potential for successive future residential projects within the immediate 


project area is limited; and there would be no significant cumulative impacts from successive 


projects of the same type in the same place. 


 


The proposed roadway improvement area currently consists of a gravel pedestrian walkway that 


does not permit vehicle through traffic. Within the southeast and northwest portions of the roadway 


improvement area, the open sections of the drainage ditch would be piped underground. As noted 


previously, the proposed drainage improvements would not increase the capacity of the existing 


stormwater infrastructure in the project area and, thus, would not have the potential to result in 


cumulative growth-inducing impacts.  


 


The proposed roadway improvements to the unpaved portion of the Hazel Street ROW would 


complete the City planned circulation network and allow for vehicle traffic to pass through the 


project site to the existing paved sections of Hazel Street to the east and west. While the proposed 


roadway improvements would allow for vehicle through traffic, the improvements would not be 


anticipated to result in an increase in traffic in the area. In addition, because the proposed project 


would complete a City planned circulation network, the environmental impacts of the proposed 


roadway improvements have already been contemplated in the City’s General Plan EIR.  


 


Based on the above, an exception to the exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2(b) 


does not apply to the proposed project.  


 


Criterion 15300.2(c): Significant Effect  


 


In listing a class of projects as exempt, the Secretary has determined that the environmental 


changes typically associated with projects in that class are not significant effects within the 


meaning of CEQA, even though an argument might be made that they are potentially significant. 


The plain language of Guidelines Section 15300.2, subdivision (c), requires that a potentially 


significant effect must be “due to unusual circumstances” for the exception to apply. 


 


The determination as to whether there are “unusual circumstances” (Guidelines, § 15300.2, subd. 


(c)) is reviewed under PRC Section 21168.5’s substantial evidence prong. Whether a particular 


project presents circumstances that are unusual for projects in an exempt class is an essentially 


factual inquiry. As to this question, the lead agency serves as “the finder of fact”. 


 


As the courts have noted, local conditions are relevant in determining whether the environmental 


effects of a proposed project are unusual or typical. While the project site contains a drainage ditch 


that conservatively may be subject to the jurisdiction of the Army Corps of Engineers under 


Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, it is instructive that the open drainage ditch that traverses the 


project site is part of a larger system that also daylights on other properties throughout the 


surrounding residential area. It is for this reason that the City of Pinole does not consider the 


presence of the drainage ditch to be an unusual circumstance. The City has not identified any 


unusual circumstances associated with the proposed residential development area. 


 







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


21 


September 2020 


Even if the on-site ditch was to be considered an unusual circumstance, it is not compelling to 


conclude, applying the fair argument standard, that there is a reasonable possibility that such an 


unusual circumstance will produce a significant effect on the environment (see Berkeley Hillside 


Preservation v. City of Berkeley, 203 Cal. App. 4th 656). An agency may rely on generally 


applicable regulations to conclude an environmental impact will not be significant and therefore 


does not require mitigation.5 Here, the Army Corps of Engineers has regulations of general 


applicability that will prevent a significant impact from occurring; specifically, the proposed 


undergrounding of the ditch and Hazel Street roadway connection must comply with the applicable 


criteria set forth in Nationwide Permit 14, Linear Transportation Projects. Section 23 of NWP 14 


includes measures ensuring that adverse effects would not occur to aquatic features. Thus, an 


exception to the exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2(c) does not apply to the 


proposed project. 


 


Criterion 15300.2(d): Scenic Highway 


 


According to the California Department of Transportation’s California Scenic Highway Mapping 


System, the nearest officially designated State scenic highway to the project site is a portion of 


State Route (SR) 24 connecting to Interstate 680, located approximately 10.75 miles south of the 


project site.6 Due to the topography of the area and the substantial distance between the project 


site and SR 24, the proposed project would not be visible from the roadway. Therefore, the 


proposed project would not substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, 


trees, rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state 


scenic highway. An exception to the exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2(d) does 


not apply to the proposed project.  


 


Criterion 15300.2(e): Hazardous Waste Sites 


 


The California Environmental Protection Agency provides a list of data resources that provide 


information regarding the facilities or sites identified as meeting the “Cortese List” requirements, 


pursuant to Government Code 65962.5. Based on a search of the Department of Toxic Substances 


Control EnviroStor Hazardous Waste and Substances Site List (Cortese), the project site is not 


located on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government Code.7 Thus, an 


exception to the exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2(e) does not apply to the 


proposed project.  


 


Criterion 15300.2(f): Historical Resources  


 


The project site is located in an urbanized area of the City of Pinole and is surrounded by existing 


residential development. The site does not contain any existing buildings or other features that 


could be considered historic. In addition, the proposed roadway improvement area has been 


                                                 
5  See Kostka and Zischke, Practice Under the California Environmental Quality Act, Second Edition, Vol 1 


(March 2019 Update), Section 5.75.; San Francisco Beautiful v City & County of San Francisco (2014) 226 


CA4th. 
6  California Department of Transportation. Scenic Highways. Available at: https://dot.ca.gov/programs/design/lap-


landscape-architecture-and-community-livability/lap-liv-i-scenic-highways. Accessed January 2020. 
7  Department of Toxic Substances Control. EnviroStor. Available at: https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/. 


Accessed February 2020. 



https://dot.ca.gov/programs/design/lap-landscape-architecture-and-community-livability/lap-liv-i-scenic-highways

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/design/lap-landscape-architecture-and-community-livability/lap-liv-i-scenic-highways

https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/





Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


22 


September 2020 


previously disturbed through the installation of the existing gravel roadway and 44-foot corrugated 


steel culvert, as well as other utility infrastructure such as a City sewer main, sewer lift station, 


and telecommunications and power poles. Because the project site does not contain any existing 


structures, the proposed project would not result in a substantial adverse change in the significance 


of a historical resource. Thus, an exception to the exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 


15300.2(f) does not apply to the proposed project.  


 


E. CONCLUSION 


 


This Memorandum provides substantial evidence that the proposed project can be considered 


exempt from CEQA under Section 15332, and does not meet any of the exceptions to categorical 


exemptions set forth in Section 15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines. 







 


 


 


 


 


Appendix A 


 


 


Tree Memo  







 


 


 


 


 


Appendix B 


 


 


Wetlands and Biological Resources Assessment  







 


 


 


 


 


Appendix C 


 


 


Air Quality Modeling Results 


 







Item E2 


 
  


 
TO:   PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  JUSTIN SHIU, CONTRACT PLANNER 
  
SUBJECT:  CASA AMADA: OUTDOOR ARTISAN AND VENDOR SPACE 
 
DATE:  OCTOBER 26, 2020 


 
Project Applicant and Owner: 
Raquel Contreras 
714 Walker Avenue 
Oakland, CA 94610 


 


PROJECT:                     Outdoor Artisan and Vendor Space 
FILE:                              Design Review (DR) 19-14 and Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
LOCATION:                   2337 San Pablo Avenue 
APN:                              401-162-002 
ZONING:                        Commercial Mixed Use (CMU) 
SPECIFIC PLAN:           San Pablo Avenue Corridor 
GP LU DESIGNATION: Old Town Sub-Area (OTSA) 
 


 
REQUEST 
 
This item (Casa Amada, formerly named the Pinole Artisanal Garden) is a continuation of the public 
hearing item initially considered by Planning Commission at the February 24, 2020 Planning 
Commission hearing. The project includes a Design Review and Conditional Use Permit request to 
make site improvements to create an outdoor seating and vendor space for hosting of artisan 
displays, events, vendors, and food vendors on an  approximately 4,140 square foot vacant lot in 
the Commercial Mixed Use (CMU) zoning district of the Old Town Sub-Area. A Similar Use 
Determination would also accompany the requests. Planning Commission had provided initial 
comments, received public input, and requested a continuation to have the applicant speak on the 
proposal. The Planning Commission has the authority to review the requests under the Zoning 
Code. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Adopt Resolution 20-01 with conditions approving Design Review 19-14 and Conditional Use Permit 
19-09 and a similar determination for development of an outdoor artisan and vendor space at 2337 
San Pablo Avenue.  


Memorandum  







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                           PAGE 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 
SITE LOCATION 
 


 
 


Figure 1. Site Location 
 


Direction from Project Site Land Use 


North San Pablo Avenue, and Commercial across 


West Corner plaza 


South Parking lot (Pinole Farmer’s Market on 
Saturday), and Bank of the West  


East Vacant Bank of Pinole Building 


 


Project Site 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                           PAGE 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On February 24, 2020, the Planning Commission held a public hearing for the first consideration of 
the Pinole Artisanal Garden (DR 19-14 and CUP 19-09), now named “Casa Amada”, proposed by 
Raquel Contreras (Applicant/Owner). The project included the proposed the improvement of a 
vacant site located at 2337 San Pablo Avenue to provide for the hosting of artisan displays, events, 
and food vendors. The previous staff report, resolution, conditions, plans, and project description 
are included again for reference (Attachment E). Staff presented an overview of the item at the 
meeting. The Applicant was unable to attend to present the proposal or respond to questions due to 
unforeseen personal circumstances the day of the meeting. Planning Commission decided to open 
up public comment and provide initial comments. The meeting comments are summarized in the 
February 24th meeting minutes (Attachment F). As the Applicant was not available, Planning 
Commission elected to continue the meeting to a date-uncertain to allow the Applicant to return 
when ready so that she may provide information about the proposal and be available for questions. 
 
Following the close of the February Planning Commission hearing, there have been some delays in 
bringing the item back, initially due to shelter-in-place orders in March in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic and needed changes in operations. The Applicant has retained interest in continuing the 
proposal since that time and provided updated submittal items in September and October. 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY 
 
The project site is an approximately 4,140 square foot lot on San Pablo Avenue located in the Three 
Corridors Specific Plan area, with a land use designation of Old Town Sub Area and zoning 
designation of Commercial Mixed Use (CMU). The Project requires approval of Design Review for 
new nonresidential site development and a Conditional Use Permit for hosting events and outdoor 
dining, including having food vendors, artisans, and music. A Similar Use Determination would 
accompany the requests to determine that the proposed use is similar to other permitted or 
conditionally permitted uses in the zoning district, and approval of the use would also be 
documented in a determination letter (Attachment B). The staff report for February 24, 2020, 
including the analysis and discussion, is incorporated by reference (Attachment E).  
 
The draft resolution and conditions of approval are provided in Attachment A, which incorporates 
the proposals in the latest project description and plans. Revisions from the previous draft 
conditions of approval have been highlighted. 
 
UPDATES 
 
Planning Commission had considered the initial proposal and plans at the Planning Commission 
meeting on February 24, 2020, and some modifications and additional details have been provided 
since then. The Applicant is requesting consideration of a few proposed modifications in the project 
description (Attachment C) and plan set and booth layout (Attachment D), and key changes are 
summarized below.  
 
Site Manager 
The Applicant has confirmed that a site manager will be on site during the use. The project 
description indicates the owner will be on site Friday through Sundays and an assistant manager 
will be on site Thursdays and Fridays. The person on site will serve as the site manager, who will 
monitor the property, manage crowds, and implement operations in compliance with health 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                           PAGE 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 
guidelines. The project description does not specifically identify whether a site manager will be 
present during operations outside of the regular Thursday through Sunday time periods, however, it 
is expected that a site manager would be present. A condition of approval has been included to 
ensure that there will be a person monitoring the site whenever it is open for use. 
 
The project also notes that there are no immediate plans for special events due to COVID 
restrictions. As restrictions ease and attendance grows, the Applicant mentions the possibility of 
charging an entrance fee and security monitor to ensure visitors remain within property boundaries 
as needed. This proposal has been incorporated into a condition of approval that indicates security 
monitors will be placed at the entrances for special events with potentially large crowds if needed to 
ensure visitors at these events remain within property boundaries to avoid blocking the rights-of-
way. 
 
Schedule Update 
The proposed change expands the available hours of operations and adds an extra day to the 
regular schedule. The original schedule was Friday through Sunday, which expands to Thursday 
through Sunday. It also clarifies that there are proposed daily operations during certain special 
themed times of the year, which would include food vendors and other activities. 
 
During typical operations (Regular Hours, shown below and in the project description), vendors and 
artisans would set up booths and displays from Thursday through Sunday. For special seasonal 
times, the site is proposed to have displays, vendors, food vendors, and other activities on 
weekdays as well. The proposed schedule is listed in the Applicant’s project description 
(Attachment C) and summarized below. The schedule has been incorporated into the conditions of 
approval. 
 


Regular Hours 
 


Food vendors 
Thursday-Sunday: 9:00am – 9:00pm* 
*Hours may change during daylight savings time but shall not deviate by more than one 
hour from the above-mentioned times. 


 
Themes and Times 


 
January to February  
Regular hours, as shown above. 
 
March to September (Spring Harvest, Taco Fest, BBQ Fest: food vendors and 
plant/herb vendors) 
Regular hours, as shown above. 


 
May to December (Art Walk: artist display and sales) 
Art Walk 
First Friday of the Month: 9:00am – 9:00pm  
Food vendors 
Regular hours, as shown above. 


 
September to October (Halloween: pumpkin patch and food vendors) 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                           PAGE 5 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 


Pumpkin patch  
Every day: 9:00am – 9:00pm  
Food vendors 
Every day: 9:00am – 9:00pm  


 
November (Day of the Dead: artist display and food vendors) 
November 1 and 2: 9:00am – 9:00pm 


 
November to December 24th (Christmas Tree Sales and Decoration/ Holiday 
Market: artist display and sales and food vendors) 
Tree Sales and Holiday Market 
Every day: 9:00am – 9:00pm 
Food vendors 
Every day: 9:00am – 9:00pm  


 
Proposed modifications to the schedule shall be subject to review by the Planning Manager, 
who may determine if changes should return to Planning Commission for consideration, as 
incorporated into the Conditions of Approval. 


 
Other Special Events or Uses 
The Applicant has also proposed in the project description that the site may be used for 
other occasions, such as partnerships with nonprofits, city agencies, and other 
organizations to host events and fundraisers benefitting the community. As there was no 
specific schedule, a condition has been added so that notification must be provided to the 
Planning Manager for events not listed and the Planning Manager may consider whether 
further approval is required, which may include a temporary use permit, use permit 
modification, or new use permit. 


 
Site Layout 
The project continues to maintain different vendor and site configuration options, with some 
changes. The Single Vendor Set-up and Multiple Vendor Set-up have been revised to make the site 
more open (Attachment D). In the Single Vendor Set-up, the site has a lower concentration of both 
seating and artist set-up locations. In the Multiple Vendor Set-up, the amount of seating has been 
reduced and vendor locations have been reconfigured. The use would be required to follow the 
guidance of public health agencies and authorities in its operations, which includes ensuring that 
any configuration maintains the currently prescribed distancing requirements. The Applicant has 
also provided a Social Distancing Vendor Set-up that may be employed and features no seating or 
artist display spaces. 
 
The standing room capacity is noted as 119 persons in the vendor set-up plans. Seating capacity is 
noted in the booth layout diagrams as approximately 20 to 28 persons. The Applicant or a 
designated site manager shall be on the site during the operation of the use to manage crowd size 
and ensure public health guidelines are carried out, including any social distancing, site set-up, and 
occupancy requirements.  
 
Restrooms and Sanitary Facilities 
The project will contain portable sanitary facilities, as previously proposed, however additional 
information and clarifications have been provided. The Applicant will continue to collaborate with the 
operators of the Pinole Farmers’ Market on various aspects of operation, including restroom 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                           PAGE 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 
maintenance. The letter of support from the Pacific Coast Farmers’ Market Association (PCFMA) in 
the Project Description (Attachment C) notes discussions on sharing the portable toilet that has 
included the Applicant providing for cleaning 2-3 additional times per week as needed while PCFMA 
maintains its weekly clean out.  
 
As noted in the updated project description, the project initially proposed to have one ADA-
compliant portable toilet and one handwashing station, which would be serviced 2-3 times weekly. 
Conditions of approval have been added regarding continued provision of sanitary facilit ies and 
increasing facilities as needed based on use or public health guidelines. At a minimum, restrooms 
and handwashing facilities shall be serviced at least two times per week or before a restroom has 
reached 150 uses (or the prescribed average uses under the design specifications of the portable 
restroom), whichever is more frequent. The 150 use standard is based on the Honey Bucket 
specification for average uses for their ADA compliant portable restroom, which is the type of facility 
proposed by the Applicant in the project description. A proposed condition of approval has been 
included that may require increases in frequency of servicing and cleaning based on guidance 
provided by public health agencies and authorities. The conditions would not be construed to limit 
the Applicant from providing more than the minimum facilities to enhance visitor amenities. 
 
Health Maintenance Guidelines 
During the pandemic, the use would operate under guidelines from public health agencies and 
authorities. Some operations may necessarily be adjusted to follow health guidance, and a 
condition of approval has been included that requires operations to be adjusted as needed to 
comply with guidance from county, state, and federal agencies. Operations would be adjusted to 
reflect strategies of maintaining healthy environments, such as sanitizing shared facilities at least 
daily or cleaning tables between each use. A condition of approval has also been included for the 
Applicant to assign or serve as a site manager to oversee functions on the site ensure shared 
amenities, like tables, are sanitized, social distancing is maintained, and any potential crowds are 
managed. 
 
Expanded Shed 
The Applicant previously included a storage shed to be integrated with the redesigned trash 
enclosure, and the updated proposal features a larger shed. The shed was initially proposed to 
store tables, chairs, and other equipment when not in use. It was later thought that the shed may 
also serve as a place that the site manager can occupy when the site is in use but additional space 
is needed. This shed would provide the person with a station to monitor activities, which would help 
maintain an environment that complies with public health guidance and requirements. The proposed 
size of the shed has increased from 120 square feet to 200 square feet.  
 
Parking 
The project provides additional information on the location of available parking and transit access. 
As a condition of approval, the Applicant would be required to provide current information on 
parking and transit on site to help highlight parking areas and transit stops. 
 
Parking access around the site is anticipated to be most impacted during Saturday Farmers’ Market 
operations, when the adjacent parking lot is used by the Farmer’s Market, however parking was 
observed to be generally available nearby. From a site visit of the Old Town area on October 17th 
during Farmer’s Market operations, parking was observed to be most impacted in areas 
immediately adjacent to the Farmer’s Market. Some of the more visible parking lots appear to be 
well-used and at approximately 80-90% capacity, including the lot opposite the Farmer’s Market, the 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                           PAGE 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 
lot next to Anjee’s Dance on Tennent Avenue, and the lot at the Pinole Youth Center on Tennent 
Avenue. However, some parking lots that are less visible and somewhat further have a larger 
number of available spaces. The parking lot off Plum Street adjacent to City Hall, which include 
approximately 70 spaces, was about half full. The parking lot adjacent to the Pinole Senior Center, 
with approximately 64 spaces, was empty aside from a handful of cars. These two lots are located 
less than a quarter mile of the site, or a four minute walk. On street parking was generally available 
around the area. A few photos of parking conditions are shown in Attachment G. 
 
Current parking conditions may reflect the possibility of different parking demands during current 
pandemic conditions, but the general idea of parking availability does appear to correspond with the 
findings of the recent Old Town Pinole Parking and Pedestrian Study that parking is underutilized in 
some areas and wayfinding improvements can promote better parking utilization. The parking study 
was conducted in September 2019 and analyzed peak weekday and weekend parking demand, 
among other topics (Attachment H). The conditions analyzed do show some difference from the 
recent observations, such as the parking utilization opposite the Farmer’s Market at the time of the 
study being less than recently observed and parking utilization at the Plum Street lot being more 
than recently observed. However, both the study and observations seem to suggest that parking 
generally does appear to be available and utilization can be improved. The condition of approval to 
provide parking information would be in line with the strategy of improving utilization of existing 
parking resources. 
 
Music 
The Applicant has requested consideration of having live music on site, in a variety of styles as 
described in the project description. Music is proposed to occur within the following days and times: 
 
Fridays – 5pm to 8pm (acoustic) 
Saturdays – 5pm to 9pm (may be amplified) 
Sundays – 12pm to 4pm (acoustic) 
Two days of music will be scheduled per month. 
A total of 20 days will be planned with live music in a year. 
 
Planning Commission may also consider whether music, if permitted, should only be limited to 
acoustic music. The current draft conditions of approval incorporate the frequency and times 
specified above and restrict amplified music without prior approval from the Development Services 
Department. 
 
Local Vendors and Support 
The Applicant provides additional details on the intent to support local food vendors and artists. The 
project proposes to give preference to food vendors who prepare food at Kitchen 812. Individual 
vendors doing business in the city would still be required to obtain business licenses and other 
applicable regulatory approvals. The Applicant has received letters of support from the Pacific 
Coast Farmers’ Market Association (PCFMA) and Pear Street Bistro, which have been included in 
the project description (Attachment C). As mentioned in the letter from PCFMA, the Applicant has 
been in communications with the Farmer’s Market operators to collaborate on operations of these 
two adjacent uses. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The project is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
OCTOBER 26, 2020                                                           PAGE 8 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  
 
that this proposal involves minor alteration of land and infill development. The project is determined 
to be categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Section 
15303, 15304 and Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines. The project proposes a redesigned trash 
enclosure and new small storage structure. Minor changes to the landscaping of the site are made, 
including addition of new water-efficient landscaping and fencing. The project is consistent with 
applicable provisions in the General Plan and Zoning Code, the development is on a site that is no 
more than five acres and is surrounded by urban uses, the site has no value as habitat for 
endangered species, the project would not create new significant impacts, and the site can be 
served by required utilities and public services.   
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The proposed project provides the opportunity to make use of an underutilized vacant property to 
host food vendors, artists, and events, which provides a unique attraction to the Old Town area. The 
use is compatible with similar uses that would otherwise be permitted or conditionally permitted in 
the same district.  
 
Staff recommends that Planning Commission adopt Resolution 20-01 with conditions approving 
Design Review 19-14 and Conditional Use Permit 19-09 to make site improvements to create an 
outdoor seating and vendor space for hosting of artisan displays, events, and food vendors at 2337 
San Pablo Avenue, and approving a Similar Use Determination, after conducting a public hearing 
and considering information provided.  
 


 
ATTACHMENTS 


 
A. Resolution 20-01 with Exhibit A: Conditions of Approval 
B. Similar Use Determination Letter 
C. Project Description, received October 19, 2020 
D. Plan Set, received October 12, 2020 
E. Staff Report and Attachments from PC Meeting 02-24-20 
F. PC Minutes 02-24-20 
G. Parking Photos 
H. Old Town Pinole Parking and Pedestrian Study 


 







 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 20-01 
WITH EXHIBIT A: CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A DESIGN REVIEW REQUEST 
(DR19-14) AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP19-09), AND MAKING A SIMILAR USE 
DETERMINATION, TO MAKE SITE IMPROVEMENTS FOR AN OUTDOOR SEATING SPACE 
WITH FENCING, A SMALL STRUCTURE, AND A TRASH ENCLOSURE REDESIGN AND TO 
PROVIDE FOR HOSTING OF ARTISAN DISPLAYS, EVENTS, VENDORS AND FOOD 
VENDORS ON AN APPROXIMATELY 4,140 SQUARE FOOT VACANT LOT IN THE CMU 
ZONING DISTRICT AT 2337 SAN PABLO AVENUE, APN: 401-162-002 
 


WHEREAS, Raquel Contreras has filed an application for Design Review (DR19-14) and 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP19-09) with the City of Pinole to make site improvements to create an 
outdoor seating, artisan display/sales, and food vendor hosting space on an  approximately 4,140 
square foot vacant lot; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole is the appropriate authority to 


hear and take action on this project; and 
      
 WHEREAS, said property is designated Old Town Sub-Area (OTSA) in the Pinole General 
Plan and Three Corridors Specific Plan and is intended to maintain and enhance the area’s quaint 
residential, commercial and mixed-use nature, architectural scale, character, style, and serve as a 
connection to Old Town Pinole; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the property is zoned Commercial Mixed Use (CMU), which allows for 
commercial uses; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the project proposes a use for an outdoor seating space to host artisan 
displays/sales and food vendors that corresponds to commercial uses but does not have a single 
direct corresponding use definition specifically listed in the Zoning Code or Specific Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, when a particular use is not specifically listed in this Zoning Code and it is 
unclear whether the use is permitted, the municipal code allows the approving authority to 
determine whether or not a proposed use is similar to a permitted or conditionally permitted use 
 
 WHEREAS, the findings can be made for a Similar Use Determination in that the project 
contains uses comparable to Parks and Public Plazas, Restaurants, Retail, and Artisan Shops, 
which are permitted uses in the same district, and the proposed use will be consistent with the 
General Plan, Specific Plan, and Zoning Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, design review is required for the redesign and site improvements of a 
commercial site; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a conditional use permit is required to establish the use of the site for special 
events that exceed three periods per year and/or 30 calendar days per year and to allow outdoor 
dining; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the design of the site meets applicable development standards and Specific 
Plan design guidelines; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the project meets the criteria for a Categorical Exemption as an In-Fill Project, a 


ATTACHMENT A 







 


new small structures, and minor alternations of land pursuant to Section 15303, Section 15304 and 
Section 15332 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole has conducted a duly noticed 
public hearing to consider DR19-14 and CUP19-09 on February 24, 2020, and the meeting was 
continued to a date uncertain; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole has conducted a duly noticed 
public hearing to continue consideration of DR19-14 and CUP19-09 on October 26, 2020; and 
 


  WHEREAS, after the close of public hearing, the Planning Commission considered all public 
comments received both before and during the public hearing, the presentation by City staff, the 
staff report, and all other pertinent information regarding the proposed development. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Planning Commission hereby finds that: 
 


1. The Planning Commission has considered the full record before it, which may include but is 
not limited to such information as the staff report, testimony by staff and the public, and 
other materials and evidence submitted or provided to it. Furthermore, the recitals set forth 
above are true and correct and are incorporated herein by reference. 


 
2. The design review request is consistent with the General Plan and Specific Plan in that the 


proposed project involves commercial use compatible with the intent to “maintain and 
enhance the residential, commercial and mixed-use character, scale and style of Old Town 
Pinole. All types of commercial and residential uses as either a single use or in combination 
with other allowable commercial and residential uses are allowed within this area, at 
intensities that preserve the character of Old Town Pinole.” The project supports General 
Plan Goals and Policies found in the Land Use and Economic Development Element and 
Community Character Element. 
 


3. The design review request, as conditioned, is consistent with the applicable provisions of 
the Zoning Code, in that it proposes minimal construction on the site located in the 
Commercial Mixed Use (CMU) zoning district and complies with applicable development 
standards.  
 


4. The proposed project will not create conflicts with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian 
transportation modes of circulation in that the design of the lot is designed for pedestrian 
access. Additionally, temporary loading and unloading for vendor and artist set-up 
involves access to the lot from the parking lot to minimize conflicts. 


 
5. The site design is compatible with and complements the existing surrounding 


environment and ultimate character of the area under the general plan and applicable 
specific plans in that the project provides improves the appearance of the lot in the Old 
Town area through new fencing and landscaping. 
 


6. The project complies with design criteria and guidelines. 
 


7. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will not, under the 
circumstances of the particular case (location, size, design, and operating 
characteristics), be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general 
welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such use or to the general 







 


welfare of the city in that the project, as conditioned, shall improve an underutilized site 
and establish ongoing requirements to maintain operations. 
 


8. The site of the proposed use is physically suitable for the type, density and intensity of 
the use and related structures being proposed in that the site does not propose 
construction of a new building and the proposed use would primarily be commercial in 
nature. 
 


9. It will not be contrary to the specific intent clauses, development regulations, or 
performance standards established for the zoning district in which it is located. The 
proposed use and improvements are compatible with permitted uses in the zoning 
district and does not include construction of commercial structures. 


 
10. Similar Use Determination. The project proposes uses similar to other permitted and 


conditionally permitted uses in the zoning district and is consistent with the general plan, 
specific plan, and zoning code. 
a. The characteristics of and activities associated with the proposed use are equivalent 


to one (1) or more of the listed uses and will not involve a higher level of activity or 


population density than the uses listed in the zoning district. Parks and Public Plazas, 
Restaurant, Retail and Artisan Shop are a permitted uses in the CMU district and 
comparable to the proposed use. 


b. The proposed use will be consistent with the purposes of the applicable zoning 
district. The project is consistent with the development standards of the zoning district 
as no new permanent structures are proposed for development.  


c. The proposed use will be consistent with the general plan, any applicable specific 
plan, and the zoning code. The proposed uses are consistent with the general plan land 
use designation of OTSA and the specific plan and zoning code CMU district in that the 
proposed use provides for commercial use compatible with the intent to “maintain and 
enhance the residential, commercial and mixed-use character, scale and style of Old 
Town Pinole. All types of commercial and residential uses as either a single use or in 
combination with other allowable commercial and residential uses are allowed within this 
area, at intensities that preserve the character of Old Town Pinole,” contained in the 
description of the OTSA. The Specific Plan and Zoning Code describes the purpose of 
the CMU district is to “designate property for vibrant commercial and mixed-use 
development. While predominately commercial (this category is designed to provide for 
the integration of retail and service commercial uses with office and/or residential uses).” 


 
11. Outdoor Dining. The project does not place seating in the public right of way to interfere with 


sidewalk traffic, public utilities, or traffic devices. Where seating is located on the property, a 
minimum six foot wide path of travel will be required to be maintained, as conditioned. 


 
12. The design review and conditional use permit request is Categorically Exempt from CEQA 


pursuant to Section 150303, Section 15304, and Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines. 
The project is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) in that this proposal involves minor alteration of land. The project is determined to 
be categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under 
Section 15304 and Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines. The project proposes a 
redesigned trash enclosure and new small storage structure. Minor changes to the 
landscaping of the site are made, including addition of new water-efficient landscaping and 
fencing.  The project is consistent with applicable provisions in the General Plan and Zoning 
Code, the development is on a site that is no more than five acres and is surrounded by 
urban uses, the site has no value as habitat for endangered species, the project would not 







 


create new significant impacts, and the site can be served by required utilities and public 
services.   


 
  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole: 
   


A. Hereby approves DR19-14 and CUP19-09 as provided in the staff report, and subject to the 
Conditions of Approval attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution. 
  


B. The approval of DR19-14 and CUP19-09 shall expire on October 26, 2021, unless 
exercised and actual construction or alteration as needed under valid permits has begun 
within said period or a written request has been submitted to the City, prior to the expiration 
date, for an extension of time as allowed under the Zoning Ordinance. 
 


The above action is final unless an appeal is filed pursuant to Chapter 17.10 of the Pinole Municipal 
Code within ten (10) calendar days following Planning Commission action. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole on this 26th day of 
October 2020, by the following vote: 


                                            
  
 AYES:  
 NOES:   
 ABSTAIN:    
 ABSENT:  


                   
           _________________________________ 


David Kurrent, Chair, 2019-2020 
                           
ATTEST:  
 
 
________________________________ 
David Hanham, Planning Manager 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             1 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


1.  The project shall be constructed and operated in substantial compliance 
with the approved Design Review and Conditional Use Permit request for 
the outdoor use at 2337 San Pablo Avenue (APN 401-162-002), 
approved by the Planning Commission as shown on the project 
description date-stamped received October 19, 2020 and project plans 
date-stamped received October 12, 2020, unless otherwise conditioned.  
 


The applicant shall obtain all required permits from the City of Pinole to 
implement the project (e.g., Building Permits, Encroachment Permits, etc) 
 
Any modifications must be reviewed by the Planning Manager who shall 
determine whether the modification requires additional approval of the 
Planning Commission. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department  


 


2.  The proposed project shall be built and operated in a manner consistent 
with all applicable federal, state, and local regulations. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department  


 


3.  
 


The Applicant shall hold harmless the City, its Council Members, its 
Planning Commission, officers, agents, employees, and representatives 
from liability for any award, damages, costs and fees incurred by the City 
and/or awarded to any plaintiff in an action challenging the validity of this 
permit or any environmental or other documentation related to approval 
of this permit.  Applicant further agrees to provide a defense for the City 
in any such action. 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department  


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             2 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


 Ongoing Requirements    


4.  CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – The conditions of approval shall be kept 
by the applicant/owner and shall be made readily available for review 
when requested by the officers and representatives of the City of Pinole. 
These conditions of approval shall also be included in any plan set 
submitted for a permit with the City. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 


5.  SCHEDULE – Regular operation of the use of the site shall be within the 
times provided in the project description and listed below.  
 
REGULAR HOURS 
 
Food vendors 
Thursday-Sunday: 9:00am – 9:00pm* 
*Hours may change during daylight savings time but shall not deviate by 
more than one hour from the above-mentioned times. 
 
 
THEMES AND TIMES 
 
January to February  
Regular hours, as shown above. 
 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             3 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


March to September 
(Spring Harvest, Taco Fest, BBQ Fest: food vendors and plant/herb 
vendors) 
Regular hours, as shown above. 
 
May to December  
(Art Walk: artist display and sales) 
Art Walk 
First Friday of the Month: 9:00am – 9:00pm  
Food vendors 
Regular hours, as shown above. 
 
September to October  
(Halloween: pumpkin patch and food vendors) 
Pumpkin patch  
Every day: 9:00am – 9:00pm  
Food vendors 
Every day: 9:00am – 9:00pm  
 
November  
(Day of the Dead: artist display and food vendors) 
November 1 and 2: 9:00am – 9:00pm 
 
 
 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             4 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


November to December 24th  
(Christmas Tree Sales and Decoration/ Holiday Market: artist display 
and sales and food vendors) 
Tree Sales and Holiday Market 
Every day: 9:00am – 9:00pm  
Food vendors 
Every day: 9:00am – 9:00pm  
 
Proposed modifications to the schedule shall be subject to review by the 
Planning Manager, who may determine if changes should return to 
Planning Commission for consideration. 
 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS OR USES 
 
One-time or limited-time special events or use of the site, including but 
not limited to community events, fundraisers, or private events, that are 
not noted with specific times, dates, or descriptions in the above schedule 
are subject to notification to the Planning Division, and the Planning 
Manager may determine whether further approval is required, which may 
include a temporary use permit, use permit modification, or new use 
permit. The owner should notify the Planning Division at least two weeks 
before the special event or use.  
 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             5 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


6.  NUMBER OF VENDORS – No more than four food vendors shall be 
hosted on site at the same time. 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 


7.  USE EVALUATION – The proposed use may be subject to further 
consideration following implementation of the use. The owner shall 
cooperate with the Development Services Department to resolve any 
verified nuisance complaints regarding the use. The Planning Manager 
shall have the discretion to put a hold on the use and reconsider the 
continued operation of the use where significant nuisances attributed to 
the use arise. The use permit may be subject to, but is not limited to, 
modification or revocation. The Planning Manager shall determine 
whether the project should be brought to Planning Commission for further 
consideration. 


 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 


8.  USE AND DESIGN MODIFICATIONS – The owner shall submit any 
proposed modifications to the site design or use, including days and 
times of events, to the Planning Manager for consideration. The Planning 
Manager shall determine whether the project should be brought to 
Planning Commission for further consideration. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             6 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


9.  LOCAL BUSINESSES AND ARTISTS – In the provision of vendor and 
artist spaces, the owner shall give preference to food vendors who 
prepare at Kitchen 812, as proposed in the application’s project 
description, and to local businesses and artists. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 


10.  SITE MONITORING STAFF – When the site is open for use, the owner 
or designated site monitor, either of whom are clearly identifiable to 
visitors, shall be on site to manage crowds, maintain safe site conditions, 
and mitigate potential nuisances. The site monitor shall ensure a 
minimum six foot wide path of travel through the site is maintained. 
 
Security monitors shall be placed at the entrances for special events with 
potentially large crowds if needed to ensure visitors at these events 
remain within property boundaries to avoid blocking the rights-of-way. 
 
The owner or designated site monitor shall be responsible for 
implementing recommendations and requirements of public health 
agencies and authorities in maintaining a safe and healthy environment, 
which may include but is not limited to sanitizing shared amenities, 
managing the concentration of visitors, and maintaining safe separation 
distances. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             7 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


11.  LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE – The owner shall maintain all 
landscaping on site. The owner shall replace all dead or dying plants on 
site with plants of the same species or with plants of comparable water 
use and size at maturity that are suitable for the Pinole climate. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 


12.  STORAGE – The owner shall ensure that all tables, chairs, and 
equipment are stored away and secured when not in use.  


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 


13.  TRASH AND DEBRIS – The owner shall ensure that the property 
remains free of trash and debris. When the property is open to the public, 
the owner shall make waste receptacles readily available and clearly 
visible on site. Each vendor shall be required to provide waste 
receptacles for trash, recycling, and compost recycling. Following the end 
of use each day, waste receptacles shall be promptly returned to their 
designated enclosed storage areas. The owner shall be responsible for 
coordinating waste pick-up with the waste management provider on a 
weekly basis at minimum, and the frequency of pick-up shall be 
increased as needed to ensure the property remains free of waste and 
receptables have sufficient capacity at all times. The owner shall ensure 
waste bins are returned to designated enclosed areas within 24 hours of 
pick-up. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             8 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


14.  SANITARY FACILITIES AND RESTROOMS – The owner shall ensure 
sanitary facilities, including handwashing facilities and portable 
restrooms, are available for public use whenever the property is open to 
the public.  
 
The site shall have at least one restroom and handwashing facility each 
day the use is in operation.  Restrooms and handwashing facilities shall 
be serviced at least two times per week or before a restroom has reached 
150 uses (or the prescribed average uses under the design specifications 
of the portable restroom), whichever is more frequent.  
 
The number of restrooms and handwashing facilities and/or frequency of 
servicing shall be increased as needed to follow the current public health 
recommendations and guidance provided by local, state, or federal 
agencies and authorities. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 


15.  LIVE MUSIC SCHEDULE – The site may have live music no more than 
20 days per year, with no more than two days per month, and only within 
the following timeframes: 
 
Fridays – 5pm to 8pm 
Saturdays – 5pm to 9pm 
Sundays – 12pm to 4pm 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             9 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


16.  AMPLIFIED MUSIC – No amplified music shall be played on site without 
prior approval from the Development Services Department. 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 


17.  ENTRIES AND LOCKS – Entry gates shall be kept wide opening during 
use of the space to maintain visibility inside the site when viewed from 
the parking lot and right-of-way. The entries shall be locked when the site 
is not in use. The type of locks shall be labelled in the final plan set for 
review by the Police Department. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department/ 
Police 


Department 


 


18.  LIGHTING – The owner shall ensure that lighting is available on site 
during late-afternoon to evening hours and the entire lot has adequate 
lighting. Lighting equipment shall include shields to project light 
downward and to prevent light and glare impacts on adjacent properties 
and the right-of-way. The proposed lighting set-up locations, including 
portable lighting equipment, shall be identified in the final plan set for 
review by the Police Department. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department/ 
Police 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             10 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


19.  FIRE SAFETY –The following Fire Safety comments from preliminary 
review of the project shall be implemented, unless otherwise modified by 
the Fire Department review of final project plans: 


• A minimum of two fire extinguishers shall be provided on site and 
shall be a minimum size of 2A10BC. 


• Egress doors, gates or the like shall swing in the direction of the 
egress path (i.e., out to the parking lot). 


• A minimum 36 inch clearance shall be maintained between tables 
(from back of chair to back of chair), vendor booths, and artist 
display areas to provide for egress. 


 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department/ 
Fire 


Department 


 


20.  VENDOR, ARTIST, AND OTHER SET-UP – The owner, vendors, artists, 
or other parties setting up booths, furniture, and other items on site shall 
access the site from the adjacent parking lot. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 


21.  ALCOHOL SALES AND SERVICE – Alcohol sales and service on site 
shall not be permitted without obtaining additional necessary approvals 
from the City of Pinole and the California Department of Alcohol and 
Beverage Control. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             11 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


22.  SIGNAGE – Any permanent or temporary signage proposal shall be 
reviewed by the Development Services Department prior to installation 
and shall comply with the applicable permit requirements of Chapter 
17.52 Signs of the Municipal Code and the specifications of the Three 
Corridors Specific Plan. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 


23.  PARKING AND TRANSPORTATION INFORMATION – The owner shall 
provide clearly visible information and maps inside the site regarding the 
location of Old Town parking lots and public transportation stops. The 
owner should also incorporate parking and transit information in 
marketing materials and project-related webpages where possible. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 


24.  CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE – The owner shall provide a certificate 
of insurance that designates the City of Pinole as additional insured. The 
owner shall provide updated certificates of insurance where any change 
to insurance is made. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 
Permits, and 


Ongoing 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


25.  BUSINESS LICENSES/ COUNTY HEALTH PERMITS – All vendors and 
parties conducting business on site shall hold a valid business license 
from the City of Pinole. All vendors and parties serving food shall obtain 
applicable permits from the Contra Costa Health Services Division. 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department/ 
Finance 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             12 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


26.  EASEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES – The owner acknowledges that any 
use of easement areas dedicated to the City of Pinole may be subject to 
revocation for future City projects and purposes. In such cases, the 
owner shall be responsible for removing all new structures proposed in 
this project and all personal property from the easement area, including 
tables, chairs, and bins. If requested by the City, the owner shall be 
responsible for restoring the trash enclosure within the easement to the 
original size and design specifications. Should the owner fail to act on the 
aforementioned removal and/or restoration of elements in the easement 
area after receiving notice from the City, the owner shall be responsible 
for reimbursing the City for any cost-incurred by the City to conduct such 
work, and the City shall not be held liable for the demolition and/or 
disposal of structures and property. 
 


Ongoing Development 
Services 


Department 


 


 Prior to Issuance of Building Permits    


27.  LANDSCAPE AND FENCING PLAN – The applicant shall prepare and 
submit a final full detailed landscape, fencing and irrigation plan for 
review and approval by the Development Services Department prior to 
the issuance of building permits.  
 
The landscape, fencing and irrigation plan shall include the number, type, 
and size of all proposed new trees, shrubs, and groundcover specimens.   
Any new fencing or gate design details shall be included within the 
building construction plans. All proposed plantings shall be drought-


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department  


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             13 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


tolerant and well-suited to the City’s climate zone.  
 
The detailed landscape, fencing and irrigation plan shall be consistent 
with all applicable requirements of the Municipal Code including Chapter 
17.44.  
 


28.  LIGHTING DETAILS – The applicant shall include the location and 
description of existing and proposed lighting on site, including lighting 
specifications, examples, or cut sheets, in the building plan set. Light 
fixtures selected shall include shields to project light downward and to 
prevent light and glare impacts on adjacent properties and the right-of-
way. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


29.  DRAINAGE PLANS – The applicant shall prepare a final drainage plan 
for Development Services Department review and approval. The 
construction drainage plan will show how drainage will be handled during 
construction. The final drainage plan will show how drainage will be 
handled after construction is complete. Site design shall avoid drainage 
of water from one property onto another property and shall be subject to 
approval by the City Engineer. 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


30.  BICYCLE PARKING – The applicant shall identify areas to accommodate 
parking of at least two bicycles and clearly identify these locations with 
markers or signs on site. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             14 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


31.  POLICE DEPARTMENT REVIEW – The applicant shall provide the final 
project description, event schedule, and plan to the Police Department 
Community Outreach Unit for final review. 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department/ 
Police 


Department 


 


32.  FIRE DEPARTMENT REVIEW – The applicant shall address all 
comments from the Fire Department’s preliminary review of the proposal 
and review of final plans and shall pay any outstanding fees for plan 
review, prior to issuance of any permits. 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department/ 
Fire 


Department 


 


33.  PRE-CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN – The applicant 
shall complete a pre-construction waste management plan. Forms can be 
obtained from the Development Services Department. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


34.  PERMITS, BONDS, AND INSURANCE – The applicant shall obtain an 
encroachment permit, posting the required bonds and insurance, for any 
work to be done in the City’s right-of-way. This encroachment permit shall 
be obtained prior to the issuance of a building permit and prior to any 
work being done in the City’s right-of-way. 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department  


 


35.  MATERIAL HAULING – The applicant shall submit a proposed material 
hauling route and schedule. All material hauling activities including, but 
not limited to, adherence to approved route, hours of operation, dust 
control and street maintenance shall be the responsibility of the applicant 
(as per Section 15.36.080 of the Municipal Code). Violation of the 
applicable may be cause for suspension of work. 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             15 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


 During Construction and Prior to Occupancy 


36.  CONSTRUCTION SITE INFORMATION – A construction contact 
person’s name, mobile phone number, and email address shall be posted 
on the project site during the duration of construction.  
 
The property address shall be clearly marked during the project 
construction process. 


During 
Construction  


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


37.  CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY – The building permit holder shall ensure 
the following provisions to control noise, dust, and construction debris 
nuisance occur during construction: 
 
A. Building construction activities shall occur only between 7:00A.M. and 


5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday on non-federal holidays. Interior 
construction work may occur between 9:00A.M. and 6:00P.M. on 
weekends if requested and approved by the City as allowed under 
Chapter 15.02 of the City Municipal Code. 


 
B. All construction vehicles shall be properly maintained and equipped 


with exhaust mufflers and meet State and Federal standards. 
 


C. Newly disturbed soil surfaces shall be watered down regularly 
throughout the day and any construction grading activity shall be 
discontinued in wind conditions greater than 10 miles per hour. 


 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             16 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


D. Construction activities shall be scheduled so that paving and 
foundation placement begin immediately upon completion of grading 
operation. 


 
E. All excavated or silty materials shall be covered with a tarp during 


transit to and from the site. 
 


F. All construction debris shall be covered with a tarp during transit from 
the site.  


 
G. The construction site shall be maintained in an orderly fashion and 


litter shall be contained and properly disposed of on a daily basis. 
 


38.  SITE MAINTENANCE – The construction site shall be cleaned of 
garbage and debris on a daily basis and maintained in an orderly fashion. 
All construction equipment shall be secured at the end of each day of 
construction. 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


39.  INSPECTIONS – The applicant shall notify the Development Services  
Department at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to starting any work  
pertaining to on-site drainage facilities, grading, or paving, as well as   
any work in the City’s right-of-way as per Section 15.36.230 of the 
Municipal Code.  
The applicant shall arrange all inspections with the Building Division, Fire 
Department, and Public Works Division.  All Building Division inspection 
requests shall be made at least 24 hours in advance. 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
Planning Commission Resolution 20-01 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


As Approved by Planning Commission                                             17 of 17 Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Avenue                                                                             
October 26, 2020  Design Review (DR) 19-14 & Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 19-09 
                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 
(date and 


sign) 


40.  ACCESS TO SAN PABLO AVENUE – Project construction vehicles and 
vehicles belonging to construction workers shall not block access to San 
Pablo Avenue or any other public roadway. 
 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


41.  SIDEWALK, CURB AND GUTTER REPAIR – The applicant shall repair 
and replace to existing City standards, any damaged sidewalk, curb and 
gutter on or abutting the project site. 


Prior to Final Development 
Services 


Department  


 


42.  POST-CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT Report – The 
applicant shall complete a post-construction waste management report 
prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy.   


Prior to Final Development 
Services 


Department  


 


 







 


1 


 


October 26, 2020 
 
Raquel Contreras 
714 Walker Avenue 
Oakland, CA 94610 
 
RE:  Similar Use Determination for Design Review DR 19-14 and Conditional Use 


Permit CUP 19-09, Casa Amada at 2337 San Pablo Ave 
 
Dear Ms. Contreras: 
  
The Planning Commission has approved a determination that the proposed use under 
DR19-14 and CUP19-09 for 2337 San Pablo Ave, creating an outdoor seating space 
with fencing, a small structure, and a trash enclosure redesign and providing for 
hosting of artisan displays, events, music, and food vendors, is similar to a permitted 
or conditionally permitted use in the CMU zoning district and may be permitted in the 
zoning district. 


The proposed use was considered in context with current similar existing uses in its 
surroundings and the permitted uses in its zoning district. The proposed use is located 
in an area with other existing restaurant uses, including a restaurant on the same 
block. Other existing outdoor public gathering spaces near the site include Fernandez 
Park located one block from the site. The proposed use is comparable to other 
permitted uses in its zoning district, as noted in the findings of approval below. 


The proposed use meets the findings for approval, as listed below:  


1. The characteristics of and activities associated with the proposed use are equivalent to 
one (1) or more of the listed uses and will not involve a higher level of activity or 
population density than the uses listed in the zoning district. 
The proposed uses would be comparable to the use and activity of other permitted or 
conditionally permitted uses in the district. 


• Parks and Public Plazas are a permitted use in the CMU district of the Old Town 
Sub Area of the Specific Plan. Parks and Public Plazas are defined as “public 
parks including playgrounds and athletic fields/courts and public plazas and 
outdoor gathering places for community use. If privately-owned and restricted to 
the public (e.g., require payment of fee), the same facilities are included under 
the definition of ‘Outdoor Commercial Recreation.’” The project proposes an 
outdoor gathering place. 


• Restaurant is a permitted use in the CMU district of the Old Town Sub Area of 
the Specific Plan. Restaurant is defined as “a retail business selling food and 
beverages prepared and/or served on the site, for on- or off premise 
consumption. These include eating establishments where customers are served 


 CITY OF PINOLE 
 


Development Services Department 
  


2131 Pear Street Tel: (510) 724-8912 


Pinole, CA 94564 Fax: (510) 724-9826 


ATTACHMENT B 







 


2 


 


from a walk-up ordering counter for either on- or off-premise consumption, and 
establishments where most customers are served food at tables for on-premise 
consumption, but may include providing food for take-out. Also includes coffee 
houses and accessory cafeterias as part of office and industrial uses.” Outdoor 
dining is permitted with approval of a Administrative Use Permit. The project 
proposes hosting businesses selling food and beverages within an outdoor dining 
space. 


• Retail is a permitted use in the CMU district of the Old Town Sub Area of the 
Specific Plan. The project proposes some sale of plants, herbs, holiday gifts, 
packaged food gifts, and art pieces. 


• Artisan Shop is a permitted use in the CMU district in the Zoning Code. Artisan 
Shop is defined as “a retail store selling art glass, ceramics, jewelry, and other 
handcrafted items, where the facility includes an area for the crafting of the items 
being sold.” Artists selling goods would fall under this category. 


 
2. The proposed use will be consistent with the purposes of the applicable zoning district. 


The project is consistent with the development standards of the zoning district as no new 
permanent structures are proposed for development.  
 


3. The proposed use will be consistent with the general plan, any applicable specific plan, 
and the zoning code. 
The proposed uses are consistent with the general plan land use designation of OTSA 
and the specific plan and zoning code CMU district in that the proposed use provides for 
commercial use compatible with the intent to “maintain and enhance the residential, 
commercial and mixed-use character, scale and style of Old Town Pinole. All types of 
commercial and residential uses as either a single use or in combination with other 
allowable commercial and residential uses are allowed within this area, at intensities that 
preserve the character of Old Town Pinole,” contained in the description of the OTSA. 
The Specific Plan and Zoning Code describes the purpose of the CMU district is to 
“designate property for vibrant commercial and mixed-use development. While 
predominately commercial (this category is designed to provide for the integration of 
retail and service commercial uses with office and/or residential uses).” 


 
Any person may appeal an action of the Planning Commission or of the Planning Manager by 
filing an appeal with the City Clerk, in writing, within ten (10) days of such action.  Following a 
Public Hearing, the City Council may act to confirm, modify or reverse the action of the Planning 
Commission and the Planning Commission may act to confirm, modify, or reverse the action of 
the Planning Manager. The cost to appeal a decision is $500 and a minimum $2,500 deposit 
fee. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (510) 724-9035 or via email at 
jshiu@ci.pinole.ca.us.    
 
Sincerely, 


 
Justin Shiu 
Contract Planner 



mailto:jshiu@ci.pinole.ca.us













































Casa Amada 
G a r d e n


Artisanal eats meet the outdoors
  


2 3 3 7 S a n P a b l o A v e n u e P i n o l e , C a l i f o r n i a 







APN: 401-162-002


PAGE


LANDSCAPE PLAN
2337 SAN PABLO AVE PINOLE CA 94564


RAQUEL CONTRERAS
714 Walker Ave Oakland Ca 94610
Ph. 510.418.1595  E. begrap@sbcglobal.netL a n d s c a p e D e s i g n


Contreras


PROPOSAL - LANDSCAPE


S
A


N
 P


A
B


L
O


 A
V


E


DECOMPOSED GRANITE
AREA


N


TRASH
ENCLOSURE


1


2


WOOD FENCE


3 PLANTING AREA


4 WOOD PLANTERS


5  WOOD FENCE


7  SWING GATE


119'-10"


30'-0"


S
A


N
 P


A
B


L
O


 A
V


E


Z1


RAIN WATER BARREL
 


9'-7"


water meter


8


PAVERS


9


ELECTRICAL POINT
ENCLOSURE


10 SLIDE GATE


PLANT PALATTE


BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SUNSE
T ZONE


PF IRR 
GROUP


Lagerstoemia Crapemyrtle 17 M 1


Arbutus Marina Strawberry tree 17 M/L 2


Rhamnus alaternus Itallian buckhorn 17 M 2


Thunbergia alata Black eyed susan 17 M 2


Trachelospermum jasminoides Star jasmine 17 M 1


Cordyline australis Pink cordilne 17 M 1


Agave Attentua Agave 17 L/VL 2


Euphorbia tirucalli Firesticks 17 ML 2


Senecio serpens Blue Chalksticks 17 L/VL 2


Aeoniums succulent 17 L/VL 2


Calandrinia spectablilis rock purslane 17 L/VL 2


Aeonium starburst 17 L/VL 2


Lavandula stoechas Lavender 17 M/L 2


Sedum Purple emperor 17 L/VL 2


Leucadendren Safari sunset 17 M/L 2


Wodyetia bifurcata Fox tail palm 17 M/L 1


66'-6"


PROPOSAL - IRRIGATION PLAN


ZONE HYDROZONE IRRIGATION METHOD


1 low water in line drip 


2 low water use in line drip


MATERIAL LEGEND


SYMBOL ITEM TYPE/ SIZE


1 wood fence 6” Pine wood siding / 10’ 6”w  x 6’ h


2 utility cover Metal / 1’ 6” x 2’ x 2’ 


3 plantings Brown bark mulch


4 planters typ./Rewood/ recycled 3’ x 3’


5 fence
cable wire trellis


4”x4” posts PT./ 1”x6” typ. redwood planks/recycled,  6’ 
high


6 trash bins, compost 
& recycle enclosure


stucco & - fiber cement based siding 
size 6’d x  8w x 7’ h 


7 swing gate Galvanized metal & steel posts/ 10’w x 6’h


8 pavers porcelain 2cm 24” x24”


9 ground Decomposed granite 


10 slide gate galvanized metal / 12’w x 6’h


11 storage enclosure  top wall fiber cement siding &metal roof  


12 pergola 4”x4” PT. wood posts, 12” wood rafters 
10’-6”w x 12’-0”h


1 OF 3


OWNER / APPLICANT       DATE: 10-11-20


SCALE:   1’ = 1/8”


PROJECT TITLE / ADDRESS


0’ 8’ 16’ SCALE 1=1/8”


ENTRANCE


ENTRANCE


 PUBLIC PARKING


water meter


DESIGN INTENT
To create an outdoor commercial gathering space designed to promote local 
micro businesses in the food industry and local artists that make their own crafts.  
A place where locals come to meet, socialize, eat, explore the downtown, and 
shop locally.  


PROPOSAL - SITE PLAN


LIGHT POST


3
4
'-
1
0
"


12 WOOD
PERGOLA


1
0
'-
7
"


5
TRELLIS
metal/wire


R


W W


STORAGE
ENCLOSURE


waste compost


recycle


portable
TOILET
& wash 


STORAGE/
OFFICE/GARDEN
SHED


11


10’-0 X 20’-0”


6


RAIN WATER BARREL
 


8


PAVERS


R


W C


portable
TOILET 


10’-0 X 20’-0”


6'-0"


1
4
'-
0
"


C


BICYCLE RACK







APN: 401-162-002


PAGE


GRADING PLAN
2337 SAN PABLO AVE PINOLE CA 94564


RAQUEL CONTRERAS
714 Walker Ave Oakland Ca 94610
Ph. 510.418.1595  E. begrap@sbcglobal.netL a n d s c a p e D e s i g n


Contreras


EXISTING SITE 


66'-6"


119'-10"


30'-0"


S
A


N
 P


A
B


L
O


 A
V


E


1
0
'-
0
"


GRADING PLAN


PROPOSED LANDSCAPE AREA
PLOT 002
2778 SQ FT
EXISTING ESPOSED DIRT 
(PLOT TO BE LEVEL )


20.11’
20.11’


21.00’ 21.00’


21.25’


20.06’


21.00’


E
X


IS
T


IN
G


 S
ID


E
W


A
L
K


EXISTING BANK BUILDING


2361


EXISTING BANK BUILDING


2331


T
E


N
N


E
N


T
 A


V
E


2301


2 OF 3


OWNER / APPLICANT       DATE:  10-11-20


SCALE:   1’ = 1/8”


PROJECT TITLE / ADDRESS


0’ 8’ 16’ SCALE 1=1/8”


N


16’ 2"8’-7"


shutoff 
valve


24’-4"


electrical 
connection point


sewer
line


public parking


water meter


fire hydrant


1
5


'-
6


"


E
A


S
E


M
E


N
T


37'-0" EASEMENT


R


W C


10’-0 X 20’-0”


5'-6"







20'-0"


APN: 401-162-002


PAGE


ELEVATIONS
2337 SAN PABLO AVE PINOLE CA 94564


RAQUEL CONTRERAS
714 Walker Ave Oakland Ca 94610
Ph. 510.418.1595  E. begrap@sbcglobal.netL a n d s c a p e D e s i g n


Contreras
3 OF 4


OWNER / APPLICANT       DATE:  10-11-20


SCALE:   1’ = 1/8”


PROJECT TITLE / ADDRESS


0’ 8’ 16’ SCALE 1=1/8”


N


EAST SIDE ELEVATION  
E


WEST SIDE ELEVATION 
W


NORTH SIDE ELEVATION  
N


SOUTH SIDE ELEVATION: GATE AND FENCE 
S


STORAGE SHED CONSTRUCTION
2X4 FRAMING WITH HARDI PANELS/ FIBER CEMENT 
GALVANIZE METAL ROOF


WASTE STORAGE 
INSTALL METAL MESH PANEL AT BACK WALL FOR TRAILING VINES


WASTE STORAGE TYP FRAME AND STUCCO WALLS
METAL DOOR SWING OPEN


9
'-
5
"


6
'-
0
"


10'-0"
8'-0"


FENCE, TRAILING VINES AND HEDGES







APN: 401-162-002


PAGE


MATERIAL BOARD
2337 SAN PABLO AVE PINOLE CA 94564


RAQUEL CONTRERAS
714 Walker Ave Oakland Ca 94610
Ph. 510.418.1595  E. begrap@sbcglobal.netL a n d s c a p e D e s i g n


Contreras
4 OF 4


OWNER / APPLICANT       DATE:  10-11-20


SCALE:   1’ = 1/8”


PROJECT TITLE / ADDRESS


1 6
WOOD FENCE  AND PLANTERS - 6” TYP.
TYP - PINEWOOD/ REDWOOD/RECYCLED
OR SIMILAR
COLOR: CEDAR NATURAL TONE  


HARDI PLANK - FIBER CEMENT SIDINGDECOMPOSED GRANITE
COLOR: TYP.  (EARTHTONE COLOR)


COLOR: 


STONE PAVERS:
SIZE: 12X24  - TYP.
TRAVERTINE, DURANGO CREAM


WOOD FENCE & PLANTERS - 6” PINEWOOD SIDING
COLOR: CORDOVA BROWN







Lot Descrip�on Address Number of spaces


 Lot 1-Main City Hall Public  2180 Prune St  77


 Lot 2-Post Office Parking -   right of 2101 Pear St 21


 Lot 3-City Hall Parking -    2169 Pear St -  20


 Lot 4-In front of City Hall   836 Tennent Ave -  11


 Lot 5-Bank of the West  2372 Pear St 47


 Lot 6-Area N. & E of Mechanics  Bank- 2401 San Pablo Ave 21


  Lot 7-Area South of Mechanics Bank   813 Fernandez Ave 43


 Lot 8-Captains Co�age   2548 San Pablo Ave 10


 Lot 9 A-East Charles St Upper Area  2560 Charles Ave  8


 Lot 9 B-East Charles St Lower Area  2572 Charles Ave  16


 Lot 10-Senior Center   2518 Charles Ave  70


 Lot 11-Tennent Avenue Parking  648 Tennent Ave 35


 Lot 12-Christ the Lord Church  592 Tennent Ave 22


 Lot 13-New Youth Center   635 Tennent Ave 35


Minimum of total public parking spaces available 436


*Addi�onal parking is available along  Pablo Ave (2400 lf) and side streets
Parking Public transportation Bicycle Walking


Surrounded by 436 designated 
public parking spaces and over 
2400 linear feet of street parking 
along San Pablo Ave.


Hercules Transit Center is 1.7 miles 
from 2337 San Pablo and 
accessible by train and a 4 min 
walk .  Estimate time of arrival is 14 
min. 


Bicycle route from Hercules Transit 
Center, via I-80 Bikeway/San Pablo 
Ave and Willow Ave.  Estimated 
time of arrival is 13 min.


15 minute from 
residential
community 


Parking 


Exhibit A


Map provided by Westcat.com 
additional transportation maps for lynx,local bus,& ADA paratransit can be seen online
https://www.westcat.org/Content/Pdf/COVIDSchedule.pdf


Public TransportationBicycle Parking


2 bicycle racks will be 
provided on location


bicycle lockers located
at Hercules Transit Center







PARKING


PARKING


PEDESTRIAN
ENTRANCE


SOCIAL DISTANCING VENDOR SETUP 


SOCIAL DISTANCE SINGLE VENDOR LAYOUT RAQUEL CONTRERAS
714 Walker Ave Oakland Ca 94610
Ph. 510.418.1595  E. begrap@sbcglobal.netL a n d s c a p e D e s i g n


Contreras


PEDESTRIAN
ENTRANCE
OPEN TO PEDESTRIANS
AFTER VENDOR SET UP


ENTRANCE


R


W


C


STORAGE
ENCLOSURE


waste compost


recycle


portable
TOILET
  


STORAGE/
GARDEN
SHED


10’-0 X 12’-0”


FOOD
VENDOR


P1


OCCUPANCY LOAD


standing =119
sitting = 20   


wash
station


W


PAGE TITLE  ADDRESS OWNER


2337 San Pablo Ave
Pinole, CA94564
APN: 401-162-002







PARKING


PARKING


PEDESTRIAN
ENTRANCE


SINGLE VENDOR SET UP


EATING AREA


SINGLE VENDOR LAYOUT RAQUEL CONTRERAS
714 Walker Ave Oakland Ca 94610
Ph. 510.418.1595  E. begrap@sbcglobal.netL a n d s c a p e D e s i g n


Contreras


PEDESTRIAN
ENTRANCE
OPEN TO PEDESTRIANS
AFTER VENDOR SET UP


ENTRANCE


R


W


C


STORAGE
ENCLOSURE


waste compost


recycle


portable
TOILET
  


STORAGE/
GARDEN
SHED


10’-0 X 12’-0”


FOOD
VENDOR


ARTIST 


ARTIST 


ARTIST 


ARTIST 


P2


OCCUPANCY LOAD


standing =119
sitting = 20   


wash
station


W


PAGE TITLE  ADDRESS OWNER


2337 San Pablo Ave
Pinole, CA94564
APN: 401-162-002







FOOD
VENDOR


FOOD
VENDOR


FOOD
VENDOR


PARKING


PARKING


PEDESTRIAN
ENTRANCE


MULTIPLE VENDOR SET UP


PEDESTRIAN
ENTRANCE
OPEN TO PEDESTRIANS
AFTER VENDOR SET UP


ENTRANCE


R


W


C


STORAGE
ENCLOSURE


waste compost


recycle


portable
TOILET 


STORAGE/
GARDEN
SHED


10’-0 X 12’-0”


FOOD
VENDOR


OCCUPANCY LOAD


standing =119
sitting = 28


wash
station


W


MULTIPLE VENDOR LAYOUT RAQUEL CONTRERAS
714 Walker Ave Oakland Ca 94610
Ph. 510.418.1595  E. begrap@sbcglobal.netL a n d s c a p e D e s i g n


Contreras P3


PAGE TITLE  ADDRESS OWNER


2337 San Pablo Ave
Pinole, CA94564
APN: 401-162-002


ARTIST ARTIST 



























































































































































  


 


                 February 24, 2020    1 


 1 


MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 2 


PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION 3 


 4 


February 24, 2020  5 


 6 


 7 


A.        CALL TO ORDER:    7:02 P.M. 8 


 9 


B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 10 


 11 


Commissioners Present: Kurrent, Moriarty, Murphy, Ojeda, Wong, Chair Brooks    12 


   13 


Commissioners Absent:   Flashman  14 


 15 


Staff Present: David Hanham, Planning Manager 16 


Justin Shiu, Contract Planner 17 


Alex Mog, Assistant City Attorney   18 


 19 


C. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD 20 


 21 


 There were no citizens to be heard.   22 


 23 


D. CONSENT CALENDAR 24 


 25 


1. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from January 27, 2020  26 


 27 


MOTION to adopt the Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from January 27, 2020 28 


as submitted.     29 


 30 


 MOTION:   Kurrent  SECONDED:  Moriarty     APPROVED: 6-0-1 31 


                       Absent:  Flashman 32 


                        33 


E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:   34 


 35 


1. Design Review DR 19-14, Conditional Use Permit CUP 19-06: Artisanal 36 


Garden - Outdoor Artisan and Vendor Space  37 


 38 


Request:   Consideration of a Design Review and Conditional Use Permit 39 


(CUP) request to make site improvements for an outdoor 40 


seating space and to provide for hosting of artisan displays and 41 


food vendors at 2337 San Pablo Avenue in the CMU District.   42 


 43 


 44 


Applicant:   Raquel Contreras  45 


ATTACHMENT F 







  


 


                 February 24, 2020    2 


  714 Walker Avenue  1 


  Oakland, CA 94610  2 


 3 


Location: 2337 San Pablo Avenue (APN: 401-162-002) 4 


 5 


Planner:   Justin Shiu  6 


 7 


Contract Planner Justin Shiu reported for the record that the applicant was not yet 8 


present.  He provided a PowerPoint presentation of the request for Design Review 9 


and a CUP for Artisanal Garden: Outdoor Artisan and Vendor Space.  He 10 


recommended the Planning Commission adopt Resolution 20-01, approving Design 11 


Review 19-14 and CUP 19-09, and make the findings for a Similar Use Determination 12 


as provided in the February 24, 2020 staff report, subject to the Draft Conditions of 13 


Approval contained in Attachment A for the development of an outdoor artisan and 14 


vendor space at 2337 San Pablo Avenue.   15 


 16 


Responding to the Commission, Mr. Shiu explained that the food vendor booths had 17 


not been specified by the applicant but were not intended to be permanent structures; 18 


the proposed fencing included different materials and the conditions of approval 19 


required that the applicant install the fencing as shown in the submitted plans; the 20 


property was privately owned with an easement on the rear of the property where the 21 


parking was located and where there could be potential conflicts with parking for the 22 


Farmer’s Market; the applicant was the owner of the property and had proposed a 23 


Porta Potty restroom facility for the use, and while the Pinole Municipal Code (PMC) 24 


did not identify specific requirements for restroom facilities for such a use, staff had 25 


identified specific washing stations that could be expanded in the conditions of 26 


approval.  Public restroom facilities were located at Fernandez Park and visitors 27 


could be directed to other restroom facilities in the area or additional Porta Potties 28 


could be required.   29 


 30 


Planning Manager David Hanham explained that oftentimes Porta Potties came with 31 


washing stations and the applicant could be required to provide a hand washing 32 


station.   33 


 34 


Mr. Shiu also clarified the applicant had verbally expressed that the plans were 35 


interim layout plans with a two to three year-timeframe for the use.  As to the 36 


proposed time schedule, the months of January and February had not been included, 37 


and if approved, the use would only occur during the time schedule that had been 38 


provided as shown in the staff report.   39 


 40 


Mr. Shiu clarified that the only form of signage would be the address.  The applicant 41 


had not mentioned any desire for additional signage.  In response to concerns with 42 


parking, the conditions of approval could be modified to require the applicant to 43 


identify nearby parking lots in the area while the Farmer’s Market was also in session, 44 


which could be identified on the applicant’s marketing materials.   45 


 PUBLIC HEARING OPENED  46 







  


 


                 February 24, 2020    3 


  1 


IVETTE RICO, Pinole, supported anything that brought people to Old Town Pinole, 2 


although she had concerns with the proposed outdoor venue whether the vendor 3 


structures would be permanent, whether the vendors would pay a fee, and if food 4 


vendors whether they would compete with existing businesses.  Also, parking and 5 


traffic would conflict with the year around Farmer’s Market and the existing Porta 6 


Potties were for the use of the Farmer’s Market.  She asked whether there would be 7 


a focus on Pinole artisans, how trash and waste from the venue would be addressed, 8 


whether nearby restaurants could be impacted by venue patrons wanting to use their 9 


restroom facilities, and suggested many questions remained unanswered pending 10 


the arrival of the applicant.   11 


 12 


RAFAEL MENIS, Pinole, shared the concerns of the previous speaker, particularly 13 


potential conflicts given the proximity and schedule of the Farmer’s Market, although 14 


he acknowledged the applicant had received a positive letter from the Farmer’s 15 


Market Association.  He sought more information on the transitional nature of the site 16 


and given the absence of the applicant, he urged the Planning Commission to 17 


continue the item.  Without some clarification of the concerns, he suggested the use 18 


could be in conflict with Land Use and Economic Development Goal LU 3.3 given the 19 


conflicts with the Farmer’s Market due to parking, the services offered, and the 20 


potential overall pedestrian flow issues in terms of impacts to the ingress and egress 21 


to the Farmer’s Market.   22 


 23 


 PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED  24 


 25 


 When asked, Mr. Shiu stated he had expected the applicant to be present.  26 


  27 


The Planning Commission discussed DR 19-14 and CUP 19-09 and offered the 28 


following comments and/or direction to staff: 29 


 30 


• Supported the idea of bringing vitality and something interesting to Old Town 31 


Pinole consistent with the desires of economic development in Old Town; 32 


concerned the applicant appeared to have had minimal interaction with the 33 


Farmer’s Market Association, and questioned whether the Association was 34 


fully aware of the scope of the proposed use, which should be addressed in 35 


the conditions of approval.   Supported the project conceptually but supported 36 


a continuance until such time as the applicant could be present to respond to 37 


the questions raised.  (Moriarty)  38 


 39 


• Sought more information from the applicant on the proposal for an interim use, 40 


clarification of the proposed Porta Potties and the cost of a permanent 41 


restroom with hand wash basin, and a continuance of the application. 42 


(Kurrent) 43 


 44 


• Identified personal experience patronizing similar venues both in the United 45 







  


 


                 February 24, 2020    4 


States and in Australia and how those venues had addressed some of the 1 


same concerns that had been expressed; agreed the applicant should be 2 


present to identify the vision/concept; and approval should include a condition 3 


to ensure the site was maintained and cleaned after the completion of the 4 


event, including removal of the Porta Potties.  If any landscaping was 5 


proposed, questioned how it would be maintained and would like greater 6 


details and clarity on the parking.  Questioned whether the application should 7 


be considered as an interim event application or a business application, 8 


suggested the use was more a business event, and agreed there should be 9 


greater coordination with the Farmer’s Market.  Supported a continuance of 10 


the application.  (Wong) 11 


 12 


• Supported the idea in concept as part of a future potential solution to beautify 13 


the subject property; opposed restrictions on the parking; was not convinced 14 


such a venue would attract hundreds of people, but if successful suggested 15 


people would find a way to park but could also walk and bicycle to the venue; 16 


and supported a continuance as discussed.  (Ojeda) 17 


 18 


• Supported the idea in concept and was confident the venue would work well 19 


with the Farmer’s Market subject to coordination, and agreed the applicant 20 


needed to be present to respond to questions related to sanitation and 21 


maintenance of the site itself.  (Brooks)  22 


 23 


Mr. Hanham summarized the consensus of the Planning Commission to continue the 24 


item to allow the applicant to be present to respond to the questions specifically 25 


related to: parking, sanitation/Porta-Potty, business plan/vision, interaction with the 26 


Farmer’s Market, and proposed signage.   27 


  28 


MOTION to continue Design Review DR 19-14, Conditional Use Permit 19-09: 29 


Artisanal Garden - outdoor artisan and vendor space, to a date certain of March   23, 30 


2020.   31 


 32 


 MOTION:   Wong   SECONDED:   Kurrent   APPROVED: 6-0-1 33 


          Absent:  Flashman 34 


                 35 


F. OLD BUSINESS:  None  36 


           37 


G. NEW BUSINESS:  38 


 39 


1. General Plan/Specific Plan Information Session: Land Use Element   40 


  41 


 Planning Manager Hanham explained that the item was a continuation of the January 42 


27, 2020 Planning Commission discussion of the General Plan.   43 


 44 


Mr. Hanham provided an overview of the Land Use and Economic Development 45 







  


 


                 February 24, 2020    5 


Elements of the General Plan and highlighted the associated policies, as outlined in 1 


the February 24, 2020 staff report.   2 


 3 


In response to Commissioner Moriarty, Mr. Hanham clarified how the Strategic Plan 4 


for 2020 to 2025, which had recently been presented to the City Council, may impact 5 


the Land Use and Economic Development Elements.  He also clarified that the City 6 


Council had the authority to amend the General Plan and offered some examples.  7 


The Strategic Plan also called for updates to the General Plan and Three Corridors 8 


Specific Plan.  The Final Draft of the Old Town Subarea Parking Study and 9 


Pedestrian Plan was currently under review by staff to be presented to the Planning 10 


Commission in the next month or two prior to being submitted to the City Council. 11 


 12 


The status of Measure J on the March 2020 ballot was also noted and would be the 13 


subject of further discussions at West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory 14 


Committee (WCCTAC) meetings.  The San Pablo Bridge had been identified as 15 


WCCTAC’s main project at this time.    16 


 17 


The Planning Commission discussed with staff the differences and details between 18 


the current Measure J, which had a sunset date of 2036 and where the half cent 19 


sales tax for that measure would continue to be collected, and the Measure J on the 20 


March 2020 ballot proposed by the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA).   21 


 22 


In response to Commissioner Moriarty who pointed out the numbers on Page 14 of 23 


the Land Use Element were old, had been based on 2007 and 2009 figures, and 24 


needed to be updated, Mr. Hanham referenced the City’s Regional Housing Needs 25 


Allocation (RHNA) from the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), with new 26 


numbers to be released shortly.  He described the General Plan as more projection 27 


oriented, and clarified that the 2020 Census Survey would provide additional data 28 


allowing the numbers in the Housing Element to be updated.   29 


 30 


Mr. Hanham clarified in response to Commissioner Murphy that any references to 31 


the Redevelopment Agency in the documents referred to the City Council, and 32 


although the City had a Successor Agency pursuant to Redevelopment Law, the City 33 


of Pinole was no longer allowed to accrue debt.  The City was in the process of selling 34 


properties it had through the Redevelopment Agency.  The state was also realizing 35 


that tax increment funding was an important tool for cities to complete infrastructure 36 


projects and the state was using some tax increment funding laws to assist cities with 37 


what redevelopment had done in the past. 38 


 39 


In addition, Mr. Hanham explained that references to the Parks and Improvements 40 


Plan in the Land Use Element was a plan yet to be created and implemented, and 41 


the Waterfront Plan did not yet exist but had been identified as a goal in the Land 42 


Use Element.   43 


 44 


 45 


Mr. Hanham explained that references to historical resources and sites, particularly 46 







  


 


                 February 24, 2020    6 


Native American sites, may have been discussed in the Cultural Element of the 1 


General Plan. He also highlighted the Mills Act, which required definition as to what 2 


was historic and whether state or federally listed since there were separate design 3 


guidelines and restrictions for any improvements. 4 


 5 


Commissioner Kurrent commented that the State Department of Housing and 6 


Community Development (HCD) looked at affordable housing and it was understood 7 


that high density development of 35 units an acre or more qualified as Low Income 8 


housing.  He noted that the General Plan included a background report that provided 9 


the history of the City of Pinole, a worthwhile document to read offering insights into 10 


what the city wanted to be.  11 


 12 


Commissioner Ojeda thanked Commissioner Murphy for suggesting a review of the 13 


General Plan.  He liked the discussions of the City’s history and referenced the Point 14 


Pinole Regional Shoreline which had a lot of plaques detailing the history of Pinole.   15 


 16 


  H. CITY PLANNER’S / COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT   17 


 18 


1. Verbal Updates of Projects  19 


 20 


Mr. Hanham reported the Bike and Pedestrian Plan was in the final stage of review 21 


to be presented to the Planning Commission at its next meeting; the environmental 22 


review for Pinole Square was being finalized to be distributed in the next week for the 23 


30-day state clearinghouse review period to be presented to the Planning 24 


Commission in April/May; a number of building permits for remodels and Accessory 25 


Dwelling Units (ADUs) had been received; and applications had been received for a 26 


small parcel map, and a small subdivision map with design review on Hazel Street 27 


anticipated to be presented to the Planning Commission at a future meeting.  He 28 


reported that the April/May Planning Commission meetings would be very busy.   29 


 30 


Commissioner Moriarty inquired of the status of the application for Making Waves, 31 


and Mr. Hanham advised the applicant had formally withdrawn the application and 32 


the project had been closed out.  Making Waves continued to be the owner of the 33 


property.  As to the status of the condition of the property, it could be reviewed by 34 


code enforcement.    35 


 36 


Mr. Hanham reported that staff had made the arrangements for those 37 


Commissioners planning to attend the March 4-6 Planner’s Academy, with 38 


information to be forwarded to each Commissioner.   39 


 40 


Commissioner Moriarty reported she and Commissioner Murphy were members of 41 


the Beautification Ad Hoc Committee and the first meeting had been scheduled for 42 


Wednesday, February 26.  43 


 44 


 45 


Mr. Hanham also reported that staff was in the process of reviewing the PMC and 46 







  


 


                 February 24, 2020    7 


considering amendments with assistance from the City Attorney’s Office, to be 1 


presented to the Planning Commission later in the year.   2 


 3 


Commissioner Murphy reported he had been invited to the Pinole Senior Center, 4 


described it as a jewel for the City, and identified some of the various activities 5 


provided.  He brought to staff’s attention the limited parking accommodations for that 6 


facility. 7 


 8 


M. Hanham suggested the Parking and Pedestrian Plan could address some of those 9 


concerns in that it had identified some of the needed improvements in the community.   10 


 11 


Commissioner Murphy also spoke to his background as a digital marketing strategist 12 


and announced the creation of an online campaign known as #visitpinole.  He 13 


encouraged those interested to use the hashtag to provide photos of activities, hiking 14 


or walking around the city, which he suggested was a fun way to build a community.   15 


 16 


Commissioner Kurrent understood that three Commissioners would have terms 17 


expiring and urged Commissioners to either reapply or staff to consider a recruitment 18 


process.  He referenced a Facebook Group called Walk and Talk Pinole, with a walk 19 


scheduled for Saturday, February 29 at 9:15 A.M. at the Mariotti Mansion at 100 20 


Tennent Avenue.   21 


 22 


Commissioner Wong commented on the new East Bay Regional Park District 23 


(EBRPD) Trail Bridge which the community had been enjoying.   24 


 25 


I.         COMMUNICATIONS:  None  26 


 27 


J. NEXT MEETING 28 


 29 


The next meeting of the Planning Commission to be a Regular Meeting to be held 30 


on Monday, March 23, 2020 at 7:00 P.M. 31 


 32 


K. ADJOURNMENT:  8:45 P.M   33 


 34 


 Transcribed by:  35 


 36 


 37 


 Sherri D. Lewis  38 


 Transcriber  39 


 40 


 41 







Parking in Old Town October 17, 2020 – 11:20am to 11:45am 
 


 
Opposite the Farmer’s Market 
 


 
Fernandez Avenue (looking north) 
 


 
Fernandez Avenue (looking south) 
 


ATTACHMENT G 







 
Pear Street 
 


 
Next to Anjee’s Dance Etc. 
 


 
Youth Center 







 
Plum Street Lot 
 


 
Senior Center 
 
 













































































































































































		Item E1 - complete.pdf

		Attachment H. Hazel Street Exemption Memo_3.18.20 (1).pdf

		A. INTRODUCTION AND summary

		B. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

		C. discussion

		D. Exceptions to Categorical Exemptions analysis

		E. Conclusion



		Attachment B-F. Item E1.pdf

		Attachment C - Lot 1.pdf

		A10

		Sheets and Views

		A1.0





		A01

		Sheets and Views

		Model





		C1

		Sheets and Views

		Topo C-1 Lot#1





		C2

		Sheets and Views

		Pre Grading C-2 Lot#1





		C3

		Sheets and Views

		SWMP C-3 Lot#1





		A11

		Sheets and Views

		A1.1





		A12

		Sheets and Views

		A1.2





		A20

		Sheets and Views

		A2.0





		A30

		Sheets and Views

		A3.0





		A40

		Sheets and Views

		A4.0





		A50

		Sheets and Views

		A5.0





		L1

		Sheets and Views

		L.1





		LOT#1 COLOR BOARD.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Color Board







		Attachment D - Lot 2.pdf

		A10

		Sheets and Views

		A1.0





		A01

		Sheets and Views

		Model





		C1

		Sheets and Views

		Topo C-1 Lot#2





		C2

		Sheets and Views

		Pre Grading C-2 Lot#2





		C3

		Sheets and Views

		SWMP C-3 Lot#2





		A11

		Sheets and Views

		A1.1





		A12

		Sheets and Views

		A1.2





		A20

		Sheets and Views

		A2.0





		A30

		Sheets and Views

		A3.0





		A40

		Sheets and Views

		A4.0





		A50

		Sheets and Views

		A5.0





		L1

		Sheets and Views

		L.1





		LOT#2 COLOR BOARD.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Color Board







		Attachment E - Lot 3.pdf

		A10

		Sheets and Views

		A1.0





		A01

		Sheets and Views

		Model





		C1

		Sheets and Views

		Topo C-1 Lot#3





		C2

		Sheets and Views

		Pre Grading C-2 Lot#3





		C3

		Sheets and Views

		SWMP C-3 Lot#3





		A11

		Sheets and Views

		A1.1





		A12

		Sheets and Views

		A1.2





		A20

		Sheets and Views

		A2.0





		A30

		Sheets and Views

		A3.0





		A40

		Sheets and Views

		A4.0





		A50

		Sheets and Views

		A5.0





		L1

		Sheets and Views

		L.1





		LOT#3 COLOR BOARD.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Color Board







		Attachment F - Lot 4.pdf

		A50.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		A5.0





		LOT#4 COLOR BOARD.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Color Board


















